
  

CCITY

T

 

4:3

6:00
(J

7:00p

UR

Y CO

Tuesd
She

2256
Sh

30pm U

0pm C
Joint Ses

pm Re

RA Bo
(follow

OUN
PA

day, 
erwoo
60 SW
erwo

URA Bo

City Co
ssion with

egular C

ard of 
wing the C

 
 
 

 

NCIL
ACKE

 
FOR 

 

June
 

od Ci
W Pine
od, O

oard W
 

uncil W
h Plannin

 
City C

 
Direct

City Coun

 

L ME
ET 

e 7, 2
ty Ha
e Stre

Orego

Work S

Work S
ng Comm

ouncil

tors M
ncil meet

EETI

2011 
all 
eet 
n 

Session

Sessio
mission) 

l Meeti

eeting
ing) 

NG

 

n 

on 

ng 

g 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
URA BOARD WORK SESSION 4:30PM 
 
 
WORK SESSION-COUNCIL JOINT SESSION WITH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
 
4. CONSENT: 

 
A. Approval of May 17, 2011 City Council Minutes 
B. Resolution 2011-046 adding a Continuing Disclosure Policy to the existing set of City 

Financial Policies 
C. Resolution 2011-047 authorizing the City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with Washington County on behalf of Washington County Cooperative 
Library Services (WCCLS) 

D. Resolution 2011-048 authorizing the City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the Washington County Community Development Block Grant Program 
for program years 2012-2014 

E. Resolution 2011-049 certifying the provision of certain municipal services in order to 
qualify the City to receive State Revenues 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Recognition of Robin Hood Festival Maid Marian Court 
B. Presentation from Dave Nelson, CIS Public Safety Manager  
C. Proclamation recognizing Early Day Gas Engine & Tractor Association 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution 2011-050 Authorizing the City Manager to award a contract to Construct the 

Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Extension – Phase 1 Project 
(Sandrine Ganry, Engineering Assoc.) 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 

June 7, 2011 
 

4:30pm URA Board Work Session 
 

6:00pm Council & Planning 
Commission Work Session 

 
7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(Following the Council Meeting) 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 2 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Resolution 2011-051 declaring the City’s election to receive State Revenues 

(Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 
 

B. Resolution 2011-052 adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the City Zoning and 
Community Development Code, establishing fees for miscellaneous City services and 
establishing an effective date (Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 
 

C. Resolution 2011-053 adopting the 2011-12 Budget of the City of Sherwood, making 
appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to 
take such action necessary to carry out the adopted budget 
(Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 
 

D. Resolution 2011-054 adding new services to the Pride Disposal Franchise Agreement 
and modifying the rate structure (Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 
 
 

8. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 

11. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD MEETING 
 
 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday 
prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior 
Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.  The 
public may make copies of any Council meeting materials, at no charge.     
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and 
the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: 
citycouncil@ci.sherwood.or.us.   

2



City Council Min
May 17, 2011 
Page 1 of 7 

 
WORK SES

 
1. CALL T
 
2. COUNC

Folsom,
 
3. STAFF 

Pessem
Craig S
Enginee

 
4. TOPIC 

discussi
 

5. ADJOU
Council 

 
REGULAR 

 
1. CALL T

 
2. PLEDG

 
3. COUNC

Robyn F
 

4. STAFF 
Daniel, 
Econom
Galati a

 
Mayor M
 

5. CONSE
 
A. App
B. Reso

nutes 

SSION 

TO ORDER: 

CIL PRESEN
 Bill Butterfie

PRESENT
mier, Finance

heldon, Eco
er Bob Galat

DISCUSSE
on followed.

RNED: May
Session. 

COUNCIL M

TO ORDER: 

E OF ALLEG

CIL PRESEN
Folsom, Bill B

AND LEGA
Community

mic Developm
nd City Reco

Mays addres

NT AGEND

proval of Ap
olution 201

SHE
22

Mayor Mays

NT: Mayor 
eld, Matt Lan

: City Man
e Director C
onomic Deve
i and City Re

ED: Constru
.  

yor Mays adj

MEETING 

Mayor Mays

GIANCE AN

NT: Mayor M
Butterfield, M

AL COUNSE
y Developm
ment Manag
order Sylvia 

ssed the Con

A 

pril 19, 2011 
1-039 Adop

RWOOD CI
2560 SW Pin

Ma

s called the 

Keith Mays
nger, Linda 

nager Jim 
Craig Gibons
elopment M
ecorder Sylv

uction Limite

journed the 

s called the 

ND ROLL CA

Mays, Counc
Matt Langer 

EL PRESEN
ment Directo

ger Tom Ne
Murphy. Cit

nsent Agend

City Counc
pting 2011 C

TY COUNC
ne St., Sher
ay 17, 2011

meeting to o

s, Council P
Henderson a

Patterson, 
s, Police Ca

Manager Tom
via Murphy.

ed Streets

Work Sessi

meeting to o

ALL: 

cil President
and David L

NT: City Ma
or Tom Pes
elson, IT Di
ty Attorney C

da and asked

cil Minutes
City Counci

 

IL MINUTES
rwood, Or 

order at 6:34

President D
and David L

Community
aptain Mark
m Nelson, IT

(see recor

on at 7:05 p

order at 7:10

t Dave Gran
Luman. 

anager Jim P
ssemier, Fi
irector Brad
Chris Crean.

d for a motio

l Goals 

S 

4 pm. 

Dave Grant,
Luman.  

y Developm
k Daniel, Pu
T Director B

rd, Exhibit 

pm and conv

0 pm. 

nt, Councilor

Patterson, P
nance Dire

d Crawford, 
. 

on. 

DRAF

 Councilors

ment Direct
ublic Works 
Brad Crawfo

A). Questio

vened to the

rs Linda Hen

Police Capta
ctor Craig 
City Engine

FT  

s Robyn 

or Tom 
Director 

ord, City 

ons and 

e regular 

nderson, 

ain Mark 
Gibons, 

eer Bob 

3



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 2 of 7 

C. Resolution 2011-040 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with Washington County for the 2011 Slurry Seal Program 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Eagle Scout Recognitions 
 
No Scouts were present. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2011-041 to ratify the Contract Agreement between the City of Sherwood 
and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME); and 
to authorize the City Manager to sign the Successor Collective Bargaining Agreement 
between the City of Sherwood and the American Federation of State, County and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
 
Human Resources Manager Anna Lee came forward and presented Resolution 2011-041 she 
stated it was the same resolution as Resolution 2011-016 from March of this year with two 
differences.  This contract is for two years and the COLA has been changed.   
 
Mayor Mays asked for questions on the resolution.  

Councilor Henderson asked if the insurance benefit has always been for employees 20+ hours 
per week and was this coverage similar to other jurisdictions.  Ms. Lee responded yes, and 
explained that it was similar to other jurisdictions, whereas other jurisdictions will stipulate 40 
hours or every employees, it is up to the jurisdiction. Ms. Lee confirmed that the average was 
20+ hours and that the insurance was pro-rated for employees working between 20-40 hours 
per week.    

Mayor Mays asked for discussion or a motion. 

MOTION:  FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-
041, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DAVID LUMAN.  ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR.   

Mayor Mays moved on to the next item of business.  

B. Resolution 2011-042 Providing for the creation of a new fund and the reclassification of 
an existing fund 
 
Finance Director Craig Gibons explained that this resolution is a modification of the existing 
street fund, breaking it into two parts; an Operations Fund and a Capital Projects Fund. The 
purpose is for clarity and to meet generally accepted accounting principles.  

4



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 3 of 7 

The Mayor asked for questions on the proposed resolution. 
 
The Mayor explained that this topic was discussed in the Budget Committee meetings, that he 
appreciates Mr. Gibons bringing this forward to Council, and that the City wants to follow best 
practices. 
 
The Mayor asked for discussion or a motion.  
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-042, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON.  ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR.   

Mayor Mays moved on to the next agenda item.  
 

C. Resolution 2011-043 authorizing the purchase of a Cisco Phone System and network 
equipment 

 
IT Director Brad Crawford came forward and explained the resolution and reminded Council 
that this item was included in the FY 2010-11 Budget.  
 
Mayor Mays asked what the new system will do for the community and City.  Mr. Crawford 
answered that it will provide a reliable source of telephone and communication.  This system 
will last for many years and may be the last whole system the City will buy with upgrades as 
needed. Mr. Crawford also indicated there is a significant cost savings per year in the amount 
of services being purchased from Frontier. He said the new system also addresses the needs 
of some departments that have a higher volume of calls like Utility Billing and Court. Mayor 
Mays confirmed that the new system will not only be a benefit to City employees, but also to 
the citizens and businesses of the City.   
 
Mayor Mays asked if there were any other questions for Mr. Crawford.  
 
Councilor Henderson asked if the City went out for bid on this project.  Mr. Crawford said they 
have worked with several vendors and are going with WSCA, a State Contracting alliance.  
Councilor Henderson asked how this will be an improvement for Utility Billing.  Mr. Crawford 
explained some of the new call center capabilities will handle a higher volume of calls based 
on the nature of the call. Ms. Henderson asked further questions about the system and asked 
if the new system will help eliminate calls that cycle through the phone tree, causing 
frustration.  Mr. Crawford answered that the new system has voice recognition capability 
(integrated voice response) and said it is a modern system that replaces the current system 
that is over ten years old.  
 
Councilor Bill Butterfield asked what risk there may be with staying with the current system. 
Mr. Crawford stated that there may not be parts available for the phone system, to continue to 
pay the high phone service rates, and the current system is less efficient.  Mr. Butterfield 
asked if the hardware was being phased out or are not being maintained any longer.  Mr. 
Crawford confirmed that a lack of parts or software patches may become a problem.  
 
Mayor Mayors asked for questions or comments from Council. 
 
Councilor Luman stated that he likes that the City can take advantage of a 0% interest lease 
and conserve money on the conversion.  
 

5



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 4 of 7 

Councilor Folsom wanted to make note that the cost savings is approximately $12,000.  Mr. 
Crawford clarified that it is a $7000 a year savings in phone services and a one time savings of 
$5000 for the equipment.  
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-043, 
SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT.  ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED 
IN FAVOR.  
 
Mayor Mays thanked Mr. Crawford and moved on to the next agenda item.   
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Ordinance 2011-007 adding a new Chapter 12.24 to the Sherwood Municipal Code 

relating to fees for streets, sidewalks and other public places, and declaring an 
emergency 

 
Community Development Director Tom Pessemier explained that this ordinance is a precursor 
to the following resolutions.  It was recommended by the City Attorney that the Municipal Code 
by amended in order to allow for a process for the City to adopt street fees through a 
resolution process.  

 
Mayor Mays asked to receive public testimony.   
 
As there was no public testimony, Mayor Mays closed the public hearing and asked for 
Council comments.  With no comments received he asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION:  FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT 
ORDINANCE 2011-007, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT.   ALL 
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.   

 
 

B. Resolution 2011-044 repealing Resolution 2007-058, adopting an updated Street Utility 
Fee and establishing a goal for street operating conditions 

 
Community Development Director Tom Pessemier explained that this resolution is about an 
underfunded street maintenance fund as well as the liability that the City has to keep and 
maintain streets properly.  For the past several year staff has had several work sessions with 
Council and most recently this subject has been discussed in Budget Committee meetings.   
This resolution sets a goal of 80 PCI (Pavement Condition Index) by the year 2020.  The 
resolution repeals Resolution 2007-058. The fees will take effect with the new Fee Schedule 
for the FY 2011-12 Budget.  Mr. Pessemier explained that the resolution establishes a 
methodology for fees based on user and gave specific amounts.   
 
Mayor Mays thanked Mr. Pessemier for the hard work and staff time spent preparing the 
methodology.  Mr. Mays commented that he thinks the methodology is fair and a responsible 
approach to manage a key asset of the City, noting that other jurisdictions have dealt with this 
issue differently and he hopes this is the best approach.   
 
Mayor Mays asked for any questions from Council. 
 
Council Butterfield confirmed with Mr. Pessemier that the fees were a monthly fee and asked 
when it would go into effect.  Mr. Pessemier answered that if it is adopted it will be adopted as 
part of the Fee Schedule and be effective July 1, 2011. 
 

6



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 5 of 7 

Councilor Luman asked if MFR (Multi-Family Residential) properties have a common water 
source and if there was a way to account for vacancies in terms of billing.  Mr. Pessemier was 
unsure that there was, that he would have to defer to Utility Billing. Councilor Luman inquired if 
the intent was to have each renter pay the fee. Mr. Pessemier answered that it would be up to 
the individual multi-family residence owner to determine how they would distribute the costs. 
 
Councilor Langer commented that after he was able to reconcile the need for the new fees he 
feels that they make sense.  He advises all to realize that currently there is no mechanism to 
fund street maintenance and that this was needed many years ago.   
 
City Recorder Sylvia Murphy asked the Mayor to note a small typographical error on the 
resolution.  Mayor Mays confirmed with City Attorney Chris Crean that there was no need to 
have a formal amendment.  Mr. Crean confirmed, but reminded the Mayor that public 
testimony needed to be heard.  
 
Mayor Mays asked to receive public testimony on the proposed resolution.  With no testimony 
received, the Mayor closed the public hearing and asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION:  FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-
044, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD.  ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR.  
 
Mayor Mays moved on to the next item on the agenda.   

 
C. Resolution 2011-045 adopting a time-limited Pedestrian Pathway Construction Fee near 

schools 
 

Community Development Director Tom Pessemier expanded on some of the specifics of the 
resolution. He commented that in order to provide some public safety there is an obvious need 
for pathways near schools where development in the near future is unlikely.  The target area is 
around Laurel Ridge and Edy Ridge schools with some areas defined near Middleton 
Elementary, and said other areas that are identified can be added.  There is a time limit of 5 
years on the resolution and the intent is to start as soon as possible.    
 
Mayor Mays added that historically sidewalks gaps were added in a timely fashion because 
development was robust.   He said the City encourages youth to walk or ride a bike to school 
and safety is important. 
  
Mayor Mays asked for questions or comments. 
 
Councilor Butterfield asked if the fee would go away in five years.  Mr. Pessemier confirmed 
that it would unless Council chose to extend it.   
 
Councilor Luman asked what other funding methods were explored to fund this project.  Mr. 
Pessemier answered that traditionally the sidewalks are part of a development project, and 
where some of the schools are on the very edge of the City, development isn’t going to be 
available. System Development Charge fees are not ideal either.  The only other source would 
be the general fund which was just used for some street maintenance.  Mr. Luman asked 
about County money for the streets that abut the County.  Mayor Mays answered that the 
County does not typically fund sidewalks for existing streets.  Mr. Pessemier commented that if 
it had been possible it would have been part of the school project.   
 
Mayor Mays asked for public testimony on the proposed resolution.  With no comments 
received, the Mayor closed the public hearing and asked for any comments from the Council 
or a motion.  

7



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 6 of 7 

 
MOTION:  FROM COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-045, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON.   
 
Mayor Mays asked for discussion on the motion.  
 
Councilor Langer commented that assuming Council does not extend the fee, he will celebrate 
in five years when this fee goes away. 
 
Mayor Mays asked for a vote on Resolution 2011-045. 
 
VOTE: ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 

 
9. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
No citizen comments were received. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

10. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Jim Patterson asked Police Captain Mark Daniel to provide Council with the Police 
Department report.  Captain Daniel referred to the report given to Council (see record, Exhibit B) 
and stated he would be willing to address any questions. Captain Daniel then expounded on a 
recent arrest that was made possible by the cooperation with the media and some leads from 
observant citizens.  
 
Mayor Mays complimented the Police Department on their hard work and community involvement.  
City Manager Patterson also took the opportunity to compliment the Police Department on the 
exceptional work that they do and suggested that everyone should take the opportunity to thank a 
law enforcement officer.   
 
Mr. Patterson thanked Councilor Folsom and those associated with the Voices for Performing Arts 
for the opportunity to judge and attend the concert for the Small Town Big Talent contest held in 
May.   
 
Mr. Patterson reported the paver project in Old Town is going to be complete soon.  He thanked 
Economic Development Manager Tom Nelson and Community Development Director Tom 
Pessemier for their work on getting the project done.   
 
Mr. Patterson reported on the restrooms at Stella Olsen Park and said it’s anticipated that they will 
be open by Memorial Day weekend or the first week of June.  Final inspections need to be 
performed and the security system needs to be tested.   
 
 
Mr. Patterson stated the school district adopted their budget, including the funding for a school 
resource officer.  The City attorney will be working on an IGA between the City and the Sherwood 
School District, then an officer will be hired. Mr. Patterson thanked the Sherwood School 

8



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2011 
Page 7 of 7 

Superintendent Heather Cordie and the School Board for their cooperation and commitment to 
safety in the schools.   
 
Mr. Patterson commented regarding a meeting he had with the Sherwood Junior Baseball League 
regarding use of Sherwood ball fields. 
  
Mr. Patterson informed the Council of a recently sworn in Police Officer Joseph Twigg. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item.   
 

11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Councilor Henderson thanked Voices for Performing Arts for inviting her to the talent show and 
commented on how great it was to have Michael Allen Harrison come every year to perform.  Ms. 
Henderson also recommended attending future swearing in ceremonies as she learned so much 
about our new police officer, Joseph Twigg. Lastly, tickets for the Sound of Music are available for 
purchase.  

Councilor Folsom thanked all who attended the concert and the school district for providing the 
venue. Councilor Folsom reported she attended a luncheon for Loaves and Fishes with 
Community Services Director Kristen Switzer.  Ms. Folsom is grateful to have Loaves and Fishes 
as part of our community and encouraged anyone with free time to check the Sherwood Senior 
Center and see what they can do to help support Loaves and Fishes. Ms. Folsom thanked staff 
and the Parks Board for their work on the new restrooms at Stella Olson Park. 

Councilor Langer explained the mission of  BOOTS (Businesses of Old Town) and said  there is 
an opportunity for citizens to get involved in one of four committees being formed by BOOTS; 
Promotion, Design, Economic Restructuring, and Organization and to contact Angie Ford at the 
Sherwood Chamber of Commerce for more information or to make a financial contribution.  

 
12. ADJOURN 

 
With no other announcements, Mayor Mays adjourned the meeting at 8:12 pm to convene to a 
URA Board of Directors meeting 

 
 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
              
Kirsten Allen, Administrative Asst.    Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 

9



 
Resolution 2011-046, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   New Financial Policy, Continuing Disclosure, Resolution 2011-046 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
Staff is seeking adoption of a new financial policy on Continuing Disclosure.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Council adoption of Resolution 2011-046, A resolution adding a continuing disclosure 
policy to the existing set of City financial policies.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Issuers of municipal securities and entities working on their behalf are obligates by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to disclose material information and 
material events to the bond marketplace. This is called “Continuing Disclosure.”  
 
Creating this policy will bring this obligation to the forefront of Finance Department 
responsibilities, rather than having it buried in debt origination documents.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution and policy. 

10



DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-046 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

      
 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-046 
 
A RESOLUTION ADDING A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE POLICY TO THE 
EXISTING SET OF CITY FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has issued municipal securities; and 
 
WHEREAS, all issuers of municipal securities are obligated to comply with Continuing 
Disclosure policies of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has a set of Financial Polices which its obligation to 
comply with Rule 15c2-12 should be a part there of. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. That the attached “Continuing Disclosure” Policy shall be added to the 
City’s Financial Policies as Policy VI. 
 
 Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
    
        ______________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

11



City of Sherwood Oregon                                                                     Addition to Financial Policies  

Policy VI. Continuing Disclosure  
 

Continuing Disclosure In General 

Issuers of municipal securities must disclose material information to the 
marketplace. These obligatory disclosures are divided between submissions 
made to update financial/operating information about the issuer and notices 
that disclose the occurrence of specific events that may have an impact on 
the bonds. The City shall comply with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act). The Rule requires that the following 
types of information be provided to the market through the Electronic 
Municipal Market Access system:  

1. Financial or operational information  
a. Annual financial information concerning issuers or other obligated persons, or 

other financial information and operating data provided by issuers or other 
obligated persons  

b. Audited financial statements for issuers or other obligated persons, if 
available 

2. Event Notices 
a. Principal and interest payment delinquencies 
b. Non-payment related defaults, if material 
c. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 
d. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 
e. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 
f. Adverse tax opinions, Internal Revenue Service (IRS) notices or material 

events affecting the tax status of the security 
g. Modifications to rights of security holders, if material 
h. Bond calls, if material 
i. Tender offers 
j. Defeasances, release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of 

the securities, if material 
k. Rating changes 
l. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event; 
m. Merger, consolidation, or acquisition, if material; and appointment of a 

successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if 
material 

n. Notices of failures to provide annual financial information on or before the 
date specified in the written agreement 

 
City Responsibility 
 
The Finance Director shall be responsible for adhering to the City’s 
Continuing Disclosure Obligations. 
 
Adopted by Resolution 2011‐046, June 7, 2011 
 
 

Resolution 2011-046, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1

12



Resolution 2011-047, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda  
 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director  

Pam North, Library Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2011-047, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign 
an Intergovernmental Agreement with Washington County on behalf of Washington 
County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS). 
 
 
ISSUE:  Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign Exhibit A, the 
Public Library Services Agreement and Exhibit B, the WCCLS Information Network 
Agreement, extending the agreements through June 30, 2016? 
 
BACKGROUND: On November 2, 2011 Washington County voters approved the 
Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) library operating levy. 
The renewal of the local option levy, Measure 34-180, means that funding from the 
approved levy will continue countywide operating support for the next five years, 
beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. 
 
Resolution 2007-053 authorized the City Manager to sign an agreement with 
Washington County on behalf of WCCLS, said agreement expires on June 30, 2011. 
The attached new agreements extend the contract through June 30, 2016.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2011-047, a resolution authorizing the 
City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement with Washington County on 
behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS). 
 

13



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-047 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (9 pages), Exhibit B (10 pages) 

 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2011-047 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY ON BEHALF OF WASHINGTON COUNTY 
COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SERVICES (WCCLS) 
 
WHEREAS, On November 2, 2010 Washington County voters approved the Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) library operating levy; and  
 
WHEREAS, The renewal of the local option levy, Measure 34-180, means that funding from the 
approved levy will continue countywide operating support for the next five years, beginning July 1, 
2011 through June 30, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2007-053 authorized the City Manager to sign an agreement with 
Washington County on behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library Services  (WCCLS) 
which expires on June 30, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS), exists to coordinate, 
contract for or provide a full range of library and information services to all residents of the county; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this agreement provides funding for the Sherwood Library and the vehicle to share 
materials with other Washington County libraries to the benefit of Sherwood citizens; and. 
 
WHEREAS, the attached exhibits (A) Public Library Services Agreement and (B) WCCLS 
Information Network, renew the current agreements through June 30, 2016. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to sign Exhibit A, the Public Library Services 
Agreement and Exhibit B, the WCCLS Information Network Agreement.  
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
             
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

14



Public Library Services Agreement

This Agreement is made by and between Washingfon County, a home rule subdivision of
the State of Oregon hereinafter referred to as "County", on behalf of Washington County
Cooperative Library Services, hereinafter refered to as "WCCLS'', and the Cities of
Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard,
and Tualatin, and the Cedar Mill Community Library Association and the Garden Home
Community Library Association, hereinafter referred to as "Contractor(s)".

WHEREAS, Washington County has approved funding for countywide library
services including non-fee access by County residents to public libraries operated by
Contractors; and

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement are either units of local government
empowered by ORS 190.010 to enter into an intergovernmental agreement or are private
non-profit agencies operating public libraries; and

WHEREAS, all parties are desirous of providing residents of Washington County
with access to public library services and Contractors are capable of providing such
access and services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall be used in this Agreement

A. WCCLS (Washington County Cooperative Library Services) - An agency
of county govemment that exists to coordinate, contract for or provide a
full range of library and information services to all residents of the county.

WCCLS Iriformation Network (formerly known as WILInet) - The system

that includes: the shared integrated library system software (circulatíon,
public access catalog, cataloging, serials control and acquisitions
softwàre); the WCCLS.org website and its resources; other databases
provided by WCCLS for member library or public access; central site
hardware and software; software, hardware or appliances provided to
member libraries and supported by WCCLS; and the telecommunications
network linking Contractors to the system and for Internet access.

Qualified Borrowers - All Washington County residents, residents of
counties with which Washington County has reciprocal borrowing
agreements, and paid card holders.

B.

C

Public Library Services Agreement, 512412011 I

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 9

15



West Slope Communilv Library - The public library that is a department
of WCCLS and managed by the County. For purposes of this agreement,

West Slope is treated as a Contractor..

Oregon Public Librar)¡ Statistical Report- The report mandated by ORS

357.520, containing statistics and provided on an annual basis to the

Oregon State Library via a reporting format determined by the State

Library. Report data is typically due October 1 of each year.

WCCLS Executive Board - the Board established to advise the Board of
County Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Director on
matters pertaining to the funding for countywide library services,

distribution of hnancial resources by WCCLS for the provision of
countywide public library services, and long term govemance and funding
strategies.

G. WCCLS Policv Group - the Board established to provide technical and
professional support and advice to the WCCLS Executive Board, to
develop and implement policies and procedures for delivery of
countywide public library services, and to advise the Cooperative Library
Services Director.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1,2011, through June 30, 2016,
except as otherwise provided in Section 11 of this Agreement.

3. FUNDS

As compensation to Contractor for the services to be provided pursuant to this
Agreement, WCCLS agrees to make funding distributions to Contractor on the

basis set forth in Section 4 and the Payment Schedule set forth in Section 6.

Each Contractor agrees by receipt of funds from WCCLS to expend those funds
to provide library services according to Contractor's established policies, and to
ensure that Contractor's library facilities are open for public use by all Qualified
Borrowers. Contractors must spend all funds received from WCCLS on the
provision of library services, including but not limited to operating and capital
expenditures.

4. FUNDING FORMULA

The total payment to be made to each Contractor during the term of this
Agreement shall be determined by the method set forth in this Section and

shall be based on the f,rgures set forth in EXHIBIT A "Funding
Distributions".

D

E.

F

A.

Public Library Services Agreement,5l24l20lI 2

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 9

16



B. Payments to Contractors shall be budgeted in two (2) funding distribution
pools.
1. Pool One. Contractors shall each receive equal increases of 2.5oá

on an annual basis for the Term of this Agteement provided
funding is available. For FY20ll-12, Contractors shall receive
2.5Yo increases over the FY20I0-1I Reimbursement Formula
distributions. For FY20l l-12 the total amount in Pool One shall
be $18,938,126.

2. Pool Two. Based on projected increases in the County's assossed

valuation and WCCLS revenues, expenditures and reserve funds, a

second distribution pool shall be budgeted by WCCLS. After
actual County assessed valuation, tax levies and taxes are certified,
the WCCLS Executive Board shall recommend whether funds
from Pool Two shall be distributed to Contractors, and if so, on
what basis. Typically, this shall be determined in January of each

year. Any distribution of funds from Pool Two shall be distributed
on a separate schedule frpm Pool One.

5. ADJUSTMENTS IN PAYMENTS

A. Payments may be adjusted by WCCLS if funding for payments noted in
4.8 is less than projected. Amounts paid to each Contractor will be

reduced in an amount proportionate to each library's percentage of the
total amount available for payment.

WCCLS shall notify the Contractors in writing of any adjustments under
this Section upon adoption of the County's budget for the subsequent

fiscal year. In the event that reductions in revenue are necessary after the
beginning of a fiscal year, the County would give sixty (60) days

notification to Contractors, if possible.

6. PAYMENT SCTIEDULE

WCCLS agrees to make payments to those Contractors thal are cities as

follows:
1. 80% (eighty percent) of the total annual payrnent shall be made on

or before December 31; and
2. 20Yo (twenty percent) of the total annual payment shall be made on

or before April 15.

B Notwithstanding paragraph 6.4 above, a city not formerly aparty b a

Public Library Services Agreement with WCCLS, that establishes a public
library and becomes a party to this Agreement, shall be entitled to receive
payment on a monthly basis during the term of this Agreement. The
monthly payment shall be llI2 of the total annual payment. In addition,

B

A.

Public Library Services Agreement, 5l24l20ll 3

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 9

17



WCCLS agrees that any city to which this subsection applies shall be

entitled to receive monthly payments for the entire term of any renewal or
successor agreement to which it becomes aparty, provided funds are

available.

WCCLS agrees to make payments to those Contractors that are

community libraries (specifically Cedar Mill Community Library
Association and Garden Home Community Library Association) and the
West Slope Community Library on a monthly basis. The monthly
payment shall be IlI2 of the total annual payment.

7. SPECIAL LIBRARY FUND

The County, on behalf of WCCLS, shall maintain a Special Library Fund that
shall include:

A. Any remaining funds from a previous year which shall be carried over to
the next year;

B. All property tax collections made under all County library local option
levies;

C. All transfers of county general funds made to WCCLS;
D. All interest earnings on the Special Library Fund, in accordance with ORS

294.080(1); and
E. Other revenues for library services.

8. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY WCCLS

WCCLS agrees to provide the following central support and outreach services to
Contractors and West Slope Community Library:

A. Reciprocal borrowing with other metropolitan area public libraries;
B. Coordination of countywide library services among Contractors and with

regional and state library service providers;
C. Enhanced reference services including coordination of selection and

purchase ofsubscription databases and other shared electronic resources

available through WCCLS.org and coordination of training and education
for adult services staff; and interlibrary loan borrowing from and lending
to libraries outside of Washington County;

D. Outreach services to special populations of Washington County residents,
' including, but not limited to, circulation of materials to those who cannot

get to a public library (homebound), information and education about
library-related services for child care providers and the children in their
care, Latino and other cultural communities.

E. Coordination of countywide Youth Services activities, including Summer
Reading Programs and shared resources;

F. Courier pick-up and delivery of materials bçtween Contractors and

provision of courier connections to regional library delivery systems;

C

Public Library Services Agreement,5/24/2011 4

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 4 of 9

18



Planning for long-term growth and development of countywide library
services;
Operation and maintenance of the WCCLS lnformation Network as

defined in the WCCLS Information Network Agreement; and

Other services to address Long Range Service Plan goals as agreed upon
by all parties.

9. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTORS

c.

Each Contractor agrees that Qualified Borrowers will not be charged a fee

for the initial circulation or renewal of library materials.
Each Contractor further agrees that, while it is within the sole discretion of
the Contractor whether to charge reasonable fees for services other than
circulation, Contractor shall apply all fees and policies uniformly to all

Qualified Borrowers. Such fees may include special service and overdue
fees.

Each Contractor agrees that it will designate a staff member with whom
WCCLS deals in administration of this Agreement on behalf of Contractor
and who shall be authorized to receive and give any notices that may be

required under this Agreement. Unless otherwise designated, this shall be

the Library Director for each Contractor and the West Slope Community
Library.
Each Contractor shall meet all requirements for Level 5 Libraries as

defined in the Admission of New Public Libraries to Washington County
Cooperative Library Services, as approved by the WCCLS Executive
Board l'4.ay 23,2007 and subsequent revisions.
Each Contractor agrees to abide by shared policies and procedures as

agreed upon by the WCCLS Policy Group,
Each Contractor agrees to identiff its membership in WCCLS through
materials' property identification marks, and through public
communications such as library printed materials, websites or other
publicity materials.

10. RECORD KEEPING

A.

G.

H.

I.

A.

B.

D

E.

F.

B

WCCLS agrees to provide each Contractor with a copy of the County's
annual arrdit, upon request by Contractor.

Each Contractor agrees to provide WCCLS with a copy of Contractor's
annual audit. For pulposes of this Section, the following requirements
shall apply:
1. For Contractors which are cities, the audit shall be that of the city,

and shall be supplied upon request of WCCLS.
2. For Contractors which are community libraries (specifically Cedar

Mill Community Library Association and Garden Home
Community Library Association), the audit shall be the result of an

Public Library Services Agreement, 512412011 5

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 5 of 9

19



annual review of the Contractor's financial statements made by an

independent certified public accountant in accordance with
standards of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and shall be supplied by December 3l't of each year

to WCCLS.

C. Each Contractor agrees to provide WCCLS with a copy of its Oregon

Public Library Statistical Report.

11. TERMINATION

The County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon sixty
(60) days written notice, if it determines, in good faith through an open,

public process, that:
1. The public interest would be served by such termination; or
2. Adequate funds are not available.

B. Each Contractor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon
sixty (60) days written notice, if Contractor determines, in good faith, that:

1. The public interest in its jurisdiction or area of service would be

served by such termination; or
2. Appropriated funds for Contractor are less than the amount

reasonably anticipated.

The County and each Contractor shall have the right to terminate
participation in this Agreement separately, and Agreements between
remaining parties and the County shall remain in effect.

D In the event of the termination by the County or by the Contractor, the

County shall provide funding distributions to the Contractor prorated to

the date of termination.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

Each party agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal ordinances, statutes,

laws and regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this

Agreement.

A. Equal Opportunity. Contractor hereby agrees that its employees
(including applicants for employment) shall not be discriminated against

race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability,
age, or marital status except in case of bona fide occupational
qualifications as defined and provided by applicable federal or state law.

No person shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the

benefits of any services or activities made possible by or resulting from
" this contract on the gtounds ofrace, color, religion, gender, sexual

A.

C

Public Library Services Agreement, 5l24l20lI 6

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 6 of 9

20



orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status. Any
violation of this provision shall be grounds for cancellation, termination or
suspension in whole or in part by County.

Compliance with Applicable Provisions of ORS Chapter 279.
ORS 2798.220 tllrough27gB.235 and279C.500 through 279C.870, as applicable,

are incorporated herein by reference. Contractor agrees to:
1. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying, to Contractor,

labor or material for the performance of the work provided for in this

contract;
2. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund incurred

in the performance of the contract:
3. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the County on

account ofany labor or material furnished pursuant to this contract; and

4. Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees

pursuant to ORS 3 I 6.167.

13. INDEMNIFICATION

Each party agrees to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify each other, including
its officers, agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, actions and suits
(including all attorney fees ând costs) arising from the indemnitor's performance

of this Agreement where the loss or claim is attributable to the negligent acts or
omissions of that paÍry. If the indemnifying party is a unit of local government,

such indemnifications shall be subject to the limitations of liability for public
bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.300, and the Oregon
Constitution.

14. DEBT LIMITATION

This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon Counties set

forth in Article XI, Section 10 of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon
funds being appropriated therefor.

15. INDEPENDENTCONTRACTOR

Each party is an independent contractor with respect to each other party and has

no control over the work performed by the other. No party is an agent or
employer of another party. No party or its employees is entitled to participate in a
pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits provided by any other party.

16. NOTICE

Any Contractor shall give immediate written notice to the County of any action or
suit filed or any claim made against that party that may result in litigation and is

directly related to this Agreement.

B

Public Library Services Agreement, 5124/2011 7

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 7 of 9

21



17. INSURANCE

Each party agrees to maintain insurance levels, or self-insurance in accordance

with ORS 30.282, for the duration of this agreement at levels necessary to protect

against public body liability as specified in ORS 30.271. Contractors that are

community libraries shall provide certification of insurance upon request.

18. COLINTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be

an original, all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

19. CAPTIONS

Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall

not be construed or interpreted so as to enlarge or diminish the rights or
obligations of the parties hereto.

20. SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provi'sion, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions
of this Agreement unless the result of the holding is a failure of consideration of
any party.

21. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may only be amended in writing and with agreement of all parties

FOR TI{E CONTRACTOR: FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY:

Signature Signature

Title Title

Date Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM

County Counsel

Public Library Services Agreement, 5l24l20ll 8

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 8 of 9

22



Forest Grove
$Garden Home I

$

TÍoard
Tualatin

Publlc Library Service Agreement, Exhibit A
Pool I Fundfng Distributions FY11-12 through FYlS-16

F:\Administration\CONTRACTS\PL Services Agmt\PLSA exhibit A 11-12 thru 15-16 Pool 1.x1s512412811

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 9 of 9

23



WCCLS Information Network Agreement

This Agreement is made by and between Washington County, a home rule subdivision of the

State of Oregon hereinafter referred to as "County", by and through Washington County

Cooperative Library Services, hereinafter referred to as "WCCLS" and the Cities of Banks,

Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard and Tualatin,

CedarMill CommunityLibraryAssociation, GardenHome CommunþLibrary Association,

Tuality Healthcare and Oregon College of Art and Craft, hereinafter refened to as rfNetwork

tlsers.'f

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are currently participants in the WCCLS Network;

WHEREAS, the parties are either units of local government empowered by ORS 190.010

to enter into an intergovernmental agreement, or are private non-profit agencies operating

libraries, and

TWHEREAS, WCCLS has purchased and installed an automated integrated library system

and is desirous of making this system available for use by libraries in Washington County;

NOW TIIEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the

parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall be used in constructing the following phrases, terms and

abbreviations in this Agreement:

A) WCCLS (Washington County Cooperative Library Services) - An agency of county

government that exists to coordinate, contract for or provide a full range of library and

information services to all residents of the county.

B) WCCLS Information Network (formerlv known as WILlnet) - The system that includes: the

shared integrated library system software (circulation, public access catalog, cataloging,

serials control and acquisitions software); the WCCLS.org website and its resources; other

databases provided by WCCLS for member library or public access; central site hardware and

software; software, hardware or appliances provided to member libraries and supported by

WCCLS; and the telecommunications network linking Network Users to the system and for
Intemet access. Hereafter referred to as the "Network."

C) Host - Any intelligent device eonnected to the Network that is addressable by a

network/transport protocol. All workstations, network printers, routers, etc. are hosts.

D) Broadband Users' Group - A membership organizationthrough which WCCLS procures

lntemet and firewall network services through the Public Communications Network.

WCCLS Information Network Agreemenl 5l24l20ll'page I

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 10

24



E) WCCLS Policy Group - the Board established to provide technical and professional support

and advice to the \üCCLS Executive Board, to develop and implement policies and

procedures for delivery of countylvide public library services, and to advise the Cooperative

Library Services Director.

F) WCCLS InformationNetwork Users' Group - A committee of the WCCLS Policy Group to

advise WCCLS and the WCCLS Policy Group on the operation of the automated system as

defined in the'WCCLS Policy Gioup Bylaws.

G) Public Library Services Agreement - The Inter-Govemmental Agreement between

Washington County and library service providers to provide library services to all county

residents, containing a distribution formula under which WCCLS makes payments to public

libraries.

H) Executive - the Board established to advise the Board of County

Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Director on matters pertaining to the

funding for countywide library services, dishibution of financial resources by WCCLS for the

provision of countywide public library services, and long term govemance and funding

strategies.

I) West Slope Communitv Library - The public library that is a department of TWCCLS and

managed by the County. For purposes of this Agreement, West Slope is treated as a Network

User.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be in effect from July l,20Il, through June 30, 2016, except as otherwise

provided in Section 14 of this Agreement

3. OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT OF THE WCCLS INFORMATION NETWORK

A) The Washington County Board of Commissioners, as the governing body of WCCLS, retains

frnal authority for decision-making related to the Network and its operation.

B) WCCLS shall have full ownership of all Network components and shall make the system

available to Network Users. All software and upgrades provided to Network Users by

WCCLS will remain the property of WCCLS.

C) Item records owned by Network lJsers, the associated bibliographic and patron records where the

patron is registered at the Network User Library, shall be considered the property of that Network

User. On termination of this Agreement by either party Network User shall pay all reasonable costs

associated with data extraction necessary to provide records in machine-readable format.

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 5l24l20ll- page 2

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 10

25



4. SERVICEAVAILABILITY

A) The Network shall be available for use twenty-four (24) hours a day except for routine

maintenance and when software, hardware, or telecommunications upgrades/changes

necessitate making the system unavailable. WCCLS agrees to provide Network User with
prior notice of Network downtime if it will affect library operations and/or business hours

éxcept for unexpected outages due to Network failure or other circumstances beyond the

control of WCCLS. No liabilþ shall be assumed by WCCLS if Network experiences

downtime.

B) WCCLS staff shall be available to support the Network and to answer questions about the

Network from Network Users. No Network staff will be available on days that are official

Washington County holidays.
The hours of service will be as follows:

8:00 am - 9:00 pm, MondaY- ThursdaY;

8:00 am - 6:00 pm Friday,
9:00 am - 5:00 pm SaturdaY, and

10:30 am - 5:30 pm SundaY.

Staff will be on-call for emergency support only 6:00pm to 9:00pm Friday.

5. DATARECOVERY

WCCLS will duplicate daily all data maintained in the Network database. WCCLS will rotate

back-up data between on-site storage and off-site storage so that files can be reconstructed if a
system malfunction occurs that requires restoring or rebuilding data f,rles, in whole or in part. A
minimum of one weekly back-up will be stored in a location physically apart from the site of the

central system in case of major disaster at the central site'

6. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF WCCLS

WCCLS shall:
A) Purchase all Network hardware, software, and telecommunications equipment, housing such

equipment in a suitable environment, and maintaining said equipment in good operating

condition.

B) Purchase integrated library system client software licenses for Network Users and coordinate

distribution of licenses.

C) Provide, or contract for the provision of maintenance of Network hardware, software, and

the telecommunications equipment.

D) Employ personnel needed to maintain and operate Network and staff a help desk for problem

reporting and resolution.

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 5124/2011- page 3

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 10

26



E) Provide a source of, and maintain for Network Users, MARC bibliographic cataloging

records and authorþ records in the catalog. This includes monitoring and evaluating

bibliographic services to maintain quality bibliographic records.

F) Purchase, and coordinate licensing of, other software, applications or equipment to support

Network services.

G) Purchase item inventory tags and patron cards to be used byNetwork Users.

FI) Provide initial training and initial and on-going training materials to Network Users for
WCCLS provided software applications.

I) Provide documentation for the integrated'library system'

J) Provide software updates to Network Users for software applications purchased by WCCLS

and licensed for use at member libraries.

K) Regularly review the operations of Network hardware, software and telecommunications,

evaluate performance, and develop plans for modifications, upgrades and new services, as

outlined in the WCCLS Long Range Plan.

L) Monitor compliance with Policies & Procedures adopted by the WCCLS Policy Group and

the Broadband Users' Group to coordinate orderly and secure use of the system.

M) Conduct an independent security audit of the Network and implement recommendations to

maintain security and integrity.

N) Take steps to maintain security, up to and including terminating a connection between one or

more network Hosts that appear to present a problem that threatens securit¡ integrity, or

performance. Prior notification of the impending disconnection will be given to the affected

Network Users if time permits. Connectivþ will be restored when the WCCLS staff

determines that the problem is resolved or the threat removed, unless WCCLS determines

that the problem or threat has resulted in a default under pangtaphl2.

O) Manage the Network pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF NETV/ORK USERS

Network Users shall:
A) Participate in the use and operation of the Network under the terms and conditions of this

Agreement and the Policies & Procedures adopted by the WCCLS Policy Group.

V/CCLS Information Network Agreement 5l24l20ll- page 4

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 4 of 10

27



B) Take full responsibility for linking item information for Network User's holdings to

bibliographic records in the catalog and for meeting cataloging standards as outlined in the

Policies & Procedures.

C) Provide, maintain, and administer cabling, equipment, software, associated devices and Hosts

withinNetwork User's building that are connected to the Network'

D) Provide site preparation, access, and environmental conditions necessary for optimal securþ
and functioning of network Hosts provided by WCCLS.

E) Ensure that devices conflrgured by Network User and accessing the Network comply at all

times with hardware, software and security requirements deemed necessary by WCCLS staff'

F) Ensure that all Hosts connected to the Network shall be secured and supervised by library

staff during use. Public users shall not use staff workstations.

G) Ensure that any Host or device connected to the Network shall neither cause, nor have the

potential to cause, any network disruption, security breach, nor other deleterious outcome'

H) Obtain permission from WCCLS in advance of attempting to attach any new equipment to

the Network.

D Obtain permission from WCCLS in advance of adding workstations that will run software

applications purchased by WCCLS and licensed for use at member libraries.

J) Protect Network equipment and software from abuse, theft or misuse, and assume financial

responsibility for repairing or replacing damaged equipment.

K) Be responsible for system securþ by limiting access to non-public accounts to trained,

authorized staffand volunteers, and using security protocols and procedures as directed by

WCCLS to prevent unauthorized access. Examples may be password protection, encryption

of sensitive information, or locking workstations when not in use'

L) Noti$ WCCLS of changes in services, including but not limited to acquisition of additional

domain accounts, integrated library system accounts, workstations, email accounts, and

deletion of said accounts.

M) Provide an inventory of Network Hosts in Network lJser's facility and connected to the

Public Communications Network as needed by WCCLS.

N) Conduct an annual inventory of licenses in use by the Network User as instructed by WCCLS

staff.

O) Keep records and statistics when required by WCCLS to document system performance.

WCCLS Information Network Agreemenl 5l24l20ll'page 5

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 5 of 10

28



P) Designate at least one person as the WCCLS contact concerning use of the Network.

9. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA

The patron and circulation records in the catalog shall be deemed to be exempt from public

disclosure pursuant to ORS I92.502Q3). All parties agree that they will not disclose patron and

circulation information. All parties also agree that only library staff and designated library

volunteers shall have access to such records in the course of operating the system. All parties

agree to forward to WCCLS all requests for confidential data from law enforcement or other

requestors in accordance with established Policies and Procedures. All parties may use patron

name and address information for library purposes as long as it is used in accordance with
established Polioies & Procedures.

IO. COST ALLOCATION FORMULA

On an annual basis, WCCLS shall calculate the Cost Allocation Formula (EXHIBIT A) based on

measures of Network lJsers' use of the Network: integrated library system licenses, total

circulation, number of titles, number of items, number of patrons, and volumes added in the

hscal year. The purpose of the Cost Allocation Formula is to identiff each Network User's

percentage share of operational costs to maintain the Network should WCCLS funding cease.

Network Users that are not signatories to the Public Library Services Agreement, chiefly Tuality
Health Resource Center and Oregon College of Art and Craft, shall be responsible for ten percent

of their share of the cost allocation on an annual basis. These Network Users shall be notified of
Network operating costs by April 1 as determined by the Cost Allocation Formula used in
EXHIBIT A "Cost Allocation Formula". These Network Users shall receive an invoice from

WCCLS by April 15 for the annual cost, which shall be paid by June 30.

11 ADMISSION OF NEW NETWORK USERS THAT ARE NOT SIGNATORIES TO

TFIE PUBLIC LIBRARY SERVICES AGREEMENT

WCCLS shall have the option of admitting other libraries to the Network provided that any

necessary system modification shall be undertaken to ensure continued security and performance.

Admission of New Network Users shall require unanimous approval of present Network Users

and the WCCLS Executive Board. New Network Users will be assessed a share of operating

costs for the first year of membership as determined by the WCCLS Executive Board. The "Cost

Allocation Formula" in Exhibit A applies during the second year and thereafter.

12. DEFAULT

A) Each of the following shall constitute a default:
l. Material noncompliance with the terms of the Agreement or any policies or procedures

adopted pursuant to this agreement;

2. Misuse of system operating software, hardware, or telecommunications.

3. Failure to maintain system security protocols or procedures as directed by WCCLS.

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 5l24l20ll- page 6

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 6 of 10

29



B) h the event of a default by a Network User or by'WCCLS, WCCLS or the Network User,

respectively, shall:
1. Advise the party in writing of the alleged default and any action required to cure the

default;
2. Set forth a time by which the default must be cured, a minimum of thirty (30) days.

C) In the event a Network User shall fails to cure after having been notified of the alleged

default WCCLS may, following written notice to the Network User:

1. Prohibit Network User from the use of the system;

2. Take any action to cure or stop the default;
3. Recover any costs, expenses or disbursements incurred by'WCCLS to cure the default;

4. Terminate this Agreement as regards the defaulting Network User'

D) Notwithstanding subparagraph B, in the event of an emergency involving, but not limited to,

system damage or the breach of security or confidentiality of the database, WCCLS may lock

out the Network User from the system without notice.

13. TERMINATION

A) The County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in its entirety or as to any

individual Network User upon sixty (60) days written notice, if it determines, in good faith,

through an open, public process, that:
1. The public interest would be served by such termination;
2. Adequate funds are not available.

B) Each Network User shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days

written notice, if the Network User determines, in good faith, that the public interest in its
jurisdiction or area of service would be served by such termination.

C) County and each Network User shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for a default

by the other party that has not been cured.

D) Upon termination of this Agreement as to any individual Network User, this Agreement shall

continue to be effective as to the remaining parties.

E) Except for termination under subparagraph A, on termination, the Ñetwork User shall be

responsible for payment of any costs, expenses, or disbursements incurred by WCCLS to
remove or otherwise mask Network User's data from the system.

14. INSURANCE

A) All parties to this Agreement shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance or

adequate reserves in a program ofself-insurance covering personal injury and property

damage for the Network lJsers, their employees and agents. The insurance coverage shall be

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 5l24l20ll'page 7

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 7 of 10

30



for a minimum of the amounts specified in ORS 30.271. For Network Users who are not

units of local govemment, certification of insurance shall be provided to WCCLS and all

such insurance coverage shall name Washington County, its officers, employees and agents

as additional insureds.

B) WCCLS shall maintain insurance adequate to cover the replacement of the central site

equipment including but not limited to central hardware, telècommunications equipment and

uninterruptible power supply. The insurance coverage shall be for a minimum of $600,000'

C) Network Users shall maintain insurance adequate to cover the replacement of the

telecommunications equipment owned by WCCLS and housed at Network User's site.

15. COMPLTANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

Each party agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and

regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this Agreement.

A) Equal Opportunitv Network User hereby agrees that its employees (including applicants for

emplbyment) shall not be discriminated against race, color, religion, gender, sexual

orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status except in case of bona fide

occupationàl qualifications as defined and provided by applicable federal or state law. No

p"tron shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in receþt of the benefits of any services

or activities made possible by or resulting from this contract on the grounds of race, color,

religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status. Any

violation of this provision shall be grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension in

whole or in part by County.

B) Public Contractins Statutes ORS 2798.220 through 2798.235 and279C.500 through

279C.870, as applicable, are incorporated herein by reference. The Contractor agrees to:

1. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying, to Contractor, labor or

material for the performance of the work provided for in this contract;

2. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund incured in the

performance of the contract:

3. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the County on account of
any labor or material fumished pursuant to this contract; and

4. Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS

316.t67.

16. INDEMNIFICATION

Each pafry agrees to hold harmless, defend, and indemniff each other, including its officers,

agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, actions and suits (including all attomey fees

and costs) arising from the indemnitor's performance of this Agreement where the loss or claim

is attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of that party. If the indemniffing party'is a unit

of local government, such indemnihcätion shall be subject to the limitations of liability for public

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 5l24l20ll- page I

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 8 of 10

31



bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, and the Oregon

Constitution.

17. DEBT LIMITATION

This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon Counties set forth in Article

XI, Section 10 of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon appropriation of funds

therefor.

I8. INDEPENDENTCONTRACTOR

Each party is an independent contractor with respect to each other party and has no control over

the work performed by the other. No party is an agent or employer of another party. No party or

its employees is entitled to participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits

provided by any other party.

19. NOTICE

Each party shall give the other immediate written notice of any action or suit filed or any claim

made against that party that may result in litigation in any way related to this Agreement.

20. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original, all

of which shall constitute but,one and the same instrument.

21. CAPTIONS

Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be

construed or interpreted so as to enlarge or diminish the rights or obligations of the parties hereto.

22. SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for any

reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be

deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the

validþ of the remaining portions of this Agreement unless the result of the holding is a failure of
consideration of any party.

23. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may only be amended in writing signed by all of the parties.

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 512412017- page 9

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 9 of 10

32



FOR TTIE NETWORK USER: FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Resolution 2011-047, Exhibit B 
June 7, 2011 
Page 10 of 10

33



Resolution 2011-048, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda  
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Kristen Switzer, Community Services Director  
 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2011-048, authorizing the City Manager to sign an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Washington County Community Development 
Block Grant Program for program years 2012-2014 
 
ISSUE:  Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign Exhibit A, an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Washington County Community Development 
Block Grant Program for program year 2012-2014? 
 
BACKGROUND: The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program was 
enacted into law by President Gerald Ford, as the centerpiece of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974. Since 1979 the City of Sherwood, with CDBG 
funds in the amount of $2,058,266, has provided housing rehabilitation; 
neighborhood revitalization; addition or expansion of community facilities and 
shelters; and physical redevelopment. The CDBG program has as its primary 
objective the development of viable urban communities, by providing decent housing 
and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally 
for persons of low and moderate income. 
 
In 1999 the City entered into a three-year Intergovernmental Agreement with 
Washington County to continue participating in the CDBG program. The agreement 
contained an automatic renewal clause, renewing the document unless the City 
chose to opt out of the consortium. 
 
HUD notified Washington County on May 4, 2011 of changes to the agreement. The 
changes are minor and mainly pertain to the Emergency Shelter Grant program, but 
must be reflected and a new agreement must be signed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2011-048, A Resolution Authorizing the 
City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement for the Washington County 
Community Development Block Grant Program for program years 2012-2014. 
 

34



 DRAFT
  

Resolution 2011-048 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, Exhibit A (6 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-048 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT FOR THE WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
PROGRAM FOR PROGRAM YEARS 2012-2014 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program was enacted into law by President 
Gerald Ford, as the centerpiece of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG program has as its primary objective the development of viable urban communities, 
by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities, 
principally for persons of low and moderate income; and  
 
WHEREAS, since 1979 the City of Sherwood, with CDBG funds in the amount of $2,058,266, has provided 
housing rehabilitation; neighborhood revitalization; addition or expansion of community facilities and 
shelters; and physical redevelopment; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 1999 the City entered into a three-year intergovernmental agreement with Washington 
County to continue participating in the CDBG program; 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement signed in 1999 contained an automatic renewal clause, renewing the document 
unless the City chose to opt out of the consortium; and  
 
WHEREAS, HUD guidance received on May 4, 2011, reflects changes to the intergovernmental agreement, 
that however minor, must be reflected and a new agreement must be executed; and 
 
WHEREAS, changes to the intergovernmental agreement for the Washington County Community 
Development Block Grant program are outlined in Exhibit A.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to sign Exhibit A, an Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Washington County Community Development Block Grant program for program years 2012-2014.  
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
         ___________________________ 
         Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

35



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 1 of 6 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

PROGRAM YEARS 2012 - 2014 
 
 
 This Agreement is entered into between Washington County (“COUNTY”), a 
political subdivision of the State of Oregon, and the City of ____________________ 
(“CITY”), a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon located within Washington 
County, for the cooperation of units of local government under the authority of ORS 
190.010. 
 
I. RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974 (“THE ACT”), the Housing and Urban/Rural 
Recovery Act of 1983, the Housing and Community Development Act of 1987, the 
National Affordable Housing Act of 1990; and 
 
WHEREAS, Congress has declared that the nation’s cities, towns and small urban 
communities face critical social, economic and environmental problems; and 
 
WHEREAS, Congress has further found and declared that the future welfare of the 
Nation and the well being of its citizens depend on the establishment and 
maintenance of viable urban communities as social, economic and political entities; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the primary objective of the Act(s) is the development of viable urban 
communities, by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and 
expanding economic opportunities principally for persons of low and moderate 
income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties to the agreement are dedicated to the elimination of slums, 
blight and the prevention of blighting influences and the deterioration of property; the 
improvement of neighborhood and community facilities of importance to the welfare 
of the community, principally for persons of low and moderate income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the elimination of conditions which are 
detrimental to health, safety and public welfare, through code enforcement, 
demolition, interim rehabilitation assistance and related activities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the conservation and expansion of existing 
public housing stock in order to provide a decent home and a suitable living 
environment for all persons but principally those of low and moderate income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the expansion and improvement of quantity 
and quality of community services, principally for persons of low and moderate 

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 6

36



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 2 of 6 

income, which are essential for sound community development and for the 
development if viable urban communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to a more rational utilization of land and other 
natural resources and the better arrangement of residential, commercial, industrial, 
recreational, and other needed activity centers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the reduction of the isolation of income 
groups within communities and geographical areas and the promotion of an increase 
in the diversity and vitality of neighborhoods through the spatial deconcentration of 
housing opportunities for persons of lower income and the revitalization of 
deterioration or deteriorated neighborhoods to attract person of higher income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the restoration and preservation of properties 
of special value for historic, architectural or aesthetic reasons; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the alleviation of physical and economic 
distress through the stimulation of private investment and community revitalization in 
areas with  population outmigration or a stagnating or declining tax base; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are dedicated to the conservation of the Nation’s scarce 
energy resources, improvement of energy efficiency and the provision of alternative 
and renewable energy resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to join together to meet the criteria for an urban county 
in order to qualify to receive funds to meet each of these national objectives 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits given and 
received within this agreement, the parties agree to each and every term contained 
below: 
 

II. MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 
1. The City and the County agree to cooperate to undertake, or assist in undertaking, 

community renewal and lower income housing assistance activities., specifically 
urban renewal and public assisted housing. 

2. The parties agree that this agreement covers both the CDBG Entitlement program,  
and the HOME Investment Partnerships program (HOME), and the Emergency 
Shelter Grant Program (ESG). 

3. The parties agree to take all actions necessary to assure compliance with the urban 
county’s certification required by Section 104 (b) of Title I of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, including Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, section 109 of Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, and other applicable laws. 

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 6

37



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 3 of 6 

4. Both parties agree that the County has the final responsibility for selecting 
CDBG, and HOME, and ESG activities and annually filing required documents 
with HUD. 

 
III. CITY COVENANTS 
 

1. The City expressly agrees that as the cooperating unit of general local government 
it has adopted and is enforcing the following requirements of law: 

1.1 A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies 
within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil 
rights demonstrations; and 

1.2 A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically 
barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of 
such non-violent civil rights demonstrations within jurisdictions. 

2. The City agrees that it is subject to the same requirements applicable to 
subrecipients set forth in 24 CFR 570.501 (b). 

3. The City agrees in order to participate as a subrecipient under the terms of this 
agreement it shall enter into a contract as required by 24 CFR 570.503. 

4. The City agrees that the County as the recipient is responsible for ensuring that 
CDBG,  and HOME, and ESG funds are used in accordance with all program 
requirements. The County as recipient is responsible for determining the 
adequacy of performance under subrecipient agreements. 

5. The City authorizes the inclusion of its population for purposes of the Act, and 
joins together with other units of general local government to qualify the County 
as an urban county for Housing and Community Development Act block grant 
funds. 

6. The City agrees it may not apply for grants from appropriations under the Small 
Cities or State CDBG programs from appropriations for fiscal years during the 
period in which it is participatesing in the urban county’s CDBG program. 

7. The City agrees that it may not receive either HOME or ESG formula allocations, 
except through the County.  Regardless of whether the County receives a HOME 
formula allocation, City agrees that it may not form a HOME consortium with 
other local governments."The City agrees it may not participate in a HOME 
Consortium except through the County, regardless of whether the County receives 
a HOME formula allocation. 

 
IV. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
1. This Agreement shall remain in effect for three Fiscal Years commencing July 1, 

2012, and ending June 30, 2015, which shall constitute the urban county 
qualification period. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New
Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New
Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New
Roman, 12 pt

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 6

38



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 4 of 6 

2. This agreement shall remain in effect until the CDBG,  and HOME, and ESG 
funds and program income received (with respect to activities carried out during 
the three-year qualification period, and any successive qualification periods)  
within the term of this agreement are expended and the funded activities 
completed.  

3. The Agreement shall be automatically renewed for participation by the parties for 
successive three-year qualification periods unless either party provides written 
notice to the other that it elects not to participate in the new qualification period.  
The parties agree to send any such notice to the HUD Field Office at 400 SW 
Sixth Avenue, 520 SW Sixth Avenue, Suite 700, Portland, OR 97204, upon such 
election. 

3.1 The urban county shall send a written notice to the City advising of the City’s 
right to elect not to participate in the next automatic urban county 
qualification period.  The County shall send the notice to the City by the date 
specified in HUD’s Urban County Qualification Notice for the next 
qualification period.  County shall send a copy of the notice to HUD. 

3.2 The failure by either party to adopt an amendment to this agreement 
incorporating all changes necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation 
agreement set forth in the Urban County Qualification Notice applicable for 
any subsequent three-year urban county qualification period, and to submit the 
amendment to HUD as provided in the Urban County Qualification Notice 
will void the automatic renewal of subsequent qualification periods set forth 
in Section IV.3 above. 

 
V. TERMINATION 
 

1. This Agreement may be terminated by the County in the event funding is no 
longer available; otherwise, neither party may terminate or withdraw from the 
Agreement while the Agreement remains in effect 

 
VI. ENFORCEMENT 
 

1. The County is responsible for ensuring that CDBG,  and HOME, and ESG funds 
are used in accordance with all program requirements.  The County may use any 
available legal methods to ensure compliance by the City. 

2. The County is also responsible for determining the adequacy of performance 
under all applicable subrecipient agreements and procurement contracts and for 
taking appropriate action when performance problems arise, such as action 
described in 24 CFR 570.910.  The County may use any available legal methods 
to ensure compliance by the City. 

3. The County shall not distribute any CDBG,  or HOME, or ESG funds for 
activities in or in support of the City if the City does not affirmatively further fair 
housing within its own jurisdiction or acts in a manner that impedes the County’s 
actions to comply with its fair housing certification. 

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 4 of 6

39



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 5 of 6 

 

VII.  POLICY BOARD 
 
For the purpose of developing an annual Community Development Plan and Programs as 
required by Title I of the Act, a Policy Board is hereby continued which shall guide the 
plan and program development, make recommendations to the County upon the criteria 
to be utilized in selecting eligible Housing and Community Development Act activities 
within Washington County, and recommend to the County the program priorities. 

1. The Policy Board shall be composed of one representative and a designated 
alternate from the County and each participating unit of general local government.  
The County and City shall have one vote on the Board.  Jurisdictions shall appoint 
an elected official as primary and an employee or other public official as an 
alternate.  

2. The Policy Board shall adopt bylaws, study, review, hold public hearings, 
supervise the public review and information process, and recommend to 
Washington County on all matters related to the Housing and Community 
Development Act as amended.  Activities shall include making recommendations 
concerning the Housing and Community Development Plan (Consolidated Plan), 
and annual action plan(s), a five-year non-housing Community Development 
Plan, performance reports, citizen participation plans, and developing or directing 
studies necessary to gather data or information on which to base its 
recommendations. 

3. After public hearings, the Policy Board shall make final recommendation on the 
Housing and Community Development Plan (Consolidated Plan) which may be 
accepted by Washington County at public meeting and submitted to the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development as the Washington County 
application; provided that , should all or part of the recommended plan not be 
considered acceptable to the County, the Board of County Commissioners shall 
hold at least one (1) public hearing on the plan and program prior to rejection or 
amendment of the recommended plan.  The County shall be responsible for filing 
required documents with HUD. 

4. Projects may be implemented and funds expended in accordance with subgrant 
agreements between the County and other jurisdictions signatory to this 
Agreement. 

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 5 of 6

40



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Page 6 of 6 

VIII.  CERTIFICATION 
 
The parties by the signatures below certify that the governing body of each party has 
authorized entry into this Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS, the undersigned parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of 
________, _______. 
 
 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY CITY OF _______________________ 
 
 
 
BY________________________ By ____________________________ 
Chair, Board of Washington County 
Commissioners _______________________________ 
 Title 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Date 
 
 
____________________________ 
Recording Secretary 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the terms and provisions of this Intergovernmental Agreement are fully 
authorized under the state and local law and that the Agreement provides full legal 
authority for the County to undertake or assist in undertaking essential community 
renewal development and lower income housing assistance activities, specifically urban 
renewal and publicly assisted housing.. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Paul L. Hathaway III 
Senior Assistant County Counsel 

Resolution 2011-048, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 6 of 6

41



 
Resolution 2011-049, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2011-049, A Resolution Certifying the Provision of Certain 

Municipal Services in order to qualify the City to receive State Revenues 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
This is a resolution that certifies to the State that Sherwood provides sufficient services 
to be eligible to receive state revenues. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Council adoption of Resolution 2011-049 certifying the provision of certain Municipal 
Services in order to qualify the City to receive State Revenues.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
The state of Oregon distributes a portion of Cigarette and Liquor taxes and 
Highway Apportionment Fees to eligible municipalities. The allocation is 
based on population. In Sherwood’s case this amounts to $231,600 in FY12 
General Fund revenue and $417,600 in FY12 Street Fund revenue.  
 
To be eligible to receive these funds, a city must provide at least four of 
seven services listed in ORS 221.760. Sherwood provides six of the seven 
(listed in the resolution) and so is eligible for these revenues.  
 
The attached resolution certifies to the State that Sherwood is eligible. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution  

42



DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-049 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-049 
 
A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
SERVICES IN ORDER TO QUALIFY THE CITY TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 

 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.760, provides for Oregon municipalities to 
receive state revenues from cigarette and liquor taxes and highway apportionment fees 
if they certify that they meet eligibility requirements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the desirability of assisting the state officer 
responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance 
with ORS 221.760. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: It is hereby certified that the City of Sherwood provides the following 
municipal services: 

  
 Police Protection 
 Street Construction, Maintenance, and Lighting 

  Sanitary Sewer 
  Storm Sewers 
  Planning, Zoning, and Subdivision Control 
  Water Utility 
 
Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
    
        _______________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

43



Resolution 2011-050, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 
 

    Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011  
Agenda Item: New Business 

 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Sandrine Ganry, P.E., Engineering Associate II  
 
 
SUBJECT:  RESOLUTION 2011-050 a Resolution of the City of Sherwood awarding a contract 
to construct the Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Extension – Phase 1.        
 
ISSUE:  Should the City adopt Resolution 2011-050 awarding a construction contract to the 
lowest responsive bidder to complete this project? 
 
BACKGROUND:    
Note:  This is a walk-on legislation; some information is missing and will not be available until 
the night of the Council meeting on June 7th.  Indeed, the City will receive the Bids on June 6th.  
At that time, City staff will publicly open the Bids, review them, and then select the lowest 
responsive Bidder.  The Bidder Name and Bid amount will be provided the evening of the June 
7, 2011 Council meeting. 
 
This project consists of installing a 15-inch sanitary sewer line along Cedar Creek, from Sunset 
Boulevard to the southern City limits; pipe length is approx. 1,620 feet.  The proposed line 
crosses the creek at two locations; staff selected to bore the pipe at these two locations to 
minimize impact to the creek and surrounding wetland. 
 
All required permits have been obtained; two easements have been negotiated and granted to 
the City. The purpose of this new trunk line is to collect flow from the future development of Area 
54/55 (or Brookman Area).   
 
On June 6, 2011, the City received and publicly opened   bids for the project (see 
attached).  City staff reviewed all   bids and found that the lowest responsive bidder 
was <Bidder Name>. City staff recommends the contract be awarded to <Bidder Name>, in the 
amount of $xxx.  City staff also recommends a 15% construction contingency for a total amount 
of $  , to cover unforeseen construction issues. 
 
Funding for the project will come from: 

• 70% City – Sewer SDC 
• 30% Clean Water Services- through an IGA Agreement. 

 
Staff requests the approval of a Resolution (attached to this staff report) delegating the authority 
to the City Manager to sign appropriate construction contracts to proceed with the construction 
of the Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Extension – Phase 1 project. 
 
FINDINGS:  By passing this resolution the City can award necessary contracts to complete the 
Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Extension – Phase 1 project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2011-050, A RESOLUTION 
AWARDING A CONTRACT TO CONSTRUCT THE BROOKMAN AREA SANITARY SEWER 
EXTENSION – PHASE 1 PROJECT. 
 
 

44



DRAFT 

Resolution 2011-050   
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-050 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO  
CONSTRUCT THE BROOKMAN AREA SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION – PHASE 1 
PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City solicited Bids based upon competitive bidding processes meeting the 
requirements of the City and State Contracting Rules; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received    Bids that were publicly opened on June 6, 2011; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City reviewed the Bids and selected the lowest Responsive Bid submitted by 
<Bidder Name> in the amount of $   ; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends establishing a contingency amount of 15% to cover unforeseen 
construction issues and differing site conditions. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1:  The contract for construction of the Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Extension – 
Phase 1 is awarded to <Bidder Name>. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a 
contract with <Bidder Name> for a maximum of $  to complete this project. 
 
Section 2:  Subject to the limitations of the City and State Contracting Rules and other 
applicable laws, the City Manager is authorized to enter into change orders with <Bidder Name>  
for an amount not to exceed the contingency amount equal to $     (15% of bid).  
 
Section 3:  This Resolution shall be in effect upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 
  

45



 
Resolution 2011-051, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 

 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution 2011-051, A Resolution Declaring the City’s Election to 

Receive State Revenues 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
This is a resolution that informs the State that Sherwood is eligible for and elects to 
receive state revenues.   
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Council adoption of Resolution 2011-051, A Resolution declaring the City’s election to 
receive State Revenues. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
The state of Oregon shares certain revenue with municipalities that choose 
to accept it.  The only qualification to receive these funds is to hold public 
hearings on the use of the money.  The City held one hearing during the 
Budget Committee meetings and will hold the other required hearing at this 
Council meeting.  
 
The FY12 General Fund budget includes a revenue line item of $132,000 for 
this revenue source.  This estimate is based on information from the League 
of Oregon Cities. The League tracks this issue closely for cities. 
 
The attached resolution will inform the state that the City has qualified for 
and elects to receive this funding.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution  

46



DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-051 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-051 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE 
REVENUES 

 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.770, provides for Oregon municipalities 

to receive state revenues should they elect to via resolution or ordinance, and 
 
WHEREAS, said statute also requires the electing municipality to hold two public 

hearings on the municipality’s use of the funds, and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2011 a public hearing on the use of state revenues was 

held by the City of Sherwood Budget Committee and on June 7, 2011, a public hearing 
on the use of state revenues was held by the City Council. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1: To elect to receive state revenues for the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 
pursuant to ORS 221.770. 
 
 Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
    
       ___________________________ 
       Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

47



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 6 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Budget Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Resolution 2011-052 New Fee Schedule Effective July 1, 2011 
 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

Section 1: General    
E)Public Records 
Fees 10. Notary fee $5 $10 
Section 3: Library    
A)General Fees 5. Non-resident card $95 $100 
Section 5: Court    
A) Court Fees 16. Fireworks Diversion Fee $100 

Section 6: Parks & 
Recreation/Field 
House    

A)Player Fees Sherwood Youth - Resident $12 $15 

 
Sherwood Youth – Non-
Resident $17 $20 

 Adult Leagues – Resident $12 $15  

 
Adult Leagues – Non-
Resident $17 $20  

 B) Athletic Field User 
Charges 

Gym Fees – Opening/Closing 
of Facility 

$30/ hour (1 hour 
minimum) 

 G) Special Event 
Permit Non-Profit Fee – Resident $75 

 
Non-Profit Fee – Non-
Resident $125 

 For-Profit Fee – Resident $150 

 
For-Profit Fee – Non-
Resident $200 

Section 7: Utility 
Charges for Service    

E) Account Activation 
& De-Activation 

Deposit for application of 
service (prior collection 
customers) $100 

Door Hangers $10 

O) Sanitary Rates 
CWS regional sewer utility 
user base rate per EDU  $18.76 $19.65 Increase in CWS rates 

 
CWS regional sewer utility 
usage rate per CCF $1.26 $1.31 Increase in CWS rates 

48



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 6 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

 
Sherwood sewer utility user 
base rate per EDU  $4.08 $4.51 

Increase in CWS rates 
and COS rates 

 
Sherwood sewer utility usage 
rate per CCF $0.24 $0.25 Increase in CWS rates 

P) Storm Rates 
CWS regional storm water 
utility user rate per ESU  $1.19 $1.31 Increase in CWS rates 
Sherwood storm water utility 
user rate per ESU $11.08 $11.46 Increase in CWS rates 

Q) Street Fees 
Street Maintenance Multi-family $2 per account $2 per EDU Monthly 

Non-Residential/Commercial $ $2 per ESU Monthly 

Street Light Fee Residential $3 per account
$2.32 per 

account Monthly 
 Multi-family $3 per account $2.32 per EDU Monthly 
 Non-Residential/Commercial $ $0.67 per ESU Monthly 
Section 8: 
System 
Development 
Charges Name of Fee Current Rate 

New/Remove/Revise 
Language/ 

A) Water SDC Meter Size ¾ “ $6,319.04 $6,565.48  
 Meter Size 1 “ $15,800.01 $16,416.21  
 Meter Size 1 ½ “ $31,600.03 $32,832.43  
 Meter Size 2 “ $50,558.31 $52,530.08  
 Meter Size 3 “ $110,596.84 $114,910.12  
 Meter Size 4 “ $189,593,66 $196,987.81  
 Meter Size 6 “ $394,987.34 $410,391.85  
 Meter Size 8 “ $568,781.00 $590,963.46  

 
Fire Flow Sprinkler Buildings 
Only $3,007.00 $3,124.27  

B) Sewer SDC 

CWS regional connection 
charge (96% CWS, 4% City 
of Sherwood) $3,600 $4,100 Increase in CWS rates 

Reimbursement 
Charge Single Family Residence $0.089 $0.092  

 
Two Family Residence 
(Duplex) $0.089 $0.092  

 Manufactured home/single lot $0.089 $0.092  
 Manufactured home parks $0.089 $0.092  
 Multi-family residential $0.089 $0.092  
 Commercial $0.089 $0.092  
 Industrial $0.089 $0.092  
 Institutional Uses $0.089 $0.092  
Improvement Charge Single Family Residence $0.25 $0.26  
 Two Family Residence 

(Duplex) 
$0.25 $0.26  

 Manufactured home/single lot $0.25 $0.26  
 Manufactured home parks $0.25 $0.26  
 Multi-family residential $0.25 $0.26  
 Commercial $0.25 $0.26  
 Industrial $0.25 $0.26  
 Institutional Uses $0.25 $0.26  

49



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 6 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

CWS Regional Connection Charge $4,100 $4,500  
C) Storm SDC City Storm Drainage $0.043 $0.045 per sq foot  

D) Parks SDC 
Single Family Dwelling – 
Administration Fee $672.88 $699.12  

 
Multi-Family Dwelling – 
Administration Fee $505.44 $525.15  

 
Manufactured Home – 
Administration Fee $720.72 $748.83  

 
Non-Residential – 
Administration Fee $6.24 $6.48  

 
Single Family Dwelling – 
Improvement Fee $6,532.24 $6,787.00  

 
Multi-Family Dwelling – 
Improvement Fee $4,901.52 $5,092.68  

 
Manufactured Home – 
Improvement Fee $6,996.08 $7,268.93  

 
Non-Residential – 
Improvement Fee $68.64 $71.32  

E) COS TIF    
Residential 
Transportation SDC Single family – detached $2,829.84 $2,940.20   
 Apartment $2,204.80 $2,290.79   

 
Residential 
condominium/townhouse $1,795.04 $1,865.05   

 
Manufactured house  (In 
park) $1,571.44 $1,632.73   

 Assisted living $923.52 $959.54   
 Continuing care retirement $745.68 $774.76   
 Recreation home $968.24 $1,006.00   
Recreational 
Transportation SDC City park $732.16 $760.71   
 County park $1,243.84 $1,292.35   
 Campground/RV park $2,932.80 $3,047.18   
 Marina $2,042.56 $2,122.22   
 Golf course $25,565.28 $26,562.33   
 Golf driving range $6,274.32 $6,519.02   

 
Multipurpose 
recreation/arcade $18,306.08 $19,020.02   

 Bowling alley $23,842.00 $24,771.84   
 Movie theater w/o matinee $122.12 $126.88   
 Movie Theater with Matinee $111,452.64 $115,799.29   

 
Multiplex movie theater (10+ 
screens) $72,010.64 $74,819.05   

 Casino/video poker/lottery $70,751.20 $73,510.50   
 Amusement/theme park $38,025.52 $39,508.52   
 Soccer complex $35,802.00 $37,198.28   
 Racquet/tennis club $19,424.08 $20,181.62   
 Health fitness club $16,528.72 $17,173.34   
 Recreation/community center $16,366.48 $17,004.77   
Institutional/Medical 
Transportation SDC Military base $848.64 $881.74   
 Elementary school (Public) $178.88 $185.86   
    

50



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 4 of 6 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

 
Middle/Junior high School 
(Public) $214.24 $222.60   

 High School (Public) $559.52 $581.34   
 Private School (K – 12) $906.88 $942.25   
 Junior/Community College $334.88 $347.94   
 University/College $728.00 $756.39   
 Church $2,660.32 $2,764.07   
 Day care center/preschool $0.00 $0.00   
 Library $7,798.96 $8,103.12   
 Hospital $6,538.48 $6,793.48   
 Nursing home $1,118.00 $1,161.60   
 Clinic $16,584.88 $17,231.69   
Commercial/Services 
SDC Hotel/Motel $5,493.28 $5,707.52  
 Building materials/lumber $8,924.24 $9,272.29  

 
Free standing discount 
Superstore w/groceries $12,008.88 $12,477.23  

 Specialty retail center $10,960.56 $11,388.02  

 
Free standing discount center 
w/o groceries $17,096.56 $17,763.33  

 Hardware/paint stores $14,197.04 $14,750.72  
 Nursery/garden center $8,741.20 $9,082.11  
 Shopping center $7,341.36 $7,627.67  
 Factory outlet $5,611.84 $5,830.70  
 New car sales $7,242.56 $7,525.02  
 Automobile parts sales $13,720.72 $14,255.83  
 Tire superstore $4,290 $4,457.31  
 Supermarket $23,985.52 $24,920.96  
 Convenience market (24hr) $60,010.08 $62,350.47  

 
Convenience market w/fuel 
Pump $36,337.60 $37,754.77  

 Wholesale market $142.48 $148.04  
 Discount club $13,449.28 $13,973.80  

 
Home improvement 
superstore $4,672.72 $4,854.96  

 Electronics superstore $9,942.40 $10,330.15  
 Office supply superstore $7,846.80 $8,152.83  

 
Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive 
thru window $16,938.48 $17,599.08  

 
Pharmacy/drugstore with 
drive thru window $18,142.80 $18,850.37  

 Furniture store $828.88 $861.21  
 Video rental store $66,302.08 $68,887.86  
 Bank/savings – walk in $53,445.60 $55,529.98  
 Bank/savings – drive in $53,794 $55,891.97  

 
Quality restaurant (not a 
chain) $21,679.84 $22,525.35  

 
High turnover-sit down 
restaurant (chain/standalone) $13,708.24 $14,242.86  

 
Fast food restaurant (no 
drive- thru) $91,068.64 $94,620.32  

51



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 5 of 6 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

 
Fast food restaurant (with 
drive-thru) $61,282 $63,672.00  

 Drinking place/bar $9,433.84 $9,801.76  

 
Quick lubrication vehicle 
Shop $8,195.20 $8,514.81  

 Automobile care center $8,221.20 $8,541.83  

 
Gasoline/service station (no 
market/car wash $16,469.44 $17,111.75   

 
Gasoline/service station (with 
convenience market) $10,481.12 $10,889.88   

 
Gasoline/service station (with 
market and car wash) $9,478.56 $9,848.22   

Office SDC General office building $4,227.60 $4,392.48   

 
Corporate headquarters 
building $3,069.04 $3,188.73   

 Single tenant office building $5,130.32 $5,330.40   
 Medical/dental office building $13,367.12 $13,888.44   
 Government office building $24,693.76 $25,656.82   

 
State Motor Vehicles 
Department $91,761.28 $95,339.97   

 US Post Office $32,822.40 $34,102.47   
 Office park $4,463.68 $4,637.76   

 
Research and development 
center $3,341.52 $3,471.84   

 Business park $4,644.64 $4,825.78   
Port/Industrial Truck terminals $3,418.48 $3,551.80   

 
Park and ride lot with bus 
service $1,035.84 $1,076.24   

 
Light rail transit station 
w/parking $588.64 $611.60   

 General light industrial $2,421.12 $2,515.54   
 General heavy industrial $521.04 $541.36   
 Industrial park $2,414.88 $2,509.06   
 Manufacturing $1,319.76 $1,371.23   
 Warehouse $1,740.96 $1,808.86   
 Mini-warehouse $843.44 $876.33   
 Utilities $1,898 $1,972.02   
Section 9: 
Engineering     
B) No Public 
Improvement; 
Subdivision Plan 
Review & Inspection Plan Review Fee Time & Materials 

Inspection Fee Time & Materials  
Section 10: Planning    
F) Other Fees Street Tree Removal Permit $20  

 
Home Occupation Review 
(Class A) $50  

G) Planned Unit 
Development  

Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) – Final  

*See Site Plan Review 
Fee 

H) Refunds 

75% refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to 30 day 
completeness  Delete the Refund 

52



Resolution 2011-052, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 6 of 6 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate Proposed Rate  
New/Remove/Revise/
Add Language/ 

I) Signage 
Home Occupation Review 
(Type II) $50  Delete Fee 

M) Variance   
Change wording from 
Type III to Class A 

   

Change wording from 
Administrative to Class 
B 

 Adjustment $50  
Section 11: Building    

B) Demolition Permits Residential $37.80 an hour $38.56 an hour 
Revise total hours from 
$190.60 to $192.12 

Commercial $37.80 an hour $38.56 an hour 
Revise total hours from 
$280.60 to $282.12 

C) Prescriptive Solar 
Photovoltaic (PV) 
System Installation 

Fees for installation of Solar 
Photovoltaic (PV) system 
installation that comply with 
the prescriptive path 
described in section 305.4 of 
the Oregon Solar Installation 
Specialty Code shall be a flat 
rate of $122.79 (Based on ¼ 
hour of admin time @ $38.56, 
one hour of inspection time 
@ $90.00 per hour, $10.00 
supply costs and 12% state 
surcharge of $13.15.) $122.79  

 

For Plans that do not meet 
the prescriptive path, typical 
structural fee calculations and 
processes will apply. 

Typical Structural 
Fees will apply  

 

53



 
 

Resolution 20
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 wi

 
A RESOLU
AND COM
CITY SERV
 
 WHE
charges to b
 
 WHE
reasonably 
and  
 
 WHE
Council and
recovering g
and 
 
 WHE
and charges
recovered; a
 
 WHE
comment pr
 
NOW,THER
 
 Sect
Exhibit A, is
schedules a
 
 Sect
 
Duly passe
 
 
  
  
Attest:  
 
  
Sylvia Murp
 

11-052 

ith Exhibit A (3

UTION ADOP
MUNITY D

VICES AND 

EREAS, the
be establish

EREAS, the
borne by th

EREAS the 
d City to use
general cos

EREAS, the
s for all serv
and  

EREAS, the
rior to the ad

REFORE, TH

tion 1.  Ado
s hereby app
and miscella

tion 2.  Effe

ed by the Ci

  
  
  

  
phy, CMC, C

7pgs) 

PTING A SC
EVELOPME
ESTABLISH

e Sherwood
ed by Resol

e City perfo
e recipient, 

City Manage
e when asse
ts of perform

e City Counc
vices be set 

e City has 
doption of th

HE CITY OF

option: The 
proved and 

aneous fee s

ective Date:

ity Council 

 
 
 

 
City Recorde

RESOLU

CHEDULE O
ENT CODE
HING AN EF

d Municipal 
ution of the 

orms and o
as opposed

er has deve
essing gene
ming actions

il believes it 
by the City C

met the re
is fee resolu

F SHERWOO

City of She
adopted, an
chedules. 

  This Resol

this 7thday

 
 
 

 
r   

 
TION 2011-

OF FEES AS
, ESTABLIS
FFECTIVE D

Code auth
City Counci

ffers certain
d to paying f

loped a set o
eral fees for 
s requiring o

is most app
Council, and

equirement 
ution as requ

OD RESOLV

rwood Rates
nd supersede

lution shall b

of June 201

 

-052 

S AUTHOR
SHING FEE
DATE 

horizes cert
l; and  

n services, 
for said serv

of administra
r permits, ap
oversight an

propriate and
d at a level w

for providin
uired by ORS

VES AS FO

s and Fees
es all prior d

become effe

11. 

_________
Keith S. Ma
 

 
 

IZED BY TH
ES FOR M

tain adminis

the cost of
vices from g

ative fees an
pplications, a
d administra

d fiscally res
whereby rea

ng an oppo
S 294.160. 

LLOWS: 

Schedule, a
developmen

ctive July 1,

___________
ays, Mayor 

DRAF

HE CITY ZO
MISCELLANE

strative fees

f which are
eneral City 

nd charges f
and services
ation by City

sponsible tha
asonable cos

ortunity for 

attached her
nt fee and ch

 2011. 

________ 

FT
 

ONING 
EOUS 

s and 

e most 
funds; 

for the 
s, and 
y staff; 

at fees 
sts are 

public 

reto as 
harges 

54



 

 

 
 
 

 The C
Mas

www.ci.she

ity of S
ster Fee

Resoluti
 

 Adopt
 Effecti

Revis
Resoluti

Also a
erwood.or.us/gov

 
 
 
 
 

Sherwo
es and 

 
 
 

Exhibit A 
ion: 2011-05

ted:  
ive: 07/01/20

 
sed: 07/01/20
ion: 2010-02

 

available online a
vernment/departm

od, Ore
Charge

52 
 

011 
 

010 
26 

at  
tments/finance/fe

egon 
es 

fees.pdf  

 

 

55



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 2 of 37 

Table of Contents 

SECTION 1:  GENERAL ......................................................................................................................... 5 

A)  STAFF RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
B)  BUSINESS LICENSE: .............................................................................................................................. 5 
C)  LIQUOR LICENSE: ................................................................................................................................. 5 
D)  FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ............................................................... 6 
E)  PUBLIC RECORD FEES: .......................................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 2:  LEGAL COUNSEL AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES.................................................................... 8 

SECTION 3:  LIBRARY .......................................................................................................................... 9 

A)  GENERAL FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 4:  POLICE .......................................................................................................................... 10 

(A)  ALARM PERMIT FEES: ......................................................................................................................... 10 
(B)  ALARM SYSTEM CODE VIOLATION FEES: ................................................................................................ 10 
(C)  POLICE REPORTS: .............................................................................................................................. 10 
(D)  VEHICLE IMPOUND: ........................................................................................................................... 10 
(E)  PARKING VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................................. 11 
(F)  MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ............................................................................................................. 11 

SECTION 5:  MUNICIPAL COURT........................................................................................................ 12 

A)  COURT FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 12 
B)  DOG FEES: ....................................................................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 6:  PARKS & RECREATION ................................................................................................... 13 

A)  PLAYER FEES:.................................................................................................................................... 13 
B)  ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: .......................................................................................................... 13 
C)  ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: .............................................................................................................. 14 
D)  PICNIC SHELTER: ............................................................................................................................... 14 
E)  AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: .................................................................................................................... 14 
F)  FIELD HOUSE FEES: ............................................................................................................................ 14 
G)  SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ...................................................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 7:  UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ..................................................................................... 15 

A)  RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI‐FAMILY RATES: ............................................................................................... 15 
B)  COMMERCIAL RATES: ......................................................................................................................... 16 
C)  FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ................................................................................................................. 16 
D)  HYDRANT RENTALS: ........................................................................................................................... 16 
E)  ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE‐ACTIVATION: ......................................................................................... 17 
F)  ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: ............................................................................... 17 
G)  OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 17 
H)  TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: ..................................................................... 18 
I)  BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: ............................................................................................ 18 
J)  WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ................................................................................... 18 
K)  UN‐AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ..................................................................................................... 18 
L)  RE‐INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): ................................................................ 18 
M)  USAGE OF METER KEY ........................................................................................................................ 18 
N)  WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES .................................................................................................. 19 
O)  SANITARY RATES: .............................................................................................................................. 19 

56



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 3 of 37 

P)  STORM RATES: ................................................................................................................................. 19 
Q)  STREET FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 19 

SECTION 8:  SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES ................................................................................. 20 

A)  WATER SDC: ................................................................................................................................... 20 
B)  SEWER SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 20 
C)  STORM SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 21 
D)  PARKS SDC: ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
E)  STREET SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 21 
F)  CITY OF SHERWOOD TIF: .................................................................................................................... 22 

SECTION 9:  ENGINEERING DIVISION ................................................................................................ 25 

A)  PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ..................................................... 25 
B)  NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ................................................ 25 
C)  MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ....................................................................................................................... 25 
D)  VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT‐OF‐WAY AND EASEMENTS): ............................................................................ 26 

SECTION 10:   PLANNING DIVISION ................................................................................................. 27 

A)  ANNEXATIONS: ................................................................................................................................. 27 
B)  APPEALS: ......................................................................................................................................... 27 
C)  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: ................................................................................................................. 27 
D)  LAND DIVISIONS: ............................................................................................................................... 27 
E)  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIONS: ................................................................................................................. 27 
F)  OTHER FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 27 
G)  PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): ................................................................................................. 28 
H)  REFUNDS: ........................................................................................................................................ 28 
I)  SIGNAGE: ......................................................................................................................................... 28 
J)  SITE PLAN REVIEW: ............................................................................................................................ 29 
K)  TEMPORARY USES: ............................................................................................................................ 29 
L)  TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: .......................................................................................................... 29 
M)   VARIANCE: ....................................................................................................................................... 29 
N)  ZONE AMENDMENTS:......................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 11:   BUILDING DIVISION .................................................................................................. 30 

A.  BUILDING PERMITS ............................................................................................................................ 30 
B.  DEMOLITION PERMITS ........................................................................................................................ 31 
C.  PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION ..................................................................... 31 
D.  PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ................................................................................................ 31 
E.  PHASED PERMIT (PLAN REVIEW) .......................................................................................................... 31 
F.  DEFERRED SUBMITTALS ...................................................................................................................... 31 
G.  RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ............................................................................................. 32 
H.  ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY ................................................... 32 
I.  MECHANICAL PERMITS ‐ RESIDENTIAL ................................................................................................... 32 
J.  MECHANICAL PERMITS ‐ COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................. 33 
K.  PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ................................................................ 33 
L.  PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 
AND REPAIRS ............................................................................................................................................... 33 
M.  PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................... 34 
N.  MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................ 34 
O.  GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) ........................................................... 35 
P.  OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ........... 36 
Q.  REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ............................................. 36 
R.  CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY ............................................................................................................... 36 

57



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 4 of 37 

S.  CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE .................................................................... 36 
T.  APPEAL PROCESS ............................................................................................................................... 37 

 

58



SECTION 1: GENERAL 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 5 of 37 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 

A) Staff Rates: 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 
 
1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

• 200% of the hourly rate for the position at step 1.   

B) Business License: 
 

• Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed 
under the provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

1. Business - Inside the City of Sherwood  
$75 plus $6 per employee working 
more than 20 hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside the City of Sherwood  
$107.50 plus $6 per employee 
working more than 20 hours per 
week. 

3. Temporary license  
$112.50 plus an additional 50% of 
inside the City of Sherwood fee. For 
30 days or less annually. 

4. Late fee for renewals  $5 per month or portion of a month 
late. 

5. Violation of provision  
5% of the Business License fee for 
each calendar month delinquent not 
to exceed $100. 

C) Liquor License: 
 

• The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on 
applications for new, renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

 
1. Original application $100 
2. Change in ownership  $75 
3. Change in location  $75 
4. Change in privilege  $75 
5. Renewal of license  $35 
6. Temporary license  $100 

 
  

59



SECTION 1: GENERAL 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 6 of 37 

D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 
D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 
 

1.) Electricity 
Portland General Electric 
3.5% of defined gross revenue 
Ordinance No. 92-951 
Expires August 1, 2012 

2.) Cable and Broadband Services 
Frontier 
5% of gross revenue 
Ordinance No. 2007-008 
Expires August 21, 2015 

3.) Natural Gas 
Northwest Natural Gas 
5% of gross revenue collected 
Ordinance No. 2006-016 
Expires November 16, 2016 

 
 

4.) Cable and Broadband Services 
Comcast 
5% of gross revenue 
Resolution No. 2000-857 
Expires January 31, 2015 

5.) Garbage/Solid Waste 
Pride Disposal 
5% of gross revenue 
Ordinance No. 98-1049 
Expires November 1, 2012 

D.2) Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 
 
 Note:  Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in 
no case will be less than $0.00. 
 
1.) Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005) 
  Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 
 
2.) Utility Operators Privilege Tax(as defined in SMC 12.16.050) Not Listed Above 
 Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 
 
3) License application fee $50  

60



SECTION 1: GENERAL 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 7 of 37 

E) Public Record Fees: 
 

1.)  Copies of Finance documents     
 • Budget $40 per copy 
 • Audit Reports $25  per copy 
 
2.)  Copies of planning documents     
 • Community development plan $25 per copy 
 • Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 
 • Master plans  $25  per copy 
       
3.)  Copies of Maps     
 • 8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 
 • 8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 
 • 11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 
 • Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 
 • Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 
 • Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 
       
4.)  General Service Copies     
 • Copying $.15  per single side 
 • Copying $.25  per double side 
 • 24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 
       
5.)  Audio and video tape copies     
 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 
 • Audio $25  each 
 • Video $25   each 
 • Data disk $25  each 
       
6.)  Document Research     
 • Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     
 • Plus the cost of copying     
       
7.)  • Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 
8.)  • Lien search fee $10  per lot 
9.)  • NSF check charges $25    
10.)  • Notary fee $10 per signature 
 

 
 

61



SECTION 2: LEGAL COUNSEL AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 8 of 37 

SECTION 2: LEGAL COUNSEL AND MISCELLANEOUS FEES 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the services of the City Attorney’s Office of the City. 
 

A) Outside consultant fees Actual cost plus 10% 

B) Legal counsel fees Actual cost plus 10% 

C) Miscellaneous fees Actual cost plus 10% 

62



SECTION 3: LIBRARY 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 9 of 37 

SECTION 3: LIBRARY 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library Department activities of the City: 
 

A) General Fees: 
 

1. Damaged/lost  material   based on extent/$5 
processing fee 

2. Overdue DVD $1   per day  

3. All other materials $0.15   per day  

4. Lost cultural pass    varies  

5. Non-resident card  $100 annually 

6. Overdue cultural pass $10 daily 

7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 

8. Replacement library card $1 per card 

9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 

 

63



SECTION 4: POLICE 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 10 of 37 

SECTION 4: POLICE 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Police Department activities of the City: 

(A) Alarm Permit Fees: 
 
1. Every alarm user shall register their alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.020 

2. Initial alarm permit (Permit Waived if over 65 years of age) $100 

3. Annual renewal (Renewal waived if over 66 years of age) $25 

4 Failure to obtain an initial permit or renewal within 90 days of invoicing will result in an inactive 
alarm permit 

(B) Alarm System Code Violation Fees: 
 

• Any alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.070, that has a false alarm(s) within any calendar 
year shall be subject to the following fees or actions: 

 
1. First false alarm per calendar year No Fee per false alarm  

2. Second false alarm  $50 per false alarm  

3. Third false alarm $100 per false alarm 

4. Fourth false alarm  $200 per false alarm 
5. Fifth and subsequent false alarms  $500 
6. False Alarm – No Permit $500 Per false alarm 

(C) Police Reports: 
 

1. Copies of report $20 per report 
2. Audio tapes $25  per tape 
3. Video tapes $30  per tape 

(D) Vehicle Impound: 
 

• Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes 
police officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or 
hazardously located. 

 
1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

  

64



SECTION 4: POLICE 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 11 of 37 

(E) Parking Violation Fees: 
 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 
2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  
3. Double parking $20  
4. Blocking driveway $20 
5. Parking in bus zone $20 
6. Parking in loading zone $20 
7. Parking on wrong side of street $20  
8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20  
9. Parking over space line $20  
10. Parking over time limit $20  

(F) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 
 

1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing 
costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $20 per disc 
3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

65



SECTION 5: MUNICIPAL COURT 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 12 of 37 

SECTION 5: MUNICIPAL COURT 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City: 

A) Court Fees: 
 

1)  Failure to appear – arraignments $50 

2)  Failure to appear – trials $150 

3)  Failure to comply $20 

4)  Turned over to collection agency  
(Not to exceed $250) 

25% of the amount 
owed 

5)  Set-up fee for citation time payment plan 
(Not to exceed $250) 

25% of the amount 
owed 

6)  Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $20 

7)  License reinstatement fee $50 

8)  No Operators License 
• Obtain and provide proof of valid license $100 

9)  Driving While Suspended 
• Obtain and provide proof of valid license $150 

10)  Expired Registration/Tags (expiration less than or equal to 30 days) 
• Obtain and provide proof of current registration Vehicle Compliance 

11)  Expired Registration/Tags (expiration greater than 30 days ) 
• Obtain and provide proof of current registration $40 

12)  Failure to Carry Registration 
• Obtain and provide proof of registration Vehicle Compliance 

13)  Seatbelt Diversion Program $40 

14)  

Traffic School Diversion Programs 
• Class A 
• Class B 
• Class C 
• Class D 

 
$290 
$120 
$75 
$50 

15)  Driving Uninsured 
• Administrative Fee $100 

16)  Fireworks Diversion Program Fee $100 
 

B) Dog Fees: 
 

• Any person violating the provisions of SMC section 6.04 shall pay the following fees. 
1. Animal noise disturbance $250 
2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property $250 

66



SECTION 6: PARKS & RECREATION 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 13 of 37 

SECTION 6: PARKS & RECREATION 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 
 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 

• Sherwood youth  $15  $20 
• Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 
b. Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SLC 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak  
(8am -3pm)

 Peak  
(3pm – dark) 

• Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 
• Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

   
• Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 
• Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak  
(8am -3pm)

Peak 
 (3pm – dark) 

• Commercial/for profit   
• Resident $50/hour $89/hour 
• Non-resident $70/hour $100/hour 
• Non-profit $40/hour $65/hour 

   
• Private reservation   
• Resident $25/hour (Mon-Fri) 
• Resident $30/hour (Sat-Sun) 
• Non-resident $45/hour (Mon-Fri) 
• Non-resident $65/hour (Sat-Sun) 

  
• Tournament fee  
• Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 
• Non-resident $80/Hour 
• Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 
• Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

  
High School Turf Resident Non Resident  

• Practice time - youth $20/hour  
• Practice time - all others $50/hour  
• Games – youth $25/game $50/game 
• Games - all others $60/game  
• Light fee $25/hour  

 

67



SECTION 6: PARKS & RECREATION 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 14 of 37 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 
• Drop in gym programs $2/per person $4/per person 
• Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 
• Non-profit groups $20/hour $50/hour 
• Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 
• Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr Min)  

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 

• Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or 
$200/day 

• When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 
 

F) Field House Fees:   
Team Fees   

• Adult team $400 $50 late fee if not paid 
by deadline 

• Youth team $400 $25 late fee if not paid 
by deadline 

Player Cards   
• Adult player cards $10  
• Youth player cards $7  

Rental Fees   

• Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $35/hour  
• Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

  
Open Play Fees 

• Pre-school play fees $2/per child 
• Pre-school play fees $5 for a family of three or more 
• Adult open play fees $4/per person 

 
Birthday Parties 

• Birthday party fees $110 
 
Party Room Rental 

• Party room rental fees $25/hour 
  

Concessions and Merchandise 

• Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

G) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 

• Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

• For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

68



SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 15 of 37 

SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
Water Utility Rates 
 
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 
 
Applicable to all residential, multi-family, and commercial customers receiving water service within the 
Sherwood city limits. 
 
A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 
unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 
example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the 
duplex. 
 
Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 
purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 
occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 
 
Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-
family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants, 
dedicated irrigation service, and service stations. 

A) Residential and Multi-Family Rates: 
 

Customer 
Class/Meter 

Size 
 

Base Charge 
($/Month) 
Effective 

July 1, 2011 

 

Base Charge 
($/Month) 
Effective 

January 1, 2012 

 Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
 

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"   $18.02  $18.74  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
1"   $22.28   $23.17  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"   $39.60  $41.18  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
2"   $57.58  $59.88  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
3"   $115.86  $120.49  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
4"   $197.95  $205.87  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
6"   $410.94  $427.38  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
8"   $760.65  $791.08  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"   $1098.45  $1,142.39  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
     Consumption Rate Effective July 1, 2011 

       $0.49   $0.76 
     Consumption Rate Effective January 1, 2012 

      $0.51  $0.79 
 
  

69



SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 16 of 37 

B) Commercial Rates: 
Customer 

Class/Meter 
Size 

 

Base Charge 
($/Month) 
Effective 

July 1, 2011 

 Base Charge 
($/Month) 
Effective 

January 1, 2012 

 
Consumption 

Charge  
($/100 gallons) 

 
Consumption 

Charge  
($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"   $18.02  $19.37  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
1"   $22.28   $23.95  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"   $39.60  $42.57  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
2"   $57.58  $61.90  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
3"   $115.86  $124.55  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
4"   $197.95  $212.80  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
6"   $410.94  $441.76  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
8"   $760.65  $817.70  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"   $1098.45  $1,180.83  First 21,000  Over 21,000 
     Consumption Rate Effective July 1, 2011 
      $0.53   $0.53 
     Consumption Rate Effective January 1, 2012 
      $0.57  $0.57 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 
service for private fire protection: 
 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge Effective 
July 1, 2011

Base Charge Effective 
January 1, 2012

• 4" and under $30.66 $31.89 
• 6" $51.23 $53.28 
• 8" $72.75 $75.66 
• 10" $100.08 $104.08 
• Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 
Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

• Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

• Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

• Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

• Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

• Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

• Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

• Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

• Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

70



SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 17 of 37 

• Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

• Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

• Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 
Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

• Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

• New account fee – activation on during office hours Mon - Fri  $15 
• First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  
• New account fee – activation after office hours and weekends $60 
• Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control during office hours or 

after hours or weekends No Charge 

• Second call  $30 
• Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 
• All snowbird turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

• Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 
• After hours or weekends, an additional $50 
• Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 
• Broken promise turn off $60 

• Door hangers $10.00 per door 
hanger 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 
• Removal of meter $80 

• Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

• Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

• Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

• Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  $150 and meter 
pulled 

• Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

• Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 
• Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts & labor 

• Removal of meter during construction $150 
• Loss of meter (replacement cost) $190-$425 
• Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all 

commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and 
fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of 
the owner, to be done annually be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their 
choice. 

$100 

71



SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 18 of 37 

• Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

• Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and 
material 

H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 
• Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 
• Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 
• Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 
• Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all 

commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and 
fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the 
owner, to be done annually be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their 
choice. 

$100 

• Service on and off for non-compliance of annual testing and reporting, see 
Section E.  

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 
5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 
1.5” $1,830 $4,280 
2” $3,050 $5,500 
3” $6,100 n/a 
4” $7,930 n/a 
6”  n/a 
8”  n/a 

Definitions: 
Drop-In 
Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex 
has installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City 
specifications. 

Dig-In 
Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend 
water service to the property. 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 
• Un-authorized water hook up (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) $150 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 
• First re-inspection $50/each 
• Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 
• All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 
*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 
• Deposit refundable with key return $$25 

72



SECTION 7: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 19 of 37 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 
• First notice of violation $100 
• Second notice of violation $300 
• Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 
The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 
(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

• CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $19.65  
• CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.31 
• Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.51 
• Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.25 

• Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and 
material 

• Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and 
material 

P) Storm Rates: 
• The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and 

served by Clean Water Services (CWS) of Washington County shall 
be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 

• CWS regional storm water utility user rate per ESU  $1.31  
• Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU $11.46 

• Damage or Repair to Storm Utility actual time and 
material 

Q) Street Fees: 
The following fees shall be charged for the Street Utility fund of the City: 
 

Street Maintenance Fee  
• Single family residential $2/monthly per account 
• Multi Family $2 monthly per EDU 
• Non – residential/Commercial $2/monthly per ESU 

Street Light Fee  
• Single family residential $2.32/monthly per account 
• Multi-Family $2.32/monthly per EDU 
• Non – residential/Commercial $0.67/monthly per ESU 

Sidewalk Repairs Fee  
• Single family residential $0.52/monthly per account 
• Multi-Family $0.52/monthly per EDU 
• Non – residential/Commercial $0.16/monthly per ESU 

Safe Sidewalks (New Sidewalks) Fee  
• Single family residential $0.69/monthly per account 
• Multi-Family $0.69/monthly per EDU 

73



SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 20 of 37 

SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Systems Development Charges (SDC).  SDC’s are one-time fees 
charged to new development to help pay a portion of the costs associated with building capital facilities to meet 
needs created by growth. 

A) Water SDC: 
Meter Size  Reimbursement 

Charge  Improvement  
Charge  Administrative 

Charge Per Meter 
3/4"  $0  $6,565.48   $48.83 
1"  $0  $16,416.21   $48.83

1-1/2"  $0  $32,832.43  $48.83

2"  $0  $52,530.08  $48.83

3"  $0  $114,910.12  $48.83

4"  $0  $196,987.81  $48.83

6"  $0  $410,391.85  $48.83

8"  $0  $590,963.46  $48.83
 
Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from  
5/8” – 3/4” to 1” when the sole purpose is a residential sprinkler system. 
 

• Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,124.27 

B) Sewer SDC: 
Sewer Residential  Reimbursement 

Charge  Improvement 
Charge  Flow Count 

Single family residence  $.092  $0.26  535 gallons 
Two  family residence 

(duplex)  $.092  $0.26  535 gallons 
Manufactured home/ 

single lot  $.092  $0.26  535 gallons 

Manufactured home parks  $.092  $0.26  based on Engineer 
estimate 

Multi-family residential  $.092  $0.26  based on Engineer 
estimate

Commercial  $.092  $0.26  based on Engineer 
estimate

Industrial  $.092  $0.26  based on Engineer 
estimate

Institutional uses  
$.092 

 
$0.26

 based on Engineer 
estimate 

• CWS regional connection charge  
(96% CWS, 4% City of Sherwood) 

$4,500 (Per dwelling unit or 
dwelling unit equivalent 

• Connections involving line taps, line extensions, etc. actual labor and materials 
 
  

74



SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 21 of 37 

C) Storm SDC: 

Storm   Improvement 
Charge 

A.) Water quantity per ESU   $275 
B.) Water quality per ESU   $225 

 
• Regional Storm Drainage: - per area of impervious surface. One equivalent 

service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 square feet.  

• City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface $0.045 per square 
foot 

D) Parks SDC: 
Parks and Recreation  Administration 

Fee  Improvement Fee  Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $699.12  $6,787.00  $7,486.12 per 
dwelling unit 

Multi-family dwelling  $525.15  $5,092.68  $5,617.83 per 
dwelling unit 

Manufactured home  $748.83  $7,268.93  $8,017.76 per 
dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.48  $71.32  $77.80 per 
employee 

 
• Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s   

(Refundable if challenge is successful) $50 

E) Street SDC: 
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following 
 
 Washington County Transportation Impact Fee (TIF)  
 Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
 

• Reference Washington County for fees 

• Washington County - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

  

75



SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 22 of 37 

F) City of Sherwood TIF: 
Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type
Single family – detached 210 $2,940.20 dwelling unit
Apartment 220 $2,290.79 dwelling unit
Residential condominium/townhouse 230 $1,865.05 dwelling unit
Manufactured house  (In park) 240 $1,632.73 dwelling unit
Assisted living 254 $959.54 bed
Continuing care retirement 255 $774.76 unit
Recreation home 260 $1,006.00 dwelling unit

Recreational Transportation SDC Code Fee Type

City park 411 $760.71 acre
County park 412 $1,292.35 acre
Campground/RV park 416 $3,047.18 camp site
Marina 420 $2,122.22 berth
Golf course 430 $26,562.33 hole
Golf driving range 430 $6,519.02 tee
Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 $19,020.02 thousand square ft gross floor area
Bowling alley 437 $24,771.84 lane
Movie theater w/o matinee 443 $126.88 screen
Movie Theater with Matinee 444 $115,799.29 screen
Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 $74,819.05 screen
Casino/video poker/lottery 473 $73,510.50 thousand square ft gross floor area
Amusement/theme park 480 $39,508.52 acre
Soccer complex 488 $37,198.28 field
Racquet/tennis club 492 $20,181.62 court
Health fitness club 492 $17,173.34 thousand square ft gross floor area
Recreation/community center 495 $17,004.77 thousand square ft gross floor area

Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC Code Fee Type

Military base 501 $881.74 employee
Elementary school (Public) 520 $185.86 student
Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 $222.60 student
High School (Public) 530 $581.34 student
Private School (K – 12) 536 $942.25 Student
Junior/Community College 540 $347.94 employee
University/College 550 $756.39 student
Church 560 $2,764.07 thousand square ft gross floor area
Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00 student
Library 590 $8,103.12 thousand square ft gross floor area
Hospital 610 $6,793.48 bed
Nursing home 620 $1,161.60 bed
Clinic 630 $17,231.69 thousand square ft gross floor area
 

76



SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 23 of 37 

Commercial/Services SDC Code Fee Type
Hotel/Motel 310 $5,707.52 Room
Building materials/lumber 812 $9,272.29 thousand square ft gross floor area
Free standing discount Superstore w/groceries 813 $12,477.23 thousand square ft gross floor area
Specialty retail center 814 $11,388.02 thousand square ft gross floor area
Free standing discount center w/o groceries 815 $17,763.33 thousand square ft gross floor area
Hardware/paint stores 816 $14,750.72 thousand square ft gross floor area
Nursery/garden center 817 $9,082.11 thousand square ft gross floor area
Shopping center 820 $7,627.67 thousand square ft gross leasable area
Factory outlet 823 $5,830.70 thousand square ft gross floor area
New car sales 841 $7,525.02 thousand square ft gross floor area
Automobile parts sales 843 $14,255.83 thousand square ft gross floor area
Tire superstore 849 $4,457.31 thousand square ft gross floor area
Supermarket 850 $24,920.96 thousand square ft gross floor area
Convenience market (24hr) 851 $62,350.47 thousand square ft gross floor area
Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 $37,754.77 vehicle fueling position
Wholesale market 860 $148.04 thousand square ft gross floor area
Discount club 861 $13,973.80 thousand square ft gross floor area
Home improvement superstore 862 $4,854.96 thousand square ft gross floor area
Electronics superstore 863 $10,330.15 thousand square ft gross floor area
Office supply superstore 867 $8,152.83 thousand square ft gross floor area
Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru window 880 $17,599.08 thousand square ft gross floor area
Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru window 881 $18,850.37 thousand square ft gross floor area
Furniture store 860 $861.21 thousand square ft gross floor area
Video rental store 896 $68,887.86 thousand square ft gross floor area
Bank/savings – walk in 911 $55,529.98 thousand square ft gross floor area
Bank/savings – drive in 912 $55,891.97 thousand square ft gross floor area
Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 $22,525.35 thousand square ft gross floor area

High turnover-sit down restaurant (chain/standalone) 932 $14,242.86 thousand square ft gross floor area

Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 $94,620.32 thousand square ft gross floor area
Fast food restaurant (with drive-thru) 934 $63,672.00 thousand square ft gross floor area
Drinking place/bar 936 $9,801.76 thousand square ft gross floor area
Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 $8,514.81 service stall
Automobile care center 942 $8,541.83 thousand square ft gross leasable area
Gasoline/service station (no market/car wash 944 $17,111.75 vehicle fueling position
Gasoline/service station (with convenience market) 945 $10,889.88 vehicle fueling position
Gasoline/service station (with market and car wash) 946 $9,848.22 vehicle fueling position
 

77



SECTION 8: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 24 of 37 

Office SDC Code Fee Type
General office building 710 $4,392.48 thousand square ft gross floor area
Corporate headquarters building 714 $3,188.73 thousand square ft gross floor area
Single tenant office building 715 $5,330.40 thousand square ft gross floor area
Medical/dental office building 720 $13,888.44 thousand square ft gross floor area
Government office building 730 $25,656.82 thousand square ft gross floor area
State Motor Vehicles Department 731 $95,339.97 thousand square ft gross floor area
US Post Office 732 $34,102.47 thousand square ft gross floor area
Office park 750 $4,637.76 thousand square ft gross floor area
Research and development center 760 $3,471.84 thousand square ft gross floor area
Business park 770 $4,825.78 thousand square ft gross floor area

Port/Industrial Code Fee Type
Truck terminals 30 $3,551.80 thousand square ft gross floor area
Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $1,076.24 parking space
Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $611.60 parking space
General light industrial 110 $2,515.54 thousand square ft gross floor area
General heavy industrial 120 $541.36 thousand square ft gross floor area
Industrial park 130 $2,509.06 thousand square ft gross floor area
Manufacturing 140 $1,371.23 thousand square ft gross floor area
Warehouse 150 $1,808.86 thousand square ft gross floor area
Mini-warehouse 151 $876.33 thousand square ft gross floor area
Utilities 170 $1,972.02 thousand square ft gross floor area
  

78



SECTION 9: ENGINEERING DIVISION  
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 25 of 37 

SECTION 9: ENGINEERING DIVISION 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Engineering Division activities of the City. 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs 

• Water 
• Sewer 
• Street 
• Storm 
• Grading 
• Erosion Control 

 
 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs  

• Water 
• Sewer 
• Street 
• Storm 
• Grading 
• Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee  (Time and Materials) 
 Inspection Fee  (Time and Materials) 

 
 Infrastructure 

• Television Line Service Hourly Rate 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1)  Addressing Fee  
 • Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 
 • 0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 
 • 11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $15 per suite 
 • 21 and up Suite Numbers  $10 per suite 
2)  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 
3)  Compliance Agreements  

 • Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, hardware, and 
labor to install) $250/per sign 

 • Street Trees $200/per tree 

4)  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $10 linear foot 

5)  Right of Way Permit  

 • Performance bond – 125% of estimated costs required on 
projects greater than  $5000 

 
• Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 
exceeds the aggregate project total) 

 • Administration fee $150 per permit 

 • Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, 
whichever is greater 

79



SECTION 9: ENGINEERING DIVISION  
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 26 of 37 

6)  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 
7) Design and construction standards $25 on disk 
8) As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 
9) As-Built Requests electronic media $10 per CD 
10) Existing Map Prints  
 • 8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 
 • 8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 
 • 11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 
 • 11 x 17 color $10 per copy 
 • Quarter Section Arial $125 per copy 
 • Full Size Color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
• Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

 

80



SECTION 10: PLANNING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 27 of 37 

SECTION 10:  PLANNING DIVISION 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Planning Division activities of the City. 

A) Annexations: 
• Deposit $7,500  

  (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) 
• Applicant will sign an agreement with the City that the balance of all costs will be paid to the City 

within 30 days of the date in the final annexation invoice. 

B) Appeals: 
• Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b) $250  
• Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
• Conditional use permit $4,145  

D) Land Divisions: 
• Lot line adjustment $743  
• Minor land partition $2,488   
• Expedited minor partition $550   

 (Added to the cost of the application) 
• Final plat processing (minor land partition) $550   

• Subdivision $6,222  plus$20 per 
lot 

• Expedited subdivision $2,205   
  (Added to the cost of the application) 

• Final plat processing (Subdivision) $1,102   

E) Miscellaneous Actions: 
• Minor amendment(s) to prior approval 50% of base fee for land use 

being modified 
• Consultant as needed actual costs 

F) Other Fees: 
• Community Development Code Plan Check (payable at time of building 

permit submittal 
1) Residential permits $105 
2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  
3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits $661  

 (Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 
• Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 
• Detailed site analysis letter $150 
• Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  
• Non-conforming use modification $1,000 
• Modification to application in review $500 

  (If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to     
 adequately review the application) 
 

81



SECTION 10: PLANNING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 28 of 37 

• Other land use action  
1) Administrative $276  
2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  
• Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1st 
• Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 
• Pre-application conference $400 
• Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $165 
• Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $265 
• Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1st 
• Tree mitigation (Fee in-lieu) $75 per caliber inch 
• Zone verification letter $50 
• Street Tree Removal Permit $20 

• Home Occupation Review  (Class A)  $50 

G) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
• Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary 

                  (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) $2,205 

• Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final 
                  (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) 

*See Site Plan 
Review Fee 

H) Refunds: 
• 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 
• 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 
• 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 
•  

I) Signage: 
• Event sign renewal permit  

1) Consecutive two week period $50 
2) Consecutive two month period $100 

(If renewals are applied for within 30 days of the expiration of the original permit) 

•   

• Permanent signs $150 
   (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face) 
   (Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 

• Temporary portable event signs  
1) Consecutive two week period $50 up to 10 signs allowed 
2) Consecutive one month period $100 up to 10 signs allowed 
3) Consecutive two month period $150 up to 10 signs allowed 

• Temporary portable sign violation fines  
1) First offense $50 per sign 
2) Second offense $100 per sign 

• Portable A-frame sign code violation fines  
1) Second offense $50 per sign 
2) Third offense $100 per sign 
3) Fourth offense and loss of sign privileges $100 per sign 

82



SECTION 10: PLANNING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 29 of 37 

J) Site Plan Review: 
• Type III and IV  

(Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the 
first 15,000 sq. ft.) 
(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 

$6,222  

• Final site plan review (Type III and IV) 
(Due at the time of Building Permit Submittal) $661  

• Fast track site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

• Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 
 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  
 fee applicable based on size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.  Fee is applicable for all uses  
 excluding Single-Family detached dwellings.) 

K) Temporary Uses: 
• Administrative $335 

L) Time Extension to Approval: 
• No hearing required $150 

M)  Variance: 
• Class A Variance $4,145 

• Adjustment  $50 
• Class B Variance $1,102 

 (Per lot and per standard to be varied) 

N) Zone Amendments: 
• Text amendment $5,330 

• Map amendment $5,330 

83



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 30 of 37 

SECTION 11:  BUILDING DIVISION 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Building Division activities of the City. 

A. Building Permits 
Values are determined by the Building Official and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, 
without state-specific modifiers, as published by the International Conference of Building Officials and in 
compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. 
 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling   
 Total Valuation  

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000  
 

$60 for the first $500 (Plus $1.00 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 
 

$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000  
 

$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000  415.25 for the first $25,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,001 and up $615.25 for the first $100,000 (Plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 
or fraction thereof over $100,000$100,001 and up) 

For valuations of $100,001 and up 0.12% of value on construction permits (Metro Excise Tax per Metro 
Code Chapter 7.04)

 
• School CET Residential $1.00 per square foot of dwelling 
• State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or Current State Rate 

 

2. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family   
 Total Valuation  

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000 $60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof up to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 $82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000 $266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000 $435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,00) 

$100,001 and up $685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 
or fraction thereof over $100,00) 

For valuations of $100,001 and up 0.12% of value on construction permits (Metro Excise Tax per Metro 
Code Chapter 7.04) 

 
• School CET Residential Non- Residential $.50 per square foot of dwelling 
• State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or Current State Rate 

84



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 31 of 37 

3. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 
Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, 
storm and water lines, 12% state surcharge and the $30 Cabana fee (unless state rates are modified) In 
Compliance with OAR.918.050.0130  
 

• Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 
• Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 
• Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(J) 

B. Demolition Permits 
• Residential  

(Based on 2 hours of admin time @ $$38.56 an hour, plus 1 hour of 
inspection time @ $90 and $25 for supply costs)

$192.12 

• Commercial 
(Based on 2 hours of admin time @ $38.56an hour, plus 2 hours of 
inspection time @ $90 and $25 for supply costs) 

$282.12 

C. Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system 
installation that comply with the prescriptive path described in 
section 305.4 of the Oregon Solar Installation Specialty Code 
shall be a flat rate of $122.79 (Based on ¼ hour of admin time 
@ $38.56, one hour of inspection time @ $90.00 per hour, 
$10.00 supply costs and 12% state surcharge of $13.15.) 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical 
structural fee calculations and processes will apply. Typical Structural Fees will apply 

D. Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
• Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 
• Fire and life safety plan review fee 40% of building permit fee 

E. Phased Permit (Plan Review) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 
building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 
 

• Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  
• Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

F. Deferred Submittals 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 
65% of the building permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using  the value of the 
particular deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the 
project plan review fee based on the total project value. 
 

• Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 
• Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

85



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 32 of 37 

G. Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 
2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 
3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 
7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

H. Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County 
Based on categories, procedures and requirements established in OAR 918-309-0020 to 918-309-0070.  Contact 
Washington County Building Division (503) 846-3470 

I. Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 
construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 
equipment with a set minimum fee. 

• Minimum Fee $60 

• State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  ** (or 
current state rate) 

1. Air Handling 

• Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 
• Air Handling Unit > 10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 
• Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

 
2. Boilers/Compressors 

• ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 
• >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 
• >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 
• >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 
• >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

 
3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors 

• Fire/Smoke Damper/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 
 

4. Heat Pump 

• Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 
 

5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner 

• Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 
• Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 includes ductwork and vents 
• Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  

(Suspended, wall or floor mounted) $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

• Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 
 

6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

• ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  
• > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 
• > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

86



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 33 of 37 

• > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 
• >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 
• Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 
• Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 
• Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 
• Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 
• Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 
• Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 
• Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 
• Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 
• Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 
• Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 
• Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

• Other  (see most current Oregon One and Two 
Family Dwelling Specialty Code) 

J. Mechanical Permits - Commercial 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit as applied to the 
following fee matrix 
 

• Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

• State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  
** (or Current state Rate) 

 Total Valuation  

$0 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 $60 for the first $500 (plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 $172.50 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $100,000 $322.50 for the first $10,000 (Plus$8 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up $1,042.50 for the first $100,000 (plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof over $100,000

K. Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 
appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale. 
 

• One Bathroom $255 
• Two Bathrooms $315 
• Three Bathrooms $375 
• Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 
• Additional Fixture or Item 15 each 
• Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

L. Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 
Alterations and Repairs 

Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

87



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 34 of 37 

• Minimum Fee $60 
• New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 
• Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 
• Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection $30 each 

  (Charged only when connections are not concurrent with new set-up and installation) 
 

1. Water Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 
• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 
3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 
• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

M. Plumbing Permits – Commercial  
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

• Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee 

• State surcharge 12% of plumbing permit fee **(Or 
current State rate) 

• Minimum fee $60 
• New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 
• Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 

1. Water Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 
• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 
• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

• For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 
• For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

N. Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 
 

• Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

• State surcharge 12% of Plumbing Permit Fee  
** (or Current state Rate) 

  
 

88



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 35 of 37 

Total Valuation  

$0 to $500 $100 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 $100 for the first $500 (plus $2 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 $190 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $50,000  $340 for the first $10,000 (plus $9.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 $720 for the first $50,000 (Plus $11 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up $1,270 for the first 100,000 (plus $7 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof over $100,000) 

O. Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 
inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 
 

• Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

• Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 
 
Grading Permit Fees 
 

• Grading permit fee $60 minimum fee 
• Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 
 Volume Fees  

0 to 100 Cubic yards $60 minimum fee  

101 to 1,000 Cubic yards $60 for the first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or 
fraction thereof) 

1,001 to 10,000 Cubic yards $159 for the first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards 
or fraction thereof) 

10,001 to 100,000 Cubic yards $294 for the first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 
yards or fraction thereof) 

100,001 Cubic yards and greater $969 for the first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards 
or fraction thereof) 

 
Erosion Control Inspection Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  
Permit is based upon the total acreage of the site. 

• Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control 
inspection fee  

 
1.) Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 
1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 

 

89



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 36 of 37 

2.) Total Valuation 
$0 to $50,000 $60 
$50,000.01 to $100,000 $80 

$100,000.01 and up $80 (plus $25 per every $100,000 or fraction thereof of over 
$100,000) 

P. Other Inspections and Fees (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and 
Erosion) 

 
Re-inspection fee  
(Minimum charge = 1 hour) $90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 

Inspections outside normal 
business hours 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 
(Minimum charge = 2 hours)  

Inspection for which no fee is 
specifically indicated 

$70 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 
(Minimum charge = ½ hour)  

Investigation fee 100% of required permit fee for working without a permit 

Additional plan review required $90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or revisions) 
(Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

Re-stamp of lost, stolen or 
damaged plans $55 per plan set 

Application/Permit extensions $50 
 
(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval granted by 
the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been made in the original 
plans and specifications for such work) 
 

• Permit reinstatement fee 

50% of Amount required for a new permit or a 
percentage as determined by the Building Official 
based on the remaining inspections required. 
 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and approval 
granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications for 
such work.) 

Q. Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 

• Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit 
is still valid 

• Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan 
review was started  

R. Certificate of Occupancy 
• Temporary residential $50 per request 
• Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

(All as determined by the Building Official) 
 

S. Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee 
• Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

90



SECTION 11: BUILDING DIVISION 
 

FY2011-2012 FeeSchedule.docx   Page 37 of 37 

• Dissimilar Use, or Change in Occupancy 
(Extensive Code Review 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review 
time, review time greater than 1 hour will be 
charged at the hourly rate of $90 

T. Appeal Process 
• Amended Senate Bill 915 $250 

 

91



Resolution 2011-053, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1 

       Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Budget Officer  
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2011-053, ADOPTING THE 2011-12 CITY OF 

SHERWOOD BUDGET 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
Adoption of the FY 2011-12 City of Sherwood Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
On April 27, 2011, the Budget Committee received the budget message and heard 
public comment. On May 11, 2011, the Budget Committee approved the proposed 
budget with specific changes, resulting in the Approved Budget for 2011-12.Notice of 
the approved budget has been published in accordance with Oregon Local Budget Law. 
The final steps of the budget process are for Council to hold a public hearing and then 
adopt the 2011-12 Budget. The budget is available for review at the City Hall reception 
desk and in the library. A copy of the budget can also be found on the City’s website 
under the Finance Department section. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends approving Resolution 2011-053, adopting the 2011-12 City of 
Sherwood budget. 
 
 

92



 
 

Resolu
June 7
Page 

A R
SHE
TAX
NEC
 
WHE
budg
 
WHE
to the
 
WHE
on th
 
WHE
prop
adop
 
WHE
prog
 
NOW
 
Sect
Sher
$47,9
 
Sect
1, 20

ution 2011-053
7, 2011 
1 of 3 with one

RESOLUTIO
RWOOD, 
ES, AND A

CESSARY T

EREAS, the
get; and 

EREAS, the
e City Coun

EREAS, in a
he budget a

EREAS, the
osed budge

ption; and  

EREAS, the
rams identi

W, THEREF

tion 1: Ad
rwood, Ore
957,774, no

tion 2: Mak
011 and for 

3 

 Exhibit A (Bud

ON  ADO
MAKING A
AUTHORIZ

TO CARRY

e Budget C

e Budget C
ncil on May

accordance
as approved

e Budget C
et and inco

e City Coun
ified in the 

FORE, THE

option of 
gon hereby
ow on file a

king Appro
the purpos

dget Document

RESOL

OPTING T
APPROPR
ZING THE 

Y OUT THE

Committee 

ommittee a
y 11, 2011;

e with State
d and recom

Committee r
orporated in

ncil desires 
budget;  

E CITY OF S

the 2011-
y adopts th
at City Hall.

opriations. 
ses shown b

t) 

 
LUTION 20

 
HE 2011-

RIATIONS, 
CITY MA

 ADOPTED

has review

approved a
and 

e law, the C
mmended b

requested t
nto the bud

to adopt th

SHERWOO

-12 Budge
he budget f

 The amou
below are h

 

011-053 

12 BUDG
IMPOSING

ANAGER T
D BUDGET

wed and ac

nd recomm

City Counci
by the Budg

that certain
dget presen

he approved

OD RESOL

et.  The C
for fiscal ye

unts for the
hereby app

GET OF T
G AND CA
O TAKE S

T 

cted on the

mended a b

l has held a
get Commit

n changes 
nted to the 

d budget an

LVES AS FO

ity Council
ear 2011-12

e fiscal year
ropriated a

DRAF

THE CITY 
ATEGORIZ
SUCH ACT

e proposed

alanced bu

a public hea
ttee; and 

be made to
City Counc

nd carry ou

OLLOWS:

 of the Ci
2 in the su

r beginning
as follows: 

T
 

OF 
ZING 
TION 

 City 

udget 

aring 

o the 
cil for 

ut the 

ty of 
um of 

 July 

93



 DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-053 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 3 with one Exhibit A (Budget Document) 

  Asset General Debt Street Street  
 General Depreciation Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom 

           
Administration 2,700,380          
Comm. Development 867,088          
Police 3,530,990          
Community Services 1,225,463          
PW Operations 1,793,165          
Enterprise Operations    3,972,514 498,221 1,161,808  
Enterprise Capital    7,279,375 1,962,420 692,885  
Personal Services    295,365 180,050 26,449 
Materials and Services   699,080 139,810 117,080 
Capital Outlay   588,000 3,439,800 40,000 
Debt Service   48,141 887.897 59,381  
Transfers Out  217,998  200,000 
Ending Fund Balance      
Contingency 1,588,395           0 424,392     1.635 299,025 650,786 9,066,459 2,489,708    763,413   50,597 
Total 11,705,482 217,998 472,533 889,532 1,940,852 4,410,447 20,318,349 4,950,349 2,618,107 434,125 

 

Total Budget for FY12     $47,957,774

94



 DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-053 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 3 with one Exhibit A (Budget Document) 

Section 3: Imposing and Categorizing Taxes.  The City Council of the City of 
Sherwood hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted budget at the 
City’s permanent rate of $3.2975 per thousand of assessed value for operations 
and in the amount of $888,000 for bonded debt; and that these taxes are hereby 
imposed for tax year 2011-12 upon the assessed value of all taxable property 
within the district. 
The City of Sherwood hereby categorizes the taxes as follows: 
 

 General Government Excluded from Limitation 
General Fund $3.2975 per $1,000  
Debt Service Fund  $888,000 

 
Section 4: Filing.  The Budget Officer shall certify to the County Clerk and 
County Assessor of Washington County and the Oregon State Department of 
Revenue the tax levy made by this resolution and shall file with them a copy of 
the budget as finally adopted. 

 
Section 5: Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in effect upon its approval 
and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
 
 _____________________ 
 Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

95



 BUDGETBUDGETBUDGET 

www.sherwoodoregon.gov 

 

2011 - 2012 
APPROVED 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 96



 

i 

 
 

 
 
 
 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Sherwood, Oregon for its annual budget for 
the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010.   
 
In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets 
program criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide as a financial plan, and as a 
communication device.   
 
This award is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current budget continues to conform 
to program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another 
award. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 97



City of Sherwood, Oregon 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

 
Approved Budget 

 
2011-2012 

ii 

 
 

 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 

City Council 
 
  Mayor        Keith Mays 
  Council President      Dave Grant 
  Council Member      Bill Butterfield 
  Council Member      Robyn Folsom 
  Council Member      Linda Henderson 
  Council Member      Matt Langer 
  Council Member      Dave Luman 
 

Citizens 
 

  Chair        Kimberly Rocha-Pearson 
  Vice Chair       Ivonne Pflaum  
  Citizen Member      Irene Baker 
  Citizen Member      Timothy Carkin  
  Citizen Member      Perry Francis 
  Citizen Member      Steve Munsterman 
  Citizen Member      Lynette Waller 
 
 
  City Manager             Jim Patterson 

Finance Director/Budget Officer    Craig Gibons 
   
 

 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 98

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov


TABLE OF CONTENTS    

iii 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY     
 Budget Message. . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 
 About the City. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 
 Mission & Value Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . 8  
 Goals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9  
 Organization Chart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10  
FINANCIALS     
 Budget Analysis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11  
 Financial Conditions and Outlook. . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 
 Financial Organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  20 
 Budget - in Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21 
 Budget - by Fund . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   22  
General Government Funds.  
 Property Tax Levies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
 General Fund in total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 
 General Fund by Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 
 Administration Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30 
 Community Development Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 
 Public Safety Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  49 
 Community Services Division . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 54 
 Public Works Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  60 
 Asset Depreciation Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 65 
 Debt Service Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 
 Street Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  67 
 Street Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .  69 
Enterprise Funds  
 Water Fund in Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  71 
 Water Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  72 
 Water Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . 74 
 Sanitary Fund in Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76 
 Sanitary Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77 
 Sanitary Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  79 
 Storm Fund in Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  81 
 Storm Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  82 
 Storm Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .  84 
 Telecommunications. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86 
 General Construction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  88 
APPENDICES     
 Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Year. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 89  
 Personnel and Monthly Salary Schedules . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  90  
 Long Term Debt   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93 
 Debt Margin and Transfers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98  
 Budget Process. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  99  
 Financial Policies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  102  
 Glossary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  108  

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 99



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 100



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

1 

 

 
It is my privilege to provide the citizens and the Budget Committee of the City of Sherwood with my 
proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2012 (FY12), the fiscal year that begins on July 1, 2011. 
 
State budget law provides for three levels of review and scrutiny of this budget: the City Manager, the 
Budget Committee, and the City Council. At any step in this process the reviewing body can and should 
alter the budget if they believe it is in the best interests of the City.  
 
At my review, I modified most of the department budgets, following discussion and collaboration with 
the Department Directors.  I based my modifications to address the structural imbalances on the 
following restraints and acknowledgments. 
 

1. The budget will provide resources needed to sustain current operating efficiencies. 
2. The budget will provide resources to sustain the quality of life in Sherwood. 
3. Managing expenses is the responsibility of city administration, but managing expenses alone will 

not resolve the gap between revenues and expenditures. 
4. Fees and taxes will have to be considered as a means to support existing services and provide 

expansion of services if the current economic trend continues. 
5. All budget actions must serve to enhance citizens’ level of trust in City government.  

 
THE GENERAL FUND 
 
The General Fund budget that I am recommending for FY12 is a break with the past and has required 
difficult and certainly unpopular decisions. It is a budget that reflects the changing economic and 
political environment in which we now operate. The budget anticipates that this environment will 
continue and contains elements to respond specifically to that anticipation.  
 
Ultimately, Sherwood will grow commercially and residentially and the area’s economy will improve. 
These changes will take us to a new future. The budget I am recommending is designed to bridge the 
gap between now and the time we see the next wave of growth that is sure to come. 
 
General Fund Base Budget and Three-Year Forecast 
 
This year I am introducing the concepts of a “base budget” and a “three-year forecast.” 
 
The base budget is the budget that will result next year if we make no staffing or service level 
changes.  It includes only the cost increases and revenue increases that would accrue normally if the 
City took no action to change the budget.  
 
The three-year forecast applies inflationary trends to that base budget and anticipates the long term 
effect of today’s financial decisions on future budgets.  
 

Date: April 18, 2011 

 

To: The Citizens of Sherwood  
City of Sherwood Budget Committee 

From: Jim Patterson, City Manager 

Subject: FY12 Budget Transmittal Memo 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 101



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

2 

The FY12 General Fund Base Budget would have operating revenues of $9.8 million and operating 
expenses of $10.0 million, for an annual operating loss of $200,000. 
For the three-year forecast of that base budget (FY13, FY14, and FY15) I have no evidence, limited 
confidence, no data, or reason to anticipate any “automatic” revenue increases aside from the annual 
3% increase in property tax revenues.  As a matter of fact, my concerns are that previously stable 
revenue sources may decline further in the near future.   “Automatic” increases in personal services 
and inflationary increases in materials and services will overwhelm any foreseeable revenue increase.  
And the result-if we do nothing to change the direction-is the fund balance will be depleted by FY15.  
That is an unacceptable outcome and not fiscally responsible. 
 

 
 

So the General Fund budget I am recommending for FY12 is a budget that lays the foundation for 
FY13, FY14, and FY15.  It is a budget that acknowledges that the expense trajectory far exceeds the 
revenues trajectory. Expense will have to be reduced and revenues will have to be increased for 
Sherwood to avoid service cuts in the future. The focus of my recommended budget is   to manage the 
expenditure trajectory without sacrificing services during a sustained period of no growth and deal with 
structural imbalances that are a result of periods of high growth and then a leveling out period. This is 
a budget that is designed to achieve this objective by addressing both expenditure controls and 
potential revenue enhancements.   
 
RECOMMENDED BUDGET 
 
The FY 12 budget cannot be developed without a focus on FY13 and the years beyond: the success of 
my recommended budget depends on significant actions that will need to be taken between now and 
December 2011 in preparation for that FY13 budget.  Those actions include: 
 

a. Collective bargaining negotiations with both unions,  
b. Analysis of service delivery alternatives,  
c. Application of information technology to continue to create efficiencies, 
d. Consideration by our elected officials of new or increased fees, and, of course,  
e. Management control of spending.  
 

These are just the actions needed to increase the possibility of maintaining current service levels 
(which I consider above average levels of service).  If service levels need to be reduced in FY13 or, if 
the community would like increased services, then I am recommending initiation of a community wide 
conversation. That conversation will include using professional surveying methodologies to ascertain 
the citizens’: 

 9,000

 9,500

 10,000

 10,500

 11,000

 11,500

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Revenues vs. Expenses Base Budget

Revenue Expenses

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 102



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

3 

 
a. Service priorities, 
b. Interest in new or enhanced services, 
c. Tolerance for new fees or taxes, and  
d. Level of trust in their City government.   

 
This conversation would be part of the FY13 budget process and would need to be concluded before 
December 2011. 
 
Financial Aspects of FY12 Budget 
 
The critical cost savings element of this recommendation is a reduction in FTE.   Moving forward I am 
left with no choice under the current economic conditions and I must act in order to address our 
future.  I issued layoff notices to three employees on April 4, one each in Finance, Police, and 
Community Development. In addition, a wage freeze for all non-represented employees is included in 
this budget. This reduction in FTE count and freezing of one employee group’s salaries reduces the 
future personal services liability, positively affecting the expenditure trajectory.  This is a vital 
component to addressing current and future structural imbalance in our budget. 
 
This recommended budget does not address the critical staffing needs raised again this year by the 
Police, Community Services, and City Recorder departments. Given the Finance Director’s revenue 
forecasts for future years, funding those positions will trigger future cuts and therefore I do not find it 
wise to fund additional positions at this time. 
 
My recommended budget does establish one new position. That position is a School Resource Officer, a 
sworn police position that will be assigned to work in the schools and the cost of which will be shared 
with the Sherwood School District.  
 
The result of these changes is a General Fund budget with operating revenues of $9,892,000 and 
operating expenses of $9,957,000.  The annual loss is reduced to $65,000, well within our capacity to 
address through tight spending controls.  
 
Fund Balance  
 
The General Fund’s projected ending fund balance for FY11 is $1.8 million. The budgeted ending fund 
balance for FY12 is $1.55 million.  That loss is due to the $65,000 operating loss indicated above and 
the transfer of $200,000 to the Street Fund.  The resulting fund balance is 15% of revenue. Staff will 
discuss the details of this fund balance and its conformance to the new financial policy on fund balance 
during the budget committee meetings. 
 
The General Fund budget I am recommending is only a start at the process of establishing a 
sustainable budget.  If we make no further adjustments to both revenues and expenditures in future 
budgets, the fund balance will be depleted in FY15. 
 
PERSONAL SERVICES 
 
Key personal services issues in this budget are as follows. 
 

i Health insurance costs are budgeted to increase by 8%. 
i PERS rates will increase as of July 1. The impact of that rate increase is that the cost of PERS 

will increase from 16% of salaries to about 20%. Based on PERS operating policies that rate will 
not increase in FY13. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 103



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

4 

i The number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) positions is reduced by 2.0. A senior accountant, 
plumbing inspector, and emergency management coordinator have been removed from the 
budget and a full time police officer (partially funded by the school district) has been added. 

i Non-represented employees will not get raises for cost of living or merit.  
i Contracts with represented employee groups are underway and the results will be effective with 

this budget.  
 

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
This budget reflects proposed changes in the City’s fund structure.  Pursuant to its new financial 
policies, the Council will be asked to institute these changes via resolution in a separate action this 
spring. The changes are as follows. 
 
Two actions are required to conform to governmental accounting standards.   
 

i Reclassify the Street Fund from an enterprise fund to a governmental fund.   
i Decommission the Asset Depreciation Fund and replace it with capital replacement reserves in 

each fund 
 
And two other actions will be suggested as a way to simplify financial management. 
 

i Divide the Street Fund into a Street Operations Fund and a Street Capital Improvement Fund.  
i Divide the Urban Renewal fund into a URA Operations Fund and a URA Capital Improvement 

fund.   
 
The Street Operations Fund incorporates a staff proposal for changes in the street fees based on the 
April 5th Council work session discussion.  
 
Staff will be providing detailed information about these changes during the Committee’s meetings. 
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
Just as the General Fund budget was developed with an eye on impacts to future years’ budgets, so 
were the Enterprise Fund budgets.  The standards for these funds were to: 
 

1. Maintain the current service level 
2. Include expenses need to maintain the assets 
3. Include contributions to replacement reserves 
4. Adjust rates to support these actions and the long term stability of the enterprises.   

 
The Enterprise Funds are the four self-sustaining utility systems operated by the City: Water, Sanitary 
Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Telecom.  One of the funds, Water, has a rate increase for FY12 already 
approved by Council.  In this budget, I am recommending a rate increase in the Sanitary Fund. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Revenue pie charts on page 11 of this document and the expenditure pie charts on page 15 show 
the City of Sherwood’s financial strength. All the pie charts show the diversity of Sherwood’s revenue 
sources and expenditure categories. The diversity of revenues protects the City from the revenue 
problems of the state (overwhelming reliance on income tax) or the schools (almost complete reliance 
on revenues from the state). The diversity of expenditure categories insulates Sherwood from abrupt 
cost increases in any one category. Personal Services account for 85% of school district costs. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 104



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

5 

Sherwood’s personal services’ expenses are slightly higher than materials and services, and lower than 
capital outlay.   
 
Underpinning this healthy diversity of revenues and expenditures are fund balances that themselves 
are the major component of both the revenues and expenditures. 
 
This budget has been crafted to protect this financial situation while maintaining the current level of 
services to citizens.  I look forward to working with you this year to perfect and implement this budget.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jim Patterson, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 105



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY            ABOUT THE CITY 
 

6 

About the City 
 
The City of Sherwood, incorporated in 1893, encompasses 4.1 square miles of land on the south edge 
of the Portland metropolitan area, in northwestern Oregon.  Other cities that are part of or near the 
metro area, such as Tigard, Tualatin, and Wilsonville, are used for comparisons in this budget where 
data is available. 
 

 
 
 
The City of Sherwood has all powers granted to municipal corporations by State statutes, including the 
power to issue debt, levy taxes on real property within its boundaries, and extend its corporate limits 
by annexation.   
 
The City provides a full range of services, including police protection, library, construction and 
maintenance of streets, parks, and utility infrastructure, recreational activities and cultural events, 
current and long-range planning and development review, and building permits and inspection.  Senior 
services are provided by a nonprofit organization, housed in the City-owned Senior Center. Certain 
services are provided by or in cooperation with regional organizations.  Fire protection is through 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue, a separate regional entity.  As of July 2009 the City of Sherwood 
resumed operations of the City’s water utility.  Sherwood owns and operates the sanitary sewer and 
storm water collection facilities; treatment is by Clean Water Services, a regional authority. Electricity, 
Telephone service, and trash disposal are provided by private businesses.  Sherwood is part of School 
District 88J.  
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 106



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY            ABOUT THE CITY 
 

7 

Sherwood is governed by a City Council comprised of an elected Mayor and six Councilors.  The City 
Council exercises policy-making and legislative authority and is responsible for City legislation, adopting 
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Manager.  The Mayor serves a two year term.  
Councilors serve for four years, with three of the six Councilor’s terms expiring in each biennial 
election.  The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the day-to-day operations of the City. 
 
According to Portland State University’s Population Research Center the City’s population as of July 1, 
2010 was 16,705, and is predicted to increase by 100 people per year for the next several years.  The 
assessed value of real property exceeded one billion dollars in 2005-06. 
 
In December 2002, the Metropolitan Service District, the regional land use planning entity, added 
about 300 acres to the City's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).  Planning for future land uses, civic 
services, and infrastructure improvements has begun. Annexation requires voter approval. 
Sherwood is in the Portland, Oregon – Vancouver, Washington metropolitan area.  The economy of the 
metro area is broad and well diversified.  According to Oregon Employment Department data, 
Sherwood’s top four industries by the number of employees are food and drink services, 
manufacturing, specialty trade contractors, and educational services. 
 
Sherwood has an Urban Renewal Agency (URA) which undertakes activities and projects in the portion 
of the City designated as the Urban Renewal District.  Although the Sherwood City Council is the Board 
of Directors for the URA, The URA is a distinct municipal corporation and its budget is a separate 
document.  
 
The City’s fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30. 
 

 
 
 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

City of Sherwood Population

Of the current residents in Sherwood, more than half (58%) are 
school aged children, grades 1-12.   

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 107



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  MISSION AND VALUE STATEMENT 

8 

 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Sherwood will provide services and infrastructure to support the 
highest quality of life for our residents, businesses and visitors in a fiscally 

responsible manner. 

 
 

Values 
 

The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes: 
 

Quality Services 

Fiscal Responsibility 

Citizen Participation 

Community Pride 

Community Partnerships 

Community Livability 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 108



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY    GOALS 

9 

 
 

Goals 
 

 
Public Safety 

 
“The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of the community 

and its citizens.” 
 
 

Infrastructure 
 

“The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 
 

Livability 
 

“The City of Sherwood will provide opportunity for responsible community 
development and growth.” 

 
 

Resident Well Being 
 

“The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to encourage a 
balanced quality of life for its citizens.” 

 
 

Economic Development 
 

“The City of Sherwood will promote responsible economic development which 
benefits the community.” 

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 109



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY                                  ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

10 

 
City of Sherwood Organizational Chart 

 

City of 
Sherwood

18,194

Mayor and City 
Council

City Recorder City Manager

Assistant City 
Manager

Finance

Accounting

Municipal Court

Information 
Technology

Telecom

Human Resources Urban Renewal 
District

Community 
Services Director

Events & 
Recreation

Library

Fieldhouse

Police Chief

Public Safety

Public Works 
Director

Parks

Facilities/
Administration

Enterprise 
Operations

Community 
Development 

Director

Planning

Engineering

Building

Capital 
Improvement 

Program

Municipal Court 
Judge

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 110



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

11 

Budget in Total 
 
This narrative walks through components of the Budget in Total.  The major sections are sources, uses, 
and Capital Project expenditures. 
 
Sources 

 
Budgeted sources, exclusive of transfers between funds, follow.  
 

       

 

Beg Fund 
Bal

43%

Taxes
9%Franchise 

Fees
3%

Inter-
govmt
15%

Fees
14%

Infrastruc
ture 

charges
1%

Other
5%

Issuance 
of long-

term debt
10%

Sources - All Funds 10-11

Beg Fund 
Bal

42%

Taxes
11%Franchise 

Fees
3%

Inter-
govmt

7%

Fees
16%

Infrastruct
ure 

charges
1%

Other
7%

Issuance 
of long-

term debt
13%

Sources - All Funds 11-12

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Sources - All Funds
2011-12 Compared to Prior Years

2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 111



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

12 

Beginning fund balance 
 
The difference between total sources and total uses is budgeted as contingency.  The alternative is to 
budget it as un-appropriated ending fund balance.  The latter cannot be spent except in an emergency 
created by civil disturbance or natural disaster.  Contingency allows the legal flexibility to spend if 
necessary. 
 
If contingency is less than beginning fund balance, funds in the beginning balance has been used as a 
source of resources (expenditures exceeded revenues).  If contingency is more than beginning fund 
balance, fund balance has been increased for use as a source in future years (revenues exceeded 
expenditures). 
 
Taxes and franchise fees 
 
Property taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied for two purposes.  The permanent rate levy for the City of Sherwood of 
$3.2975 per $1,000 of assessed value supports General Fund operations.  Property taxes for the Debt 
Service Fund are levied in the amount needed to pay principal and interest on voter approved general 
obligation bonds.   

The permanent rate levy was fixed by ballot initiatives in the 1990’s and cannot be increased by the 
City.  General Fund property tax revenue depends on assessed values, which are a function of 
increased development, the annual 3% statutory increment and the effect of the Sherwood Urban 
Renewal District.  Please refer to the Property Tax Description on pages 25 and 26 for a detailed 
explanation.    
 
Total assessed value in the City of Sherwood is:  
 

 
Assessed values are expected to continue growing at a similar rate for the foreseeable future as land is 
developed and areas within the Urban Growth Boundary are annexed.   
 

$1,128

$1,229
$1,308 $1,372

$1,435 $1,479

$500

$750

$1,000

$1,250

$1,500

$1,750

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Assessed Value

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 112



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

13 

The permanent rate levy is divided between the City General Fund and the Sherwood Urban Renewal 
Agency.  Revenue for the General Fund, the URA, and the Debt Service Fund follow. 
 

 
Property taxes represent 44% of General Fund revenue exclusive of reimbursements from the URA.   
 
Franchise fees 
 
Franchise fees are collected from utilities as compensation for use of the City’s rights of way.  Franchise 
fees are based on utility revenue, so they generally increase with population growth.   

 

 -

 1

 1

 2

 2

 3

 3

 4

 4

 5

 5

2008-09 Actual 2009-10 Actual 2009-10 Budget 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Property Tax Revenue

General Fund Debt Service Fund Urban Renewal Agency

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

FY 07-08Actual FY 08-09Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11 Projected FY 11-12 Budget

Franchise Fees

Telephone Natural gas Cable TV Waste disposal Electricity City utility

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 113



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

14 

Intergovernmental 

Intergovernmental revenue includes: 

i State distributions of shared revenue and vehicle fees. 
i County support to the library as part of the Washington County Cooperative Library Service. 
i Sherwood School District for shared services. 
i Federal, State, and Local Government grants. 

 
Charges for services 

The water utility rates will increase 7.5% effective July 1, 2011 and 4.0% effective January 1, 2012. 
This budget proposes the city sanitary surcharge of $.32 increase to $.64 per EDU. 
This budget proposes the street fee revenues to increase approximately 50%. 
This budget proposes a new event permit fee 

Infrastructure development charges 

These are fees for private development plan review and inspection and system development charges 
(SDC’s) on new construction.  SDC’s are restricted to use for capital improvement projects that support 
capacity for growth.   

Fines, interest and other 

Other revenue includes fines for traffic infractions and other violations, library fines, and interest on our 
bank accounts. 

Sale of fixed assets 

There are no sales of fixed assets contemplated in the fiscal year 2011-12 budget. 

Issuance of long-term debt 

The City will be acquiring a construction loan for the remainder of the water pipeline to Wilsonville 
project for approximately $6,500,000.

Sherwood’s 3 reservoirs hold a combined total of 
9 million gallons of water. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 114



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

15 

Uses 
Uses for all funds are: 
 

  
 

 
 
 

Ending 
fund 

balance
38%

Personal 
services

15%

Materials 
& 

services
10%

Capital 
outlay
32%

Other
1%

Debt 
service

4%

Budgeted Uses of All 
Funds 10-11

Ending 
fund 

balance
38%

Personal 
services

17%

Materials 
& 

services
11%

Capital 
outlay
26%

Other
3%

Debt 
service

5%

Budgeted Uses of All 
Funds 11-12

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

Ending fund
balance

Personal
services

Materials &
services

Capital outlay Other Debt service

Uses - All Funds 2011-12 Compared to Prior Years

2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 115



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

16 

Personal Services 
 
Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 
 
The following compares City staffing to population growth. 
 

 
 
 
Wages 
The budget includes a 1.4% cost of living increase at July 1 for all represented employees.     
There will be no increases for non-represented employees in fiscal year 2011-12. 
 
 
Benefits 
Benefit costs continue to increase faster than inflation and property tax revenue.  The average cost of 
benefits per employee follows: 
 

 
 
The major benefits are health insurance and PERS.  Employee insurance costs are budgeted to increase 
8% in 2010-11. 
 
PERS, the state-wide Public Employees Retirement System, had severe investment losses in the late 
1990s and is recovering them from employers over several years.  The most recently adopted rates for 
the City of Sherwood are: 
 

i 15.91% for Tier 1 & Tier 2 covered employees 
i 10.82% for OPSRP covered employees 
i 13.53% for OPSRP Police covered employees 
 
 

5.4 5.4 
5.6 

5.5 5.5 

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

2007-08 Actual 2008-09 Actual 2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

FTEs per 1,000 Citizens

$19,643 $19,028 $19,849 

$22,896 

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

2008-09 Actual 2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budgeted

Benefit Costs per FTE

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 116



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

17 

Materials and Services 
 
Materials and services for operations, by fund, are:  
 

 
 
The change in materials and services for the General Fund and Water Operations are due to various 
small increases with the majority of the increase in professional and technical services.  
 
 
Capital Outlay 
Capital project expenditures are discussed in the Capital Improvement Program section. Capital outlays 
are single purchases that are budgeted within the operational budgets of the city whose value exceeds 
$5,000. The only significant capital outlay expenditures this year are: 
  
General Fund  

i Interoperability equipment for the Police Department that is funded by a Federal grant. 
i Police car 
i Financial system analysis 
i Server storage 
i Replacement data backup and archival system 
i Cable channel upgrades 
i Senior Center Lighting upgrade 
i Fuel tank and card system at PW 
i City owned sidewalk repair 
i Upgrade generator at PW and install generator at City Hall 
i Calsense 
i Irrigation at the JV baseball field 

Enterprise Funds 
i Telecom – Redundancy for the Sherwood Broadband System 
i Storm – TV van camera replacement 

 
 
 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

General Street Water Sanitary Storm Telecom

Materials and Services - Operations

2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 117



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 
 

18 

Capital Project Expenditures 
 
A substantial portion of the total city budget is for capital projects for building or improving the City 
infrastructure to handle growth.  The projects and their total costs are detailed in the Capital Projects 
section.  Expenditures for capital projects may vary dramatically between years, depending on the 
particular projects in process.   
 

 
Debt Service  
 
The principal balance of outstanding debt as of June 30, 2011 is: $53,252,894. 

 

 
 
Payment sources for all debt expected to be outstanding at June 30, 2011 are shown in the Debt 
Service Expenditures to Maturity schedule on pages 94-97.   

 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

 $30

2008-09 Actual 2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Operating vs. Capital Expenditure

Operating Capital

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2008-09 Actual 2009-10 Actual 2010-11 Projected 2011-12 Budget

Principle Balance of Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds City Loans City Loans for URA Projects

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 118



FINANCIALS                                                   FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK 

19 

Financial Condition and Outlook 

The bond rating from Moody’s Investors Services for the last general obligation bond, issued in 2004 to 
refund those originally issued in 1996, was A2, an upper medium grade investment. The City’s bond 
rating was reviewed and confirmed as A2 in fiscal year 08-09.  

On May 1, 2010 Moody’s Investors Service initiated the local government recalibration of its municipal 
rating scale. All municipal credits rated by Moody’s were changed to a Global Scale Rating (GSR), which 
better reflects the underlying credit quality of municipal issuers compared to that of corporate or 
sovereign issuers. The City of Sherwood had an A2 rating under the Municipal rating scale and now has 
an Aa3 rating under the GSR. 

Fees and charges are reviewed annually.  Changes are proposed by staff, reviewed by the Budget 
Committee, and adopted by the City Council.  Fees are intended to recover the costs of services which 
can be specifically attributed to a particular user, as with fees for land use applications and building 
permits, or to make some contribution toward cost, such as fees for league use of ball fields.  In 
particular, the Council has mandated that development pay for the costs it imposes. 

Operations Outlook 

Revenue sources for the General Fund are stable; one-time revenue is invariably restricted to specific, 
limited-time expenditures.  However, as detailed in the Budget Message, routine expenditures continue 
to grow faster than revenue.   

The Water, Sanitary sewer, and Storm water funds are self-supporting with user charges for services 
for operating needs.   

The Street Operations Fund relies on apportionment of vehicle and gasoline taxes and licenses from 
the state and county.  These revenues are stable, but are not increasing at the same rate as the cost 
of long-term preventative maintenance and rebuilding needs. As a result, the City implemented a 
Street Utility fee in 2007 to provide for adequate funds for street maintenance and lighting. 
  
Capital Project Outlook 

Water, Sanitary sewer, and Storm water funds collect system development charges for infrastructure 
expansion; the Water Fund also reserves a portion of user charges for capital construction and related 
debt service.  These sources are adequate to fund needs for the existing City service area.  

The Street Fund relies on County traffic improvement fees and City system development charges.  
Capital needs identified in the TSP exceed the projected funding, requiring that future construction is 
carefully prioritized. 

A regular incandescent light bulb lasts 750 to 1,500 
hours compared to a compact fluorescent light bulb that 

lasts about 10,000 hours 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 119



FINANCIALS                                                                         FINANCIAL ORGANIZATION 
 

20 

Financial Organization 
 
The City’s financial records are organized by fund: operating and capital, and divisions and departments.  
These views are explained below. 
 
Funds 
 
Funds are required by generally accepted accounting principles for local governments and by Oregon 
budget law.  The purpose of funds is to demonstrate compliance with legal restrictions on the use of 
resources. The nine funds, grouped by type are described below. 
 
General:  The General Fund is the main operating fund.  It includes all resources not accounted for in other 
funds.  General fund revenues can generally be used for any government purpose. 
 
Special revenue:  The Asset Depreciation Fund has been used is a reserve fund, defined in Oregon budget 
law, to accumulate money from year to year to provide for the unexpected purchase, improvement, or 
repair of major capital assets, such as city buildings. The Street Operations Fund collects county and state 
gas and vehicle taxes to fund the maintenance of city roads. 
 
Debt service:  This fund accounts for property tax revenues levied for payment of general obligation 
bonds.   
 
Capital projects:  The General Construction Fund accounts for acquisition or construction of capital assets, 
other than those financed by Enterprise funds. It includes city buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational 
facilities, and trails. The Street Capital Fund accounts for the construction of city roads. 
 
Enterprise:  Enterprise funds are used for activities that are similar to business enterprises, where the 
intent is that costs be recovered primarily through user charges or where determination of net income or 
loss is useful for public policy.  The enterprise funds for Water, Sanitary, and Storm are divided into 
operations and capital departments to reflect budgetary responsibility. 
 
Telecommunications:  Telecommunications supports the communication needs of the city, local businesses, 
school district, and residents. Services within this utility are primarily sold and managed through third party 
service providers.  
 
Divisions and Departments 
 
The General Fund is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities.  
These are grouped into five divisions for purposes of appropriations. The divisions are: 

i Administration 
i Public Safety 
i Public Works 
i Community Development 
i Community Services 

 
Operating and Capital 
 
The budget includes both operation and capital items. The operating budget encompasses recurring 
expenditures necessary for day-to-day operations. The capital budget is for construction of infrastructure 
and other long-lived fixed assets. The operating budget generally changes incrementally, as population and 
services increase. The capital budget is more erratic, depending on when loan funds are received and 
construction expenditures incurred.  

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 120



FINANCIALS       BUDGET IN TOTAL 
 

21 

Budget in Total 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 17,953,895$   20,679,980$   24,350,112$   20,235,520$   20,154,212$   20,154,212$   20,154,212$   
Revenue

Taxes 4,698,968      4,956,322      5,178,830      5,067,526      5,290,578      5,252,578      -                    
Franchise Fees 1,392,530      1,578,593      1,509,706      1,547,651      1,596,052      1,596,052      -                    
Licenses and permits 82,359           83,009           71,600           71,600           71,000           71,000           -                    
Intergovernmental 5,269,107      3,367,476      8,339,446      7,159,568      3,427,576      3,427,576      -                    
Charges for services 5,508,885      6,553,577      7,746,618      6,678,752      7,383,900      7,383,900      -                    
Infrastructure development 3,317,404      683,285         835,732         508,320         444,600         444,600         -                    
Fines, interest and other 1,450,236      1,957,722      2,153,792      1,487,412      1,717,125      1,717,125      -                    
Total revenue 21,719,488     19,179,984     25,835,724     22,520,829     19,930,831     19,892,831     -                    

Other sources
Transfers in 1,722,507      1,092,622      664,500         740,410         1,411,898      1,411,898      -                    
Sale of fixed assets 3,340,591      250,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Issuance of long-term debt 6,096,252      3,152,556      6,000,000      17,249,085     6,498,833      6,498,833      -                    
Total other sources 11,159,350     4,495,178      6,664,500      17,989,495     7,910,731      7,910,731      -                   

Total sources 50,832,734     44,355,141     56,850,336     60,745,844     47,995,774     47,957,774     20,154,212     
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 4,912,229      5,300,616      5,978,142      5,825,306      5,980,728      5,980,728      -                    
Payroll taxes 527,046         519,873         707,984         647,227         664,825         664,825         -                    
Benefits 1,730,189      1,784,252      2,037,550      1,982,706      2,310,440      2,310,440      -                    
Total personal services 7,169,464      7,604,742      8,723,676      8,455,239      8,955,993      8,955,993      -                    

Materials and services
Professional & technical 14,030,649     9,516,460      2,170,048      1,949,431      2,303,674      2,303,674      -                    
Facility and equipment 1,029,887      1,048,357      1,297,539      1,199,580      1,361,660      1,361,660      -                    
Other purchased services 864,438         963,122         1,180,559      1,053,053      1,238,909      1,238,909      -                    
Supplies 429,072         445,595         593,928         563,244         587,764         587,764         -                    
Community activities 66,295           39,619           58,628           60,528           57,195           17,195           -                    
Minor equipment 175,255         176,285         263,692         231,494         204,226         204,226         -                    
Other materials & services 224               (72,782)          47,772           (7,120)            (86,990)          (86,990)          -                    
Total materials & services 16,595,820     12,116,655     5,612,165      5,050,210      5,666,438      5,626,438      -                    

Capital outlay
Land 415,947         17,634           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Infrastructure 376,845         878,247         17,040,150     13,413,559     13,231,082     13,231,082     -                    
Vehicles 192,194         35,101           274,000         269,000         35,000           35,000           -                    
Furniture and equipment 94,930           117,434         645,196         446,996         385,923         385,923         -                    
Total capital outlay 1,079,916      1,048,417      17,959,346     14,129,555     13,652,005     13,652,005     -                    

Debt service
Principal 2,329,162      1,587,760      1,336,863      11,336,863     1,667,291      1,677,291      -                    
Interest 1,254,284      662,243         704,355         704,355         1,313,989      1,299,738      -                    
Issuance costs 1,600             7,184             -                    175,000         -                    -                    -                    
Total debt service 3,585,046      2,257,187      2,041,218      12,216,218     2,981,280      2,977,029      -                    

Total expenditures 28,430,247     23,027,000     34,336,406     39,851,222     31,255,716     31,211,465     -                    
Other uses

Transfers out 1,722,507      1,092,622      664,500         740,410         1,411,898      1,411,898      -                    
Ending Fund Balance 20,679,980     20,235,520     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Contingency 21,849,430     20,154,212     15,328,160     15,334,411     20,154,212     

Total uses 50,832,734     44,355,141     56,850,336     60,745,844     47,995,774     47,957,774     20,154,212     

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 121



FINANCIALS                                                                         BUDGET IN TOTAL BY FUND 
 

22 

Budget in Total by Fund 
 

Asset General Debt
2011-12 General Depreci- Construction Service
Budget Fund ation Fund Fund Fund

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 20,154,212    1,758,847   217,998    347,783       1,532     
Revenue

Taxes 5,252,578      4,364,578  -           -              888,000  
Francise Fees 1,596,052      1,596,052  -           -              -        
Licenses and permits 71,000          71,000       -           -              -        
Intergovernmental 3,427,576      1,389,968  -           -              -        
Charges for services 7,383,900      501,964     -           -              -        
Infrastructure development 444,600         122,600     -           100,000       -        
Fines, interest and other 1,717,125      1,646,475  -           24,750         -        
Total revenue 19,892,831    9,692,637  -           124,750       888,000  

Other sources
Transfers in 1,411,898      253,998     -           -              -        
Issuance of long-term debt 6,498,833      -            -           -              -        
Total other sources 7,910,731      253,998     -           -              -        

Total sources 47,957,774    11,705,482  217,998    472,533       889,532  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 5,980,728      4,758,084  -           -              -        
Payroll taxes 664,825         517,550     -           -              -        
Benefits 2,310,440      1,833,962  -           -              -        
Total personal services 8,955,993      7,109,596  -           -              -        

Materials and services .
Professional & technical 2,303,674      1,202,518  -           -              -        
Facility and equipment 1,361,660      766,436     -           -              -        
Other purchased services 1,238,909      620,635     -           -              -        
Supplies 587,764         342,232     -           -              -        
Community activities 17,195          17,195       -           -              -        
Minor equipment 204,226         174,854     -           -              -        
Other materials & services (86,990)         (1,079,104)  -           -              -        
Total materials & services 5,626,438      2,044,766  -           -              -        

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 13,231,082    192,000     -           -              -        
Vehicles 35,000          35,000       -           -              -        
Furniture and equipment 385,923         334,923     -           -              -        
Total capital outlay 13,652,005    561,923     -           -              -        

Debt service
Principal 1,677,291      164,273     -           36,120         705,000  
Interest 1,299,738      36,529       -           12,021         182,897  
Total debt service 2,977,029      200,802     -           48,141         887,897  

Total expenditures 31,211,465    9,917,087  -           48,141         887,897  
Other uses

Transfers out 1,411,898      200,000     217,998    -              -        
Ending Fund Balance -               -            
Contingency 15,334,411    1,588,395  0              424,392       1,635     

Total uses 47,957,774    11,705,482  217,998    472,533       889,532  

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 122



FINANCIALS                                                                         BUDGET IN TOTAL BY FUND 
 

23 

Budget in Total by Fund 
 

Street Street
Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 280,652    3,451,547  9,503,316   3,614,505  843,907    134,125  
Revenue

Taxes -           -           -             -           -           -        
Francise Fees -           -           -             -           -           -        
Licenses and permits -           -           -             -           -           -        
Intergovernmental 901,200    25,000      -             761,408    350,000    -        
Charges for services 530,000    -           4,201,200   512,736    1,360,000  278,000  
Infrastructure development -           150,000    66,000        3,000        3,000        -        
Fines, interest and other -           -           24,000        8,700        1,200        12,000   
Total revenue 1,431,200  175,000    4,291,200   1,285,844  1,714,200  290,000  

Other sources
Transfers in 229,000    783,900    25,000        50,000      60,000      10,000   
Issuance of long-term debt -           -           6,498,833   -           -           -        
Total other sources 229,000    783,900    6,523,833   50,000      60,000      10,000   

Total sources 1,940,852  4,410,447  20,318,349  4,950,349  2,618,107  434,125  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 191,616    123,144    427,764      227,304    235,092    17,724   
Payroll taxes 27,969      11,726      49,517        26,240      30,262      1,561     
Benefits 75,780      45,180      184,266      79,080      85,008      7,164     
Total personal services 295,365    180,050    661,547      332,624    350,362    26,449   

Materials and services
Professional & technical 35,704      -           854,508      35,508      165,396    10,040   
Facility and equipment 416,500    -           91,312        24,240      25,216      37,956   
Other purchased services 43,916      324           382,462      72,480      87,652      31,440   
Supplies 60,756      -           134,488      12,188      23,100      15,000   
Community activities -           -           -             -           -           -        
Minor equipment 1,008        -           8,004          1,508        8,852        10,000   
Other materials & services 141,196    139,486    316,245      198,451    184,091    12,644   
Total materials & services 699,080    139,810    1,787,019   344,375    494,307    117,080  

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 588,000    3,439,800  7,007,750   1,403,329  600,203    -        
Vehicles -           -           -             -           -           -        
Furniture and equipment -           -           -             -           11,000      40,000   
Total capital outlay 588,000    3,439,800  7,007,750   1,403,329  611,203    40,000   

Debt service
Principal 57,517      -           501,470      54,642      158,269    -        
Interest 1,864        -           1,054,103   1,771        10,552      -        
Total debt service 59,381      -           1,555,573   56,413      168,821    -        

Total expenditures 1,641,826  3,759,660  11,011,889  2,136,741  1,624,694  183,529  
Other uses

Transfers out -           -           240,000      323,900    230,000    200,000  
Ending Fund Balance
Contingency 299,025    650,786    9,066,459   2,489,708  763,413    50,597   

Total uses 1,940,852  4,410,447  20,318,349  4,950,349  2,618,107  434,125  

Enterprise Funds

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 123



 

24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 124



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 
 

25 

General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the main operating fund.  It includes all resources not accounted for in other 
funds.  General fund revenues can generally be used for any government purpose.  The General Fund 
is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities.  These are 
grouped into five divisions for purposes of appropriations.   
 
The divisions are:  

i Administration 
i Public Safety 
i Public Works 
i Community Development 
i Community Services 

 
Property Tax Levies 
 
There are three types of property tax levies in Oregon.  The permanent rate levy funds general city 
operations.  The debt service levy is used for principal and interest payments on general obligation 
bonds approved by the voters.  Local option levies, which Sherwood currently does not have, are voter-
approved, time-limited levies for specified purposes.     
 
The Washington County Department of Assessment and Taxation determines assessed values and 
collects taxes.  Property is assessed January 1 for the fiscal year beginning July 1.  Taxes are due 
beginning November 15, and discounts are allowed for taxes paid in full by November 15.   
 
Assessed Value 
 
Each local government’s tax rate was determined by the state in 1997.  Sherwood’s permanent rate is 
$3.2975 per $1,000 of assessed value.   No action of the city can increase the permanent tax rate. 
 
Ballot Measure 50, implemented in the 1997-98 tax year, limits assessed value to the lower of 
Maximum Assessed Value (MAV) or Real Market Value (RMV).  Maximum Assessed Value increases by 
3% annually.   
 
There are exceptions to the 3% annual increase.  Maximum Assessed Value may increase by more than 
3% if: 

i There is new construction or improvements 
i The property is partitioned or subdivided 
i Rezoning occurs and the property is used consistent with rezoning 

 
Limits and Compression 
 
The total tax on a given piece of property is limited as follows: 

i General Government:  $10 per $1,000 of Real Market Value 
i Schools: $5 per $1,000 of Real Market Value 
i Unlimited debt service:  levies to pay bonds for capital construction projects are not subject to 

limitation.   
If the total tax bill exceeds the limits, taxes are reduced in a process called compression.   
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 125



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 
 

26 

In 2010-11, Sherwood property owners paid tax as follows: 

 
 
Effect of the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal District is a geographic area within the City of Sherwood, defined in the Urban 
Renewal Plan.  The purpose of the district is to eliminate blight and create an environment in which the 
private sector may develop uses consistent with the goals of the Urban Renewal Plan.  The District 
borrows money to fund infrastructure and other improvements, receives property taxes calculated on 
the increased assessed values, and uses the taxes to pay debt service on the borrowings. 
The URA began operations in 2001-02.  The assessed value in the district was determined at that date 
and became the frozen base.  In subsequent years, the incremental assessed value is the difference 
between the assessed value in the district and the frozen base.  Each year, the URA receives property 
tax attributable to the incremental assessed value; the city general fund receives property tax 
attributable to the city’s assessed value less the URA incremental value. 
 
Property tax for the URA is a portion of the permanent rate levy for the city and each overlapping tax 
district, not an addition to it.  The amount of tax for the URA is  by the incremental 
assessed value in the Urban Renewal District, but the tax is  by dividing the city’s (and each 
taxing entity’s) permanent rate levy.  Thus, tax for the URA appears on each tax bill in Sherwood, not 
just those in the URD.  Absent the URA, the tax would go to the City and other taxing districts -- but 
without urban renewal efforts and expenditures, the assessed values presumably would not have 
increased.   
 
The URD will cease to exist after it has incurred and repaid the maximum indebtedness specified in the 
plan, $35,347,600.   
 

Unlimited debt 
service
27%

Washington Cnty
13%

TVFR
8%

City of Sherwood
15%

Port of Portland

Metro

URD-Sherwood
10%

ESD-NW Regional

Portland Comm. 
College

1%

School Dist -
Sherwood

23%

2010-11 Tax Levy Catagories

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 126



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 
 

27 

2010-11 Tax  
A Sherwood homeowner with an assessed value of $300,000 would have paid $5,731 in property taxes, 
as follows: 

 
 
The City of Sherwood’s portion of unlimited debt service is $184.44; the remainder is for other 
jurisdictions such as Tualatin Valley Fire, Sherwood School Dist., and Washington County. 
 
Property Tax Levies 

General Fund
Estimated Taxable assessed value (exclusive of 
URA incremental assessed value) 1,347,705,286$ 
Multiplied by the permanent rate 0.0032975        
Levy 4,444,058         
Plus tax on farmland previously deferred -                  
Less amount uncollectable in the year levied (231,980)          
General fund FY11-12 property taxes 4,212,078$       

Debt Service Fund
Levy 926,000$          
Less amount uncollectable in the year levied -                  
Debt service fund FY11-12 property taxes 926,000$          

 

$1,537

$756

$473

$878

$19 $26

$646

$41 $75

$1,281

$0

$300

$600

$900

$1,200

$1,500

$1,800

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 127



GENERAL GOVERNMENT       GENERAL FUND 
 

28 

General Fund in Total 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance (1,242,300)$  898,753$   1,355,891$  1,862,794$  1,758,847$  1,758,847$  1,758,847$  
Revenue

Taxes 3,880,855     4,039,542  4,265,554    4,154,250   4,364,578   4,364,578  -                 
Franchise Fees 1,392,530     1,578,593  1,509,706    1,547,651   1,596,052   1,596,052  -                 
Licenses and permits 82,359         83,009      71,600      71,600        71,000        71,000        -                 
Intergovernmental 3,285,072     1,315,052  1,502,306    1,339,076   1,389,968   1,389,968  -                 
Charges for services 658,267       465,738    462,422       519,333      501,964      501,964      -                 
Infrastructure development 36,617         114,396    166,024       103,100      122,600      122,600      -                 
Fines, interest and other 686,911       633,159    2,064,932    1,353,440   1,646,475   1,646,475  -                 
Total revenue 10,022,611   8,229,489  10,042,544  9,088,450   9,692,637   9,692,637  -                 

Other sources
Transfers in 27,300         372,367    -                 -                 253,998      253,998      -                 
Sale of fixed assets 3,340,591     250,000    -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Total other sources 3,367,891     622,367    -                 -                 253,998      253,998      -                 

Total sources 12,148,202   9,750,609  11,398,435  10,951,244  11,705,482  11,705,482  1,758,847   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 4,051,524     4,224,480  4,656,336    4,549,807   4,758,084   4,758,084   -                 
Payroll taxes 444,197       410,202    540,058       495,657      517,550      517,550      -                 
Benefits 1,440,824     1,422,917  1,587,166    1,551,923   1,833,962   1,833,962   -                 
Total personal services 5,936,545     6,057,599  6,783,559    6,597,388   7,109,596   7,109,596   -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 808,946       717,101    1,253,187    1,051,241   1,202,518   1,202,518   -                 
Facility and equipment 607,650       569,885    737,147       685,508      766,436      766,436      -                 
Other purchased services 449,649       375,792    574,150       492,321      620,635      620,635      -                 
Supplies 290,297       268,103    337,144       347,828      342,232      342,232      -                 
Community activities 66,247         39,619      58,328        60,228        57,195        17,195        -                 
Minor equipment 103,870       154,864    208,832       189,114      174,854      174,854      -                 
Other materials & services (549,285)      (695,397)   (1,069,387)   (984,018)     (1,079,104)  (1,079,104)  -                 
Total materials & services 1,777,374     1,429,966  2,099,401    1,842,222   2,084,766   2,044,766   -                 

Capital outlay
Land 264,000       -               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Infrastructure 34,029         24,045      98,000        94,000        192,000      192,000      -                 
Vehicles 32,017         35,101      20,000        15,000        35,000        35,000        -                 
Furniture and equipment 66,960         104,839    382,200       204,000      334,923      334,923      -                 
Total capital outlay 397,006       163,986    500,200       313,000      561,923      561,923      -                 

Debt service
Principal 987,647       136,596    146,068       146,068      164,273      164,273      -                 
Interest 697,691       50,416      43,718        43,718        36,529        36,529        -                 
Total debt service 1,685,338     187,012    189,786       189,786      200,802      200,802      -                 

Total expenditures 9,796,263     7,838,563  9,572,947    8,942,397   9,957,087   9,917,087   -                 
Other uses

Transfers out 1,453,186     49,252      250,000       250,000      200,000      200,000      -                 
Ending Fund Balance 898,753       1,862,794  -                 -                 -                 
Contingency 1,575,488    1,758,847   1,548,395   1,588,395   1,758,847   

Total uses 12,148,202   9,750,609  11,398,435  10,951,244  11,705,482  11,705,482  1,758,847   
 

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 128



GENERAL GOVERNMENT       GENERAL FUND 
 

29 

General Fund in Total by Division 
 
 

Community Public Community Public Works 2011-12
Administration Development Safety Services Operations Budget

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 1,758,847        -                   -                    -                 -                    1,758,847$    
Revenue

Taxes 4,364,578        -               -                 -             -                 4,364,578      
Francise Fees 1,596,052        -               -                 -             -                 1,596,052      
Licenses and permits 61,000            -               10,000            -             -                 71,000          
Intergovernmental 392,400          5,000            209,982          702,586       80,000            1,389,968      
Charges for services 45,000            239,230        4,000             210,179       3,555             501,964        
Infrastructure development charges -                 122,600        -                 -             -                 122,600        
Fines, interest and other 1,570,975        -               27,500            33,000        15,000            1,646,475      
Total revenue 8,030,005        366,830        251,482          945,765       98,555            9,692,637      

Other sources
Transfers in 253,998          -               -                 -             -                 253,998        
Total other sources 253,998          -               -                 -             -                 253,998        

Total sources 10,042,850   366,830      251,482        945,765     98,555          11,705,482 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services
Salaries and wages 1,125,312        564,648        1,881,036       662,364       524,724          4,758,084      
Payroll taxes 96,099            54,752          240,164          58,422        68,113            517,550        
Benefits 417,785          215,445        751,776          238,716       210,240          1,833,962      
Total personal services 1,639,196        834,845        2,872,976       959,502       803,077          7,109,596      

Materials and services
Professional & technical services 619,375          99,506          213,000          58,040        212,597          1,202,518      
Facility and equipment 299,230          14,420          108,204          960             343,622          766,436        
Other purchased services 417,951          34,918          100,668          28,336        38,762            620,635        
Supplies 18,320            5,974            48,656            141,450       127,832          342,232        
Community act ivities 9,200              195               2,500             3,000          2,300             17,195          
Minor equipment 117,500          6,050            6,504             3,000          41,800            174,854        
Other materials and services (951,284)         (128,820)       1,000             -             -                 (1,079,104)    
Total materials and services 530,292          32,243          480,532          234,786       766,913          2,044,766      

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                 -               -                 -             192,000          192,000        
Vehicles -                 -               35,000            -             -                 35,000          
Furniture and equipment 192,441          -               142,482          -             -                 334,923        
Total capital outlay 192,441          -               177,482          -             192,000          561,923        

Debt service
Principal 103,880          -               -                 30,197        30,197            164,273        
Interest 34,571            -               -                 979             979                36,529          
Total debt service 138,451          -               -                 31,175        31,175            200,802        

Total expenditures 2,500,380        867,088        3,530,990       1,225,463    1,793,165       9,917,087      
Other uses

Transfers out 200,000          -               -                 -             -                 200,000        
Ending Fund Balance -                 -               
Contingency 1,588,395        -               -                 -             -                 1,588,395      

Total uses 4,288,775     867,088      3,530,990     1,225,463  1,793,165     11,705,482 
Net sources (uses) 5,754,075$   (500,258)$   (3,279,508)$ (279,698)$ (1,694,610)$ -$                

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 129



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

30 

Administration Division 
 
Administration provides leadership and support for all City functions including the City Council.  
Administration includes the City Council, City Recorder, City Manager, Assistant City Manager, 
Information Technology, Human Resources and Finance. 
 
All general government revenue such as taxes and franchise fees are posted to the Administration. 
 

 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Approved

Revenue
Taxes 3,880,855   4,039,542 4,265,554 4,154,250 4,364,578 
Franchise Fees 1,392,530   1,578,593 1,509,706 1,547,651 1,596,052 
Licenses and Permits 70,734       71,109     61,200     61,200     61,000     
Intergovernmental 2,377,709   367,276    410,300    410,300    392,400    
Charges for Services 26,554       32,028     25,300     37,740     45,000     
Infrastructure & Development -               300         -             -             -             
Other Revenue 560,067     488,236    1,970,482 1,245,893 1,570,975 
Transfers in & Other Sources 3,329,000   622,367    -             -             253,998    
Total revenue 45,913,506 6,545,793 8,242,542 7,457,034 8,284,003 

Expenditures
Personal services 1,271,458   1,290,725 1,668,776 1,504,613 1,639,196 
Materials and services (916,788)    (981,269)  (908,469)  (958,231)  530,292    
Capital outlay 330,960     103,065    127,800    40,000     192,441    
Debt service 1,672,837   137,009    139,782    139,782    138,451    
Transfers out & Other Sources 1,453,186   49,252     250,000    250,000    200,000    

Total expenditures 3,811,652   598,782    1,277,889 976,165    2,700,380 

Net revenue (expenditures) 42,101,854 5,947,011 6,964,653 6,480,869 5,583,623 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The City of Sherwood had nearly 80,000 
unique visitors to it’s website in 2010. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 130



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

31 

City Manager 
 
City Manager provides leadership, coordination and management for the City and is responsible for 
establishing general administrative policies that govern the operations of the city.  The City Manager, 
with input from his Senior Management team, also supports and assists the Mayor and City Councilor’s 
in their roles as policy makers by providing accurate and timely information and appropriate policy 
alternatives.  The City Manager as an appointed officer by the City Council also works closely with the 
other three appointed officers, the City Attorney, City Recorder and Municipal Court Judge.  These 
appointed, contract employees also provides oversight for contracts, budget development, official 
records, legislative activities, public information and municipal elections. 
 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Received approval and adopted balanced budget by City Council for 2010-2011 budget. 
i ¾ Completion of water pipeline to Wilsonville along with successful negotiation completion 
i Approval of Cannery PUD and redevelopment started winter 2010 
i Beginning of  Municipal Code Clean Up process 
i Continuing to improve Citizen Communication and outreach  
i Completion of School District IGA, including newly constructed schools and facilities 
i Renewal of WCCLS levy during November 2010 election by voters to provide funding for City 

of Sherwood Library 
i Council approval, construction and implementation of Photo Red Light Cameras on Highway 

99W to enhance safety. 
i Public Works Director, recruited, hired and trained customer service representatives in water 

utility billing department after transition from TVWD. 
i Successfully recruited and hired new Finance Director, February 2010. 

 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 

Oversee all divisions and departments in their efforts to meet the City’s goals. 
 
 
 
 

In 2010 the City of Sherwood received 3,471.43 
volunteer hours (1.67 FTE). Volunteers donated their 
time at the library, police department and numerous 

community service projects including the Adopt-a-Road 
program and the annual Arbor Day Tree Plant. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 131



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

32 

Assistant City Manager 
 
The Assistant City Manager functions as the operations officer for the City Manager, monitoring City 
activities and projects to assure timely coordination and completion. The Assistant City Manager 
oversees the Human Resources Division, Finance, Information Technology and the Urban Renewal 
District.  This role also makes recommendations to the City Manager for policies and procedures and 
City wide budget development and implementation. 
 
 
 
 
The Assistant City Manager position is again unfunded for fiscal year 2011-2012.   

 
The newly completed water transmission pipeline 

from Sherwood to Wilsonville holds 1.8 million 
gallons of water 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 132



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

33 

City Council and Recorder 
 
The seven-member City Council is composed of an elected Mayor and six elected Councilors.  The 
Council members serve a four year term and the Mayor serves two years. The City Council is the 
legislative branch of our local government which is responsible for setting policies.  This is 
accomplished through the adoption of ordinances and resolutions.  City Council meets in regular 
monthly meetings.  In addition Council work sessions are held to study upcoming issues. The City 
Recorder is responsible for the management of City records and provides administrative support to the 
Council. 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Established table of Council Records on City website, continue working to populate table 
i Obtained CMC, Certified Municipal Clerks Certification from the International Institute of 

Municipal Clerks, continuing education to obtain MMC, Master Municipal Clerk Certification 
i Continued recognition of Student Academic and Athletic Achievements and Eagle Scouts 

Awards  
i Expanded program with Boy Scouts of America in support of scouts working towards earning 

Merit Badges 
 

2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood, City Recorder supports all City departments in achieving the Goals of the City 
by supporting the values identified as important by City leaders. 
 
Value:   
 
Strategies: 
 
 Develop and Implement a Records Management program 
 

Activities: 
i Provide staff training on records management, writing legislation and Code 

amendments, keep staff apprised of new Oregon Administrative Rules 
i Coordinate Records Management Day at all City facilities 
i Prepare records for Records Archive Room, creating electronic records, review 

retention dates, prepare records for destruction and abide by Oregon Administrative 
Rules 

i Manage Requests for Records 
i Record documents with local government agencies 
i Responsible for maintaining the Sherwood Municipal Code and managing the public 

link via the City website  
 

Performance Measures: 
i Responded to and filled 50+ Request for Records 
i Coordinated and oversaw 15+ amendments to the Municipal Code 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 133



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

34 

City Council and Recorder 
 
Value:  
 
Strategies: 

 
Provide excellent support to the City Council. 
 

Activities: 
i Prepare Council & URA Board agenda’s and meeting materials 
i Prepare and post public notices 
i Prepare legislation for adoption 
i Transcribe meeting minutes 
i Ensure meeting records are complete and accurate 
i Manage all correspondences of elected officials 
i Serve as contact person for elected officials 
i Coordinate annual student achievement awards 
i Coordinate monthly Boy Scout and Girl Scout achievement awards 
i Support Boys Scouts of American earning of Merit Badges 
i Produce and manage City Council/City Recorder annual budget 
 

Performance Measures: 
i Coordinated 2 monthly City Council meetings and URA Board meetings as needed, 

prepare materials and transcribe meeting minutes 
i Prepare 100+ pieces of legislation per year for City Council & URA Board 
i Recognized 200+ Students for Academic and Athletic Achievements 

 
Serve as the City Elections Official 

 
Activities: 

i Coordinate and oversee City elections 
i Abide by Oregon Election Laws 
i Prepare ballot measures 
i Ensure proper public noticing 
i Canvass election results and record with County Elections Office 

 
Performance Measure: 

i Successfully coordinate 1 City Election in 2011-12  
 

 

0

50

100

150

FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11 Projected FY 11-12 Projected

Council Activities

Meetings held Resolutions adopted Property Code/Plan adoption or amendments Rates/Fees

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 134



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

35 

Information Technologies 
 
The Information Technologies department provides technical support, troubleshooting and 
maintenance of computer hardware and software used by the city.  The department operates and 
maintains the network, servers, phone systems, Sherwood Broadband, and Sherwood public access 
channel.  This department also manages software licensing, assists departments in improving service 
through effective use of technology and provides training to staff. 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
  

i Added and enhanced several features on the website (E-News, Meeting Resources, 
Forms/Surveys, etc.) 

i Improved the cable access channel by adding a bulletin board feature and Planning 
Commission videos. 

i Achieved roughly 60k in savings by renegotiating contracts and service modifications. 
i Continued server and storage consolidation, achieving significant cost savings and added 

efficiencies. 
i Developed a Network Master Plan that outlines configuration, policy and equipment changes 

to support the current and future needs of the city. 
i Replaced 50 desktop computers and updated our operating environment and word 

procession applications. 
i IT staff developed several applications “in house” resulting in significant savings and added 

efficiency to the City.  
 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Information Technology Department supports all the technical needs of the 
employees of Sherwood along with support to the Sherwood Broadband utility and its customers. 
 
Value:   
 
Strategies: 
 

Continue IT Service Management improvements 
 

Activities: 
i Develop automated workflows for common IT processes 
i Increase the amount of end user documentation 
i Build upon the current IT knowledge management system 
i Increase the development of IT policies and standards  

 
Performance Measure: 

i Help Desk satisfaction rate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 135



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

36 

Information Technologies 
 
Value:  
 
Strategies: 

 
Enhance the community information presented on the website and cable access channel 

 
 Activities: 

i Synchronize community information on both the website and cable access channel 
i Complete visual improvements to the cable access channel 
i Improve the citizen services on the website through the use of online forms. 

 
Performance Measure: 

i Visitors to the city’s website and average time spent on the site 
 
 
Value:  
 
Strategies: 

 
Continue current server and storage consolidation efforts 
 

Activities: 
i Implement Disaster Recovery Plan recommendations into our server and storage 

systems. 
i Continue to migrate all city data to the consolidated storage system. 
i Deploy a long term (archival) storage solution that supports the city’s Disaster 

Recovery Plan and current server/storage system. 
 
Performance Measure: 

i Server consolidation ratio and percentage of servers virtualized. 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

FY 06-07 Actual FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11
Projected

FY 11-12
Projected

Number of Systems Supported per IT FTE

Servers Applications Desktop Computers

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 136



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

37 

Human Resources & Risk Management  
 
The Human Resource Department provides personnel support for all City employees.  This department 
also includes recruitment, training and development, benefit and compensation, and salary 
classifications and is responsible for managing and updating The City of Sherwood Employee Manual 
and Employee Policies.  Manages two union contracts and leads employee advocacy.  Risk 
Management is responsible for managing the policies and processing claims for workers’ compensation, 
property, auto and equipment and liability insurance.  This department also reviews and manages the 
City’s benefit package to insure the best possible rates and protection for employees at a reasonable 
rate.   
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Retain, recruit and train a top quality work force. 
i Manage all lines of insurance coverage for the City. 
i Proactive Risk Management. 
i Lead in employee advocacy. 

 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Human Resource Department goals are the Values identified as important by 
City leaders. 
 
Value:   
  
Strategies: 
 

Develop and Implement a fiscally responsible Risk Management Plan 
 

Activities: 
i Create and implement Risk Management Tools. 
i Promote a safe work environment by providing proper training and ergonomic work 

place for employees. 
i Manage Workers’ Compensation Claims and promote an “Early Return to Work” plan. 
i Provide employee safety training for improved on the job safety. 

 
Performance Measures: 

i 100% of all workers comp claims will participate in an “early return to work” plan. 
i All divisions are represented on the City of Sherwood safety committee 
i Safety committee will meet monthly. 
 

Activities: 
i Continue using Assessment Center processes for qualifying applicants. 
i Promote a healthy and productive work environment with on-going incentive plans. 
i Manage employee health benefit plans and programs that are cost effective.  
i Employee Advocacy through maintaining a positive work environment with 

employees and unions.  Implementing positive evaluations for employee feedback. 
 
Performance Measures: 

i At least 90% of employees will participate in the wellness survey during benefit 
enrollment 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 137



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

38 

Human Resources & Risk Management  
 
Value:  
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop and Implement Employee Training 
 

Activities: 
i Create an On-Line Employee Orientation and Training Tool. 
i Organize on-site training for employees and management. 
i Attend Risk Management, Employee Relations and Policy Training Seminars to keep 

up to date on HR Trends. 
i Work with Manager/Supervisors and Directors to motivate and further train 

employees on all aspects of the job functions, team work, customer service and time 
management.  Adding additional training topics throughout the year as needed. 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Implementation of employee online training program 
i Conduct quarterly training for employees on wellness related topics 
i Attend 90% of the HR Forum meetings 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11
Projected

FY 11-12
Projected

Average Hours of Training per FTE

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 138



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

39 

Finance 
 
The Finance department provides financial information, oversight and management.  Finance is 
responsible for the annual budget, annual audit, debt management, payroll, cash management, 
reception, and accounts payable. Municipal Court is part of the Finance Department, and is responsible 
for processing all citations and violations issued by the Sherwood Police Department.   
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Received the GFOA Budget Award for Fiscal Year 2010-2011. 
i Implemented Photo Red Light processing into Court operations 
i Upgraded the city’s financial software system 
i Created new fiscal policies with the Budget Committee 
i Met all CAFR deadlines 

 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Finance Department supports all other departments in achieving the Goals of the 
City by Supporting the Values identified as important by City leaders. 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Fiscal Responsibility 
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop and implement a fiscally responsible budget 
 
 Activities: 

i Budget preparation and monitoring 
i Process receipts, purchasing, payments and deposits 

 
 Performance Measures: 

i Receive the GFOA Budget Award 
i Process all cash receipts within 48 hours of receipt 
i All vendors are paid within 30 days of receipt of invoices 

 
Comply with State Auditing Guidelines 

 
 Activities: 

i Prepare work papers and coordinate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  
 
 Performance Measure: 

i Meet all statutory requirements and deadlines with preparing the CAFR 
 

Update and maintain the City’s Payroll System 
 

 Activities: 
i Review and process time sheets 
i Process all Federal and State Tax Reporting 
i Update and Maintain PERS reporting requirements 

 
 Performance Measure: 

i All employees are paid on time and all statutory requirements are met. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 139



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 
 

40 

Finance 
 
Develop and Implement City Financing and Investment portfolios 

 
 Activities 

i Monitor Bank and LGIP accounts 
i Develop and implement financing arrangements for City projects 

 
 Performance Measure: 

i A funding plan will be identified for all City projects prior to the projects start 
dates 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 
 
Strategies: 
 

Provide excellent reception services for customers at City Hall 
 

 Activities: 
i Maintain knowledge of City departments and staff 
i Assist customers with information referrals 
i Assist customers with applicable forms and applications.  

  
 Performance Measures: 

i All phone calls are responded to within 24 hours 
i Have staff available for Business License questions during all operating hours 

 
Develop and Maintain Customer Oriented Court Administration 
 
 Activities: 

i Import and track citations 
i Process arraignment and trial sessions 
i Assure compliance with Oregon Statutes and Administrative Rules 

 
 Performance Measures: 

i All phone calls are responded to within 24 hours 
i Mail correspondence is responded to within 5 days of receipt 

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 140



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

41 

Community Development Division 
 
To provide overall management and administrative support for the City’s Community Development 
Division.  This division includes planning, engineering, and building.  Community Development strives 
to provide efficient, consistent, and seamless private and public development services. 
 
 
 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Approved

Revenue
Intergovernmental 126,476    148,631    52,110     58,010     5,000        
Charges for Services 413,768    200,652    247,882    241,554    239,230     
Infrastructure & Development 36,617     114,096    166,024    103,100    122,600     
Other Revenue (0)           -             150         150         -              
Transfers in & Other Sources 38,891     -             -             -             -              
Total revenue 615,752    803,648    466,166    402,814    366,830     

Expenditures
Personal services 929,730    861,974    831,795    917,212    834,845     
Materials and services 562,076    412,025    426,731    379,950    32,243      

Total expenditures 1,491,806 1,274,000 1,258,526 1,297,162 867,088     

Net revenue (expenditures) (876,055)  (470,352)  (792,360)  (894,348)  (500,258)    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The first known building code, or rules for construction, 
where enacted in Babylon in 1792 BC.  They consisted of 
six rules found in sections 228-233 of “Hammurabi’s Code 

of Laws”.  Modern day building codes now consist of 
multiple volumes of provisions. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 141



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

42 

Community Development Division  
 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Community Development Department provides quality current and long range 
planning, building and engineering services to support the infrastructure, livability, well-being and 
economic development of the community. 
 
Value:   
 
Strategies: 
 

Ensure that staff is efficient and effective in providing highest high level of customer service and 
development review. 
 

Activities: 
i Track time spent on activities including customer service 
 

Performance Measures 
i Timecards are completely filled out and reviewed by manager 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 
 
Strategies: 
 

Provide excellent customer services for citizen, developers and customers at City Hall 
 

Activities: 
i Assist customers with applicable forms and applications 
i Provide prompt response to phone calls, e-mails and in-person inquiries 
i Attend trainings as necessary and appropriate to ensure continued knowledge in 

the field 
i Provide over the counter assistance whenever possible  
i Process applications in a timely manner 
i Refine public involvement process to be more clear and inclusive 

 
Performance Measure 

i 100% of all Type III and IV applications have first public hearing within 6-8 
weeks 

i 100% of all Type II applications have decision issued within 8 weeks 
i 100% of all Type 1 permits processed within 2 weeks 
i Track and resolve all issues in a database format. 

 
Provide efficient processes for developers. 
 

Activities: 
i Prepare forms, applications and instructions as necessary 
i Maintain and provide current City Codes and Standards in a user friendly format 
i Assure compliance with adopted current Statewide and Regional codes and 

Standards 
 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 142



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

43 

Community Development Division  
 
Performance Measure 

i Keep stock of forms and applications available in the lobby at all times. 
i Adopt current Statewide and Regional codes when required 

 
Goal:  Public Safety:   “The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of 
the community and its citizens.”  
 
Strategies: 

Require projects to follow up to date Codes and Standards to ensure public safety 
 

Activities: 
i Maintain and provide current City Codes and Standards 
i Assure compliance with adopted current City, Statewide and Regional Codes and 

Standards through land use and plan review and inspection. 
i Design projects to comply with all Codes, Standards and Applicable Permits 
 

Performance Measure 
i Stock forms and applications in the lobby at all times. 
i Adopt current Statewide and Regional codes when required 
 

Respond to inquiries and requests from public for traffic control changes. 
 

Activities: 
i Respond to initial inquiries and requests in a timely fashion and document 

citizens’ concerns and request. 
i Review and research citizen inquiries and requests using current standards, 

practices, and policies. 
i Inform citizens of outcome of reviews in a timely fashion. 
 

Performance Measure 
i Respond to all inquiries with the Public Works and Public Safety Divisions 
i  Track all requests with issues database 

 
Goal:  Infrastructure:   “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure 
for its citizens to live, work and play.”  
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop Capital Improvement Programs to ensure infrastructure is available for citizens and 
development 
 

Activities: 
i Prepare Capital Improvement Plans 
i Prepare and Update Master plans 
i Provide recommendations for financial plans to ensure funds are available to 

create and maintain infrastructure  
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 143



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

44 

Community Development Division  
 
Performance Measure 

i Include Capital improvement plan items in current budget 
i Update all Master plans according to schedule outlined in plan or earlier as 

necessary.  
i Update methodologies for system development charges and fees. 
i  

Design and Construct Capital Projects in a timely manner to allow orderly development 
 

Activities: 
i Adams Avenue South 
i Adams Avenue North 
i Oregon Street Railroad Crossing Improvement 
i Area 54/55 Upper Ladd Hill Regional Stormwater Facility 
i Columbia Street Regional Stormwater Facility 
i Brookman Area Sanitary Sewer Conveyance System  

Extension Phase 1 and Phase 2 
i Pine Street Phase 2 Construction 
i Street Maintenance Projects 
i Rock Creek Trunk Mainline Capacity Upgrade 

 
Goal:  Livability:   “The City of Sherwood will provide opportunity for responsible 
community development and growth.”  
 
Strategies: 

Develop and implement plans for undeveloped areas in the Urban Growth Boundary for 
implementation and for areas of potential re-development 
 

Activities: 
i Annexation of Area 54/55 Brookman 
i Annexation of Area 48 Industrial Area 
i Town Center Plan 
i 99W corridor plan 
 

Performance Measure 
i Successfully annex areas into the City of Sherwood 
i Develop plans for adoption by Council (this will likely extend beyond FY 11-12) 

 
Work with Regional Partners to develop consistent plans that will benefit  
Sherwood and the surrounding communities 
 

Activities: 
i Urban Growth report and potential UGB expansion 
i SW Corridor Planning 
i Comprehensive Plan Periodic Review 
i TSP update 

 
Performance Measure 

i Adopt measures that will implement regional decisions into City Codes and Plans. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 144



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

45 

Community Development Division  
 
Review existing development code to ensure development continues to reflect community 
values 
 

Activities: 
i Review sign code (wall signs, temporary signs) 
i Review park and open space requirements 
i Tree Code (removal and mitigation) updates 
i Public improvements 
i Residential land division 
i Parking lot design and landscaping standards 
i Capacity Allocation Program 
i Density clarification for PUD, multi-family and mixed use 
i PUD process and standards 
i Comprehensive housekeeping code update 
 

Performance Measure 
i Hold meetings with Planning Commission Council and Public. 
i Adopt ordinances that address issues as approved by Council. 
 

Goal:  Resident Well Being:   “The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of 
services to encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens”  
 
Strategies: 
 

Work with Regional Partners to provide amenities consistent with the Transportation and Park 
Master Plans 
 

Activities: 
i Participate with partners on the Toquin Trail Master Plan 
i Apply for applicable funds for street, bike and pedestrian facilities 
i Cedar Creek Trail 
i Stella Olsen Park Restroom Facilities 

 
Performance Measure 

i These projects will span multiple years.  Make consistent progress. 
 

Goal:  Economic Development:   “The City of Sherwood will promote responsible 
economic development which benefits the community.”  
 
Strategies: 

 
Provide Infrastructure for City owned lands to stimulate economic development 

 
Activities: 

i Cannery Public Infrastructure 
i Tannery Site Acquisition and Development 

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 145



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

46 

Planning 
 
The Planning Department is responsible for guiding, updating, and implementing the Comprehensive 
Plan, the long-range planning tool of the community, which envisions the design and function of 
Sherwood’s built and natural environments. The essential duties of the Department are current 
planning, such as development review, permitting, and enforcement of the City's zoning code; long 
range planning that entails updates to the Comprehensive Plan and master planning; and special 
projects developed by the City Manager’s Office and the Planning Commission, such as policy 
evaluation and site analysis. This year’s budget reflects the continuation of the above technical services 
along with specific projects.  
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Annexation of Adams Avenue north concept plan area 
i Development and adoption of Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan 
i Continued to process the majority of land use applications within 6-8 weeks 
i Continued participation on the Tonquin Trail Master Plan in coordination with Metro, 

Wilsonville, Tualatin, Clackamas County and Washington County. 
i Continued coordination and participation with regional partners on issues of regional and 

local importance  
i Started multi-phase code clean-up project and completed amendments to: increase public 

notice; require neighborhood meetings; streamline the application submittal process; and 
complete basic housekeeping amendments. 

i Amended the development code to extend the land use approval timeframes due to the 
economic downturn 

 
Land Use Applications Processed 
 
Type 2 applications are staff level decisions.  Generally these are more straight forward and smaller in size. 
Type 3 applications require a public hearing and decision by a Hearings Officer. 
Type 4 applications require a public hearing and decision by the Planning Commission.   
Type 5 applications require a legislative decision made by the City Council after a public hearing and 

recommendation from the Planning Commission and a public hearing at the Council level as well. 
 
 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11 Projected FY 11-12 Projected

Land Use Applications Processed

Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 Type 5

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 146



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

47 

Building 
 
The Building Department’s responsibilities are to review and approve plans, issue permits, and perform 
inspections for new construction in compliance with the State of Oregon’s building, mechanical, and 
plumbing codes.   The Department assists the public with information relevant to the City’s building 
and development codes, works with local jurisdictions and builders in order to improve the construction 
standards in the city, and provide efficient service and information to the construction industry and the 
public. 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i As a team we completed all required plan reviews/inspections and issued final approvals for 
new additions/remodels to Sherwood High School, Sherwood Middle School, and Hopkins 
Elementary School. 

i Completed required plan review/inspections and issued occupancy approvals for 11 new 
single family dwellings (through January 2011).  

i Completed required plan review/inspections for the new St. Francis library and gymnasium 
addition.  

i We have continued to provide excellent, knowledgeable customer service to people planning 
any type of construction in Sherwood.   

i We have continued to educate the public concerning permit requirements and the benefits 
permits provide in protecting their property and their safety. 

i As a group submitted several articles to local publications with helpful information regarding 
when and why permits are needed. 

 
 

FTE per year to process permits and inspections 
FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11 Projected FY 11-12 Projected 

4 3.5 3.5 2.75 2.25 
 
 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11
Projected

FY 11-12
Projected

Building Permits and Inspections

Permits Inspections

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 147



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

48 

Engineering 
 
The Engineering Department plans, designs, and oversees construction of the City’s Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP’s), which include streets, storm water systems, sanitary sewer systems, 
water systems, and park facilities.  The Department is also responsible for review and approval of all 
private development projects that include installation of public infrastructure as part of the 
development.  The Department conducts inspection on the construction of public infrastructure projects 
to ensure that these facilities meet the City’s standards for materials and installation.  The Department 
issues right-of-way permits for all work performed within the public right-of-way, and oversee erosion 
and sediment runoff control on any construction activity within the City.  
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 

i Completed in-house design and construction management of the Brookman Area Sanitary 
Sewer Downstream Upgrade project on time and under budget. 

i Began in-house design of the Brookman Area Phase 1 Sanitary Sewer Extension project which 
will serve the Brookman expansion area to the south of the City. 

i Obtained approval from PUC for negotiating a right-of-way dedication from PGE for the North 
Adams Avenue project. 

i Completed design management and construction of the Sherwood Senior Center Parking Lot. 
i Completed in-house design and construction of the Washington Street storm drainage and 

street pavement rehabilitation project on time and within budget. 
i Completed construction of the SW Sherwood Boulevard paving overlay project funded through 

the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), between 1st and Langer Drive. 
i Completed design and entered into construction of the South Adams Avenue street project.  

This project includes the Oregon Street railroad crossing rehabilitation project work. 
i Provided technical design review and comment for the City on the Sherwood Cannery site 

development project, and the Cannery Plaza project. 
i Responded to several citizen requests for no parking signage installations.  Performed technical 

analysis and installed signage as appropriate. 
i Completed in-house design and managed construction bidding process for several Public Works 

street maintenance paving projects. 
i Coordinate development of the 5-year CIP Master Plan document. 
i Provided review and approval for several private development projects within the City. 

 

 

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%

Engineering FTE by Fund

FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 148



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PUBLIC SAFETY 

49 

 
Public Safety Division 
 
The Division of Public Safety coordinates all public safety services for the Sherwood Community. Public 
Safety includes all law enforcement and emergency operations services delivered through the Police 
Department. The Public Safety Division’s focus is to work with our statewide, regional and community 
partners on developing a coordinated and integrated approach that allows for the most efficient 
delivery of public safety services. 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Approved

Revenue
Licenses and Permits 11,625       11,900       10,400       10,400       10,000       
Intergovernmental 16,961       61,951       190,600     91,815       209,982     
Charges for Services 3,218        3,394        3,000        5,500        4,000        
Other Revenue 39,365       6,131        26,500       24,800       27,500       
Total revenue 71,168       83,376       230,500     132,515     251,482     

Expenditures
Personal services 2,388,532  2,456,338  2,641,967  2,611,787  2,872,976  
Materials and services 1,420,627  1,239,781  1,615,439  1,515,760  480,532     
Capital outlay 31,899       45,474       194,400     95,000       177,482     

Total expenditures 3,841,057  3,741,593  4,451,806  4,222,547  3,530,990  

Net revenue (expenditures) (3,769,889) (3,658,217) (4,221,306) (4,090,032) (3,279,508) 

 
 

 

 
 

17,961 18,753
17,086 17,147

21,944

19,645

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Total Calls For Service & Activities

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 149



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PUBLIC SAFETY 

50 

 
Public Safety Division 
 
Vision 
 
The men and women of the Sherwood Police Department are committed to becoming a highly 
respected police agency that will exemplify the pinnacle of law enforcement. We will strive to be 
technically superior and constantly evolving. We will become an agency of destination for professional 
law enforcement officers. We will remain flexible while keeping ahead of growth and we will establish 
ourselves as pacesetters in the law enforcement community. 
 
Mission 
 
“The City of Sherwood Police Department is dedicated to providing a safe and secure environment and 
preserving the quality of life for its citizens and community.” 
 
We accomplish the above mission by establishing and maintaining effective law enforcement services 
for the City through a focused application of Community Policing. 
 
The police department is comprised of three (3) organizational sections; 

i The Administration Section is managed by the Chief of Police and provides overall leadership, 
direction and guidance for the police department. This includes policy development, budget 
development and accountability, community and city involvement, regional involvement, labor 
relations, Chaplaincy and Emergency Management. The Administrative Section includes the 
Chief of Police, two (2) Police Captains, Emergency Management Coordinator and administrative 
staff. 

i The Patrol Section is managed by a Police Captain and provides leadership, direction and 
supervision of the daily operations of the police department. These operations include patrol 
services, traffic enforcement services, tactical response and preparation, community activities 
and events, police canines and police reserves. 

i The Support Section is managed by a Police Captain and provides leadership, direction and 
supervision of the support functions of the police department. These functions include special 
investigation services, juvenile services, property and evidence, training, records and 
information systems, professional standards, public information, human resource and hiring 
liaison, risk management and mitigation and code compliance. 

 
Values 
 
The City of Sherwood Police Department Values and Promotes: 

 
Integrity - Upright in action and resolute in conviction. 
Professionalism - Character, competence, proficiency and training. 
Accountability - Responsible, self-disciplined and transparent. 
Reliability - Vigilant, responsive and steadfast. 
Courage - Strength in the face of danger or uncertainty. 
Compassion - Understanding, human and kind. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 150



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PUBLIC SAFETY 

51 

 
Public Safety Division 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Created increased operational efficiency through the reallocation of department staffing  
i Implemented an Information Technology application for all critical internal systems 
i Maintained supervisory coverage and availability 100% of the time 
i Responded to 100% of all traffic complaints 
i Participated in 100% of community events 
i Completed quarterly emergency operations exercises 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies and Activities  
 
The City of Sherwood Police Department supports the Public Safety and Resident Well Being Goals 
established by City leaders. 
 
Goal:  

 
Strategies: 
 

Provide effective department leadership and critical systems oversight. 
 

Activities: 
i Provide effective leadership and direction from all levels of supervision, including 

Sergeants, Captains and the Police Chief 
i  Further implement and improve critical internal systems 
i Further develop and improve opportunities for public information and 

participation 
 

Performance Measures: 
i Leadership Team will allocate specific time for subordinate employee interaction 

and development as follows; Chief 15%, Captains 25%, Sergeants 50% 
i Provide short-term leadership opportunities & experience to future leaders 
i Distribute a minimum of 24 information releases regarding police activity 

 
Provide for responsive and preventative patrol services and community response. 
 

Activities: 
i Recruit, Hire and retain competent police officers 
i Deploy adequate staffing levels of 3 FTE 24 hours a day  
i Further develop and implement crime prevention programs 
i Implement a Municipal Court Diversion program for appropriate offenders 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Reach an FTE staffing ratio of 1.7 per thousand  
i Further implement and expand the Community Watch program. 
i Develop a Community Academy 

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 151



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PUBLIC SAFETY 

52 

 
Public Safety Division 

 
Provide for effective and responsive traffic safety. 
 

Activities: 
i Maintain effective traffic safety staffing  
i Implement child safety initiatives 
i Provide traffic crash response and investigation 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Respond to 100% of traffic safety complaints 
i Conduct a minimum of two (4) child safety seat inspection clinics 

 
Provide for effective and responsive support services. 

 
Activities: 

i Maintain a specialized investigative unit and capabilities 
i Establish and staff an effective School based policing program with SRO 
i Maintain and improve internal in-service training and instructor development 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Allocate 50% of one (1) Detective to local and regional drug investigations 
i Provide 60 hours of annual in-service training 
i Provide one full time FTE at Sherwood High School 

 
Maintain a well-trained city staff that is able to respond in an effective, comprehensive and 
community based approach to emergency management and preparedness.  
 

Activities: 
i Facilitate ongoing NIMS compliant training for all city staff 
i Facilitate advanced training for EOC General Staff 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Conduct a minimum of two (2) basic level ICS training classes 
i Facilitate advanced training for General Staff 

 
Goal:  

 
 
Strategies: 

 
 Respond to life safety concerns. 
 

Activities: 
i Provide community caretaking services 
i Respond to medical calls 
i Facilitate emergency social services 

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 152



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PUBLIC SAFETY 

53 

 
Public Safety Division 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Maintain relevant certifications and response capabilities to issues of life safety 
and community caretaking 

i Maintain partnerships with local vendors for emergency social services 
 
Engage and partner with community groups and activities. 

 
Activities: 

i Provide leadership in the planning and coordination of community events 
i Participate in civic organizations 
i Maintain support for Oregon Special Olympics  

 
 
Performance Measures: 

i Develop Incident Action Plans for all community events that exceed 10 hours or 
1,000 attendees 
 

 
Part 1 Crimes are primarily felonies that endanger people. Part 2 Crimes are primarily 

misdemeanors or offenses that pose less threat of immediate harm. 
 

 

190 248 200

468
548 493

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2008 2009 2010

Part I & II Crimes Reported

Part I Part II

10.3
12.9

29.1
26.2

0

10

20

30

40

2008 2009

FBI Total Crime Rate per 1,000 Residents
State of Oregon vs. Sherwood

Sherwood State of Oregon

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 153



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

54 

Community Services Division 
 
The Community Services Department encompasses Library services, the Sherwood Old Town Field 
House operations, volunteer services, field and gym scheduling, and the coordinating and planning of 
various cultural activities and events. As part of the Washington County Cooperative Library Services 
(WCCLS), the Sherwood Library provides access to resources from all 12 County libraries as well as 
regional, national, and international sources. The Sherwood Old Town Field House is an indoor soccer 
facility that offers soccer leagues, facility rentals and field time for a variety of sports and activities. 
 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Approved

Revenue
Intergovernmental 663,427    683,162    711,349    688,951    702,586    
Charges for Services 210,022    219,466    182,685    195,873    210,179    
Other Revenue 34,384     38,134     33,000     36,000     33,000     
Total revenue 907,833    940,762    927,034    920,824    945,765    

Expenditures
Personal services 800,555    878,387    920,216    870,851    959,502    
Materials and services 590,885    538,444    707,168    629,115    234,786    
Debt service 6,250       25,002     25,002     25,002     31,175     

Total expenditures 1,397,691 1,441,832 1,652,385 1,524,968 1,225,463 

Net revenue (expenditures) (489,858)  (501,071)  (725,351)  (604,144)  (279,698)  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From May – December 2010, 28 Special Event Permits 
were processed. The type of community events included:  

i 6 Runs/Walks  
i 5 Festivals  
i 5 Block Parties 
i 2 Theater Performances  
i 2 Bike Rides  
i 2 Car Shows 
i 2 Parades (not included in festivals)
i 1 Farmer’s Market, Street Sale, Wedding, 

Concert Series and Movie Series 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 154



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

55 

Library 
 
The Sherwood Library strives to meet the community’s informational, educational, cultural and 
recreational needs through appropriate and useful resources and programs and equitable service 
policies and access.  The Library makes every effort to operate in the most effective and efficient 
manner possible and continuously seeks to improve and expand services which promote the use of the 
library, encourage an informed citizenry, and respond to community needs. As a member of 
Washington County Cooperative Library Services, the Sherwood Library provides access to materials 
from all WCCLS member libraries as well as regional, national, and international sources. 
 

2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Washington County Cooperative Library Services levy approved – offering renewed funding 
from the County through June 2016 

i Over 8% increase in circulation of material  
i Continued significant trend in patrons registered (over 1400 new patrons during 2010)  
i Volunteer program allows staff greater opportunity to develop and offer additional programs 

and services (17 library programs in 2010, up from two in 2008) with the library receiving over 
1480 volunteer hours (equivalent to 0.71 FTE) 

i Collection size has increased to exceed the recommended Oregon Library Association 
“adequate” number of volumes per capita  

i Over 13,000 community members attended seven weekly story times, the annual Summer 
Reading Program and other programs in 2010 

i Quality services provided by an experienced and dedicated staff  
i Supportive and engaged advocates in the Library Advisory Board and Friends of the Library 
i Library received several grants including Ready to Read, Oregon Humanities (both for 

Conversation Project and Oregon Poet Laureate) and Cultural Coalition of Washington County 
grant for Oregon Symphony Story times. 

 
 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  

 
Strategies: 
 
 Provide quality Library Services 
 
  Activities: 

i Provide a diverse collection of materials and resources 
i Increase circulation, add new patron card holders and strengthen collection size 
i Develop a stable funding strategy for Library Services 
i Maximize use of volunteers in the Library 
i Offer new and innovative programming opportunities such as Oregon Symphony Storytimes 

 
  Performance Measures: 

i Provide 60 hours of library service a week 
i Utilize 1500 hours of volunteer time   
i Serve 1350 local children through the Summer Reading Program 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 155



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

56 

Library 
 
 Provide excellent customer service  
 
  Activities: 

i Maintain a knowledgeable and trained staff 
i Assist customers with information and referrals 
i Provide 60 hours of Library services each week 

  
  Performance Measures: 

i Provide regular training opportunities for staff 
i Respond to virtual queries within 24 hours 

 
 
 Provide an opportunity for citizens to partake in cultural and community events and 
 activities 
 
  Activities: 

i Partner with the local groups such as the Friends of the Sherwood Library to 
provide opportunities and events  

  
  Performance Measures: 

i Provide six programs annually through local partnerships 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

FY 06-07
Actual

FY 07-08
Actual

FY 08-09
Actual

FY 09-10
Actual

FY 10-11
Projected

FY 11-12
Projected

Library Circulation per FTE

Sherwood Tualatin Tigard

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 156



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

57 

Field House 
 
The Sherwood Old Town Field House opened in 2004 and offers a large indoor arena featuring state-
of-the-art "AstroPlay" turf. The City of Sherwood built the Field House to help serve the recreation 
needs of its community. The Field House hosts a wide array of activities including include soccer, 
football, softball, and lacrosse. The Field House is also available for private rentals, birthday parties, 
pre-school play, dances, company picnics, and sports clinics. 
 

2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Served 28,000 people.  
i Maintained steady revenue stream in spite of a weak economy.  
i Partnered with Honoring Game to Offer Lacrosse leagues. 
i Offered 3 mornings each week of preschool play during the school year 
i Rented the facility for home school P.E. during non-peak hours 

 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  

 
Strategies: 

 
Provide quality recreation opportunities for the citizen of Sherwood 
 

Activities: 
i Operate the Old Town Field House 
i Offer league play for youth and adults 
i Rent the facility to groups for private rentals and birthday parties 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Serve 28,000 people  
i Increase Youth leagues 10% 

 
Provide excellent customer service to those that visit the Field House 
 

Activities: 
i Maintain a knowledgeable and trained staff 
i Assist customers with information and referrals 

 
Performance Measures: 

i Respond to all customer service calls within 24 hours 
i Provide 8 hours of training to full-time staff 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The phrase most said on pre-school play days at the 
Fieldhouse is “mom, look at all the balls”. 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 157



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

58 

Recreation and Event Services 
 
The Community Services Department is responsible for planning and implementing recreation and 
cultural activities, volunteer services, and coordinating events such as Music on the Green and acting 
as a liaison to the YMCA, the Senior Center and other community groups.   
 

2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Added lighting under stage cover at Stella Olsen Park amphitheater 
i Completed Senior Center parking lot and interior improvements  
i Coordinated practice and game space for 11 different sport leagues (over 300 teams) 
i Volunteers contributed a total of 3,471 hours of service 
i Collected over $10,000 in sponsorships for Music on the Green  
i Secured presenting sponsor for Movies in the Park 
i Managed, developed, implement city-wide special events including Music on the Green, the 

Community Services Fair, Missoula Children’s Theatre and Movies in the Park 
i Volunteers spent 300 hours removing invasive species and planting trees for Arbor Day 
i Completed conceptual design for the Skate Park 

 
 

2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal: 

 
Strategies: 

 
Provide an opportunity for citizens to partake in recreation, cultural and community events and 
activities 
 

Activities: 
i Coordinate the Music on the Green summer concert series 
i Coordinate Movies in the Park  
i Partner with the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission, Sherwood Foundation for the 

Arts, Robin Hood Festival Association, Sherwood Historical Society to provide 
opportunities and events such as Missoula Children’s Theatre and the Robin Hood 
Festival 

i Schedule all the gyms and fields 
i Offer opportunities for citizens to volunteer  

Performance Measures: 
i Provide 3,500 hours of volunteer work 
i Raise $10,000 in sponsorship for Music on the Green 
i Add restrooms to Stella Olsen Park 

 
 

 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 158



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

59 

Grant Requests 
 

Organization
2011-12 
Approved

In-Kind
(Actual)

Robin Hood Festival $16,000 $11,878 $17,000 $12,000 $0 
Holiday Tree Lighting & Parade $8,480 $8,500 
Cruisin $9,863 $10,863 
Song Bird Festival $2,072 $5,000 $2,100 $0 
Run for the Roses $300 $300 
Sherwood Senior Citizens Inc. $8,000 $1,000 $0 
Loaves and Fishes $5,000 $0 
Raindrops To Refuge $7,000 $9,000 $0 
Sherwood Foundation for the Arts $2,500 $2,500 $1,500 $3,000 $0 
Sherwood Historical Society $35,000 $12,000 $0 
Community Action $2,000 $5,000 $0 
Faith in Action $1,000 $1,000 $0 
Sherwood Charter School $940 $0 

Sherwood Family Triathlon (YMCA/Charter School) $2,000 $0 

TOTAL $36,500 $70,093 $59,440 $36,763 $0

2010-11 Adopted 2011-12 Requested

Cash Cash In-Kind Cash

 

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 159



GENERAL GOVERNMENT             PUBLIC WORKS 
 

60 

Public Works 
 
The Public Works Division is responsible for operation and maintenance activities of the City’s 
infrastructure. Maintenance includes: water, sewer, storm, streets, parks, sport fields, facilities and 
fleet. 
 

 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Approved

Revenue
Intergovernmental 100,500  54,032    137,947     90,000     80,000       
Charges for Services 4,705     10,198    3,555        38,666     3,555        
Other Revenue 53,095    100,658  34,800       46,597     15,000       
Total revenue 158,300  164,888  176,302     175,263    98,555       

Expenditures
Personal services 546,271  570,176  720,805     692,924    803,077     
Materials and services 120,573  220,984  258,533     275,628    766,913     
Capital outlay 34,148    15,447    178,000     178,000    192,000     
Debt service 6,250     25,002    25,002       25,002     31,175       

Total expenditures 707,242  831,608  1,182,341  1,171,554 1,793,165  

Net revenue (expenditures) (548,942) (666,720) (1,006,039) (996,291)  (1,694,610) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
A regular incandescent light bulb lasts 750 to 1,500 hours 

compared to a compact fluorescent light bulb that lasts about 
10,000 hours. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 160



GENERAL GOVERNMENT             PUBLIC WORKS 
 

61 

Public Works Administration 
 
The Administration Division is responsible to provide leadership and management in the support 
of the strategic plans, objectives, values and goals. 

 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Continue to provide rental offices to four tenants.  
i Provided training to all Public Works employees for continued growth opportunities. 
i Responded to all emergency after-hour calls. 
i Track all work using work order system.  
i Prepare and oversee implementation of each division budget. 
i Continue to work with regional partners (solid waste, emergency management, debris 

removal, water, wastewater, storm, streets and fleet). 
i Provided upgraded technology to allow each division to work more efficiently. 
i Started updating of storm and sanitary maps in GIS System. 
i Completed EDU/ESU Audit. 
i Completed and negotiated several bid proposals for maintenance projects, equipment and 

consulting services. 
 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

Strategies 
 
Administrative:  Provide leadership and management in support of city strategic plans, 
objectives, values and goals.   

 
Activities 

i Asset Management Accountability. Maintain accurate accounting records of all work 
activities and track labor, equipment and material expenditures for each activity or 
project as pertains to all assets. 

i Provide staff support and resources to enable each division to meet goals. 
i Prepare and oversee implementation of each division’s budget. 
i Support and oversee the city-wide geographic information system (GIS). 
i Continue to improve the asset management work order system (HANSEN). 
i Continue participation of city-wide emergency management training plan and 

participate at county level. 
i Provide management and administrative support to the public works department for 

water distribution, wastewater collection, street maintenance, stormwater 
maintenance, parks, fleet/facility maintenance.   

i Continue to work at state and regional levels for Public Works related partnerships. 
i Provide emergency on-call assistance for public works.  
i Provide educational outreach for our citizens of Sherwood on water conservation and 

other programs (leaf program, recycling, paving program) or concerns to the city 
relative to public works. 

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 161



GENERAL GOVERNMENT             PUBLIC WORKS 
 

62 

Public Works Administration  
 

Performance Measures 
i Will maintain rental offices at Sherwood Office Complex. 
i Public Works will continue to train staff to NIMS compliance and will meet with 

regional partners to plan for emergency events. 
i Will respond to all emergency after-hour calls. 
i Will track all work for accountability through asset management system (work 

orders).  
i Will complete and stay within the approved budget. 
i Negotiate with regional partners. 
i Will continue to provide accurate data to citizens, regional partners and all city staff. 
i Will continue to look for regional water partnerships. 
i Provided City wide GIS support. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

FY 06-07 Actual FY 07-08 Actual FY 08-09 Actual FY 09-10 Actual FY 10-11 Projected

Square Footage of Buildings Maintained by Public Works

Public Works City Hall Police Station Senior Center Old School House Hite House Old Library

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 162



GENERAL GOVERNMENT             PUBLIC WORKS 
 

63 

Fleet and Facilities  
 
The Fleet and Facilities Division is responsible for the environmental health, safety, operation 
maintenance and repair of all city facilities, vehicles and equipment.  

 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Completed annual requirements for reporting to State. 
i Completed weekly building inspections. 
i Renegotiated janitorial contract (savings of $7,000.00) and negotiated other contractual 

work. 
i Completed set up and take down for Kids Reading, City Council, Planning Commission and 

Court 258 times last year. 
i Completed maintenance and repairs on 643 vehicles and/or equipment. 
i Purchased 100% of budgeted equipment. 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

Strategies 
 
Fleet and Facilities: The Fleet Division is responsible for maintenance and repair of city vehicles 
and equipment with an emphasis on safety, cost effectiveness and dependability. The Facilities 
Division will provide clean, safe, well-maintained environmentally-efficient city facilities for 
employees and the public. 

 
Activities 

i Ensure city-owned facilities are maintained in accordance to city, state and federal 
regulations. 

i Fleet (equipment, vehicles) is replaced when it is determined by its age, condition, 
operations and maintenance cost, and depreciation, which is no longer economical to 
keep. This is referred to the life expectancy of the equipment. 
 

i Maintain vehicles and equipment to support city-wide departments.   
i Purchase vehicles and equipment. 

 
Performance Measures 

i Annual reporting to State for boiler system, elevators, etc. 
i Will inspect city buildings weekly and will perform maintenance as needed. 
i Will inspect contractual work. 
i Will complete over 200 meeting set up and take downs during the year. 
i Complete maintenance and repairs on all city vehicles and equipment. 
i Complete purchase all equipment and vehicles per approved budget. 

 
 
 

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 163



GENERAL GOVERNMENT             PUBLIC WORKS 
 

64 

Parks 
 

The Parks Division maintains the parks, trail systems and athletic fields for the City. 
 

2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Completed weekly playground inspections. 
i Completed trash pickup four times a week during peak usage. 
i Maintained 7,280 irrigation heads this past year. 
i Completed striping of athletic fields for schools and leagues. 
i Completed 132 park reservations this past year. 
i Replaced 345 sq. yds. of asphalt on city trail system. 
i Provided 7-day/week staffing coverage during peak season. 
i Completed weekly mowing for parks and athletic fields for 40 weeks out of the year. 

 
 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

 
Strategies 
 

Maintain the parks, trail systems and athletic fields for the citizens of Sherwood and other 
visitors. 

 
Activities 

i Maintain all city park areas and facilities in a safe, clean, attractive and affordable 
manner by using responsible and efficient procedures. 

i Work with independent contractors to ensure contract agreements are followed and 
that work progresses smoothly. 

i Managing the City’s irrigation system through a computerized software program 
(Calsense), which maximizes water efficiency. 

i Maintain and repair artificial turf. 
i Provide park reservations. 
i Maintain trail systems. 

 
Performance Measures 

i Will provide weekly playground inspections at all city playground locations. 
i Will provide trash pick-up a minimum of 3 times per week during peak season. 
i Will maintain all city irrigation heads. 
i Will establish and maintain scheduled maintenance for all turf fields. 
i Will maintain all park shelters and will issue park reservations. 
i Will provide inspections of HOA and City trails; will maintain city-trails up to six (6) 

times per year. 
i Will provide 7-day per week coverage during peak season. 
i Will provide weekly mowing for 40 weeks of the year and will apply fertilizer a 

minimum of 6 times per year. 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 164



GENERAL GOVERNMENT        ASSET DEPRECIATION 
 

65 

Asset Depreciation Fund 
 
The Asset Depreciation Fund is a reserve fund, defined in Oregon budget law, which accumulates 
money from year to year to provide for the unexpected purchase, improvement, or repairs of major 
capital assets, such as city buildings.   

 
 
 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 293,942$   353,625$   442,629$   405,998$   217,998$   217,998$   217,998$   
Revenue

Charges for services -              27,549      -               -              -              -              -              
Fines, interest and other 5,470       (55,180)     -               2,000       -              -              -              
Total revenue 5,470       (27,631)     -               2,000       -              -              -              

Other sources
Transfers in 74,000      130,004    114,000     114,000    -              -              -              
Total other sources 74,000      130,004    114,000     114,000    -              -              -              

Total sources 373,412 455,998 556,629  521,998 217,998 217,998 217,998 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Total personal services -              -              -               -              -              -              -              
Materials and services

Other materials & services -              -              100,000     50,000      -              -              -              
Total materials & services -              -              100,000     50,000      -              -              -              

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -              50,000      -               -              -              -              -              
Vehicles -              -              254,000     254,000    -              -              -              
Total capital outlay -              50,000      254,000     254,000    -              -              -              

Debt service
Total debt service -              -              -               -              -              -              -              

Total expenditures -              50,000      354,000     304,000    -              -              -              
Other uses

Transfers out 19,786      -              -               -              217,998    217,998    -              
Ending Fund Balance 353,625    405,998    -               -              -              
Contingency 202,629     217,998    0             0             217,998    

Total uses 373,412 455,998 556,629  521,998 217,998 217,998 217,998 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The average police patrol car has an oil change every 6 
weeks which averages about 3,000 miles. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 165



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                     DEBT SERVICE 
 

66 

Debt Service 
 
The Debt Service fund accounts for property tax revenues levied for payment of general obligation 
bonds.  Payment of long-term debt other than general obligation bonds is accounted for in the funds 
responsible for paying the debt. 

 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 142,389$ 27,999$  10,999$       9,532$        1,532$   1,532$   1,532$  
Revenue

Taxes 818,113   916,779  913,276       913,276      926,000 888,000 -           
Fines, interest and other 5,998      824        -                 -                -            -           -           
Total revenue 824,111   917,603  913,276       913,276      926,000 888,000 -           

Other sources

Total sources 966,500   945,602  924,275       922,808      927,532 889,532 1,532    
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Total personal services -             -            -                 -                -            -           -           
Materials and services

Total materials & services -             -            -                 -                -            -           -           
Capital outlay

Total capital outlay -             -            -                 -                -            -           -           
Debt service

Principal 655,000   670,000  675,000       675,000      695,000 705,000 -           
Interest 283,501   266,070  246,276       246,276      230,390 182,897 -           
Total debt service 938,501   936,070  921,276       921,276      925,390 887,897 -           

Total expenditures 938,501   936,070  921,276       921,276      925,390 887,897 -           
Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 27,999     9,532     -                 -                -           
Contingency 2,999          1,532         2,142     1,635    1,532    

Total uses 966,500   945,602  924,275       922,808      927,532 889,532 1,532    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The average daily water demand for Sherwood 

is approximately 2.2 million gallons. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 166



GENERAL GOVERNMENT         STREET OPERATIONS 
 

67 

Street Operations  

The Street Department is responsible for the repair and maintenance of 50 miles of transportation 
system which includes paved streets, sidewalks, signals, street lights, signs and markings. 

  
2010-11 Accomplishments 

i Responded to all storm events. 
i Replaced 364 regulatory signs. 
i Paved 5 street sections of roadway  
i Completed 40,983 feet of crack sealing. 
i Completed landscape right-of-way maintenance. 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

 
Strategies 
 

Maintain transportation system assets. 
 

Activities 
i Pavement Management and street restoration responsibilities include base repair, 

sanding, perform street condition rating (every three years), slurry seal, overlays and 
crack seal. 

i Right of Way Maintenance including sidewalk repairs, vegetation and barricade 
maintenance. 

i Transportation Management Responsibilities include traffic signal inspections and 
maintenance, quarterly street light inspections, traffic sign maintenance and 
pavement markings. 

 
Performance Measures 

i Will respond to all storm events. 
i Will be replacing a minimum of 141 regulatory signs; will restripe 22 center lane 

miles of streets. 
i Will complete paving projects according to the pavement management program. 
i Will crack seal approximately 30,000 feet. 
i Maintain landscape of right of way and will manage contractors. 
i Will inspect a quarter of city-wide sidewalks. 
i Will fill potholes within 24 hours of being notified. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 167



GENERAL GOVERNMENT         STREET OPERATIONS 
 

68 

Street Operations Budget 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 258,250$        305,162$        168,757$      254,614$      280,652$      280,652$      280,652$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 705,479       749,107       899,880       906,615       901,200      901,200       -              
Charges for services 364,815       313,166       596,000       348,000       530,000      530,000       -              
Infrastructure development 762             110             240             240             -                 -                 -              
Fines, interest and other 6,316           1,460           1,800           1,800           -                 -                 -              
Total revenue 1,077,371     1,063,842     1,497,920     1,256,655     1,431,200     1,431,200    -              

Other sources
Transfers in -                 -                 -                 -                 229,000      229,000       -              
Total other sources -                 -                 -                 -                 229,000      229,000       -              

Total sources 1,335,621 1,369,004 1,666,677 1,511,269 1,940,852 1,940,852 280,652 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 188,860       142,093       194,034       197,905       191,616      191,616       -              
Payroll taxes 19,370         16,513         30,710         29,358         27,969         27,969         -              
Benefits 55,920         48,389         63,771         65,013         75,780         75,780         -              
Total personal services 264,150       206,994       288,515       292,276       295,365      295,365       -              

Materials and services
Professional & technical 207,741       53,821         23,871         32,300         35,704         35,704         -              
Facility and equipment 271,672       302,787       332,888       324,384       416,500      416,500       -              
Other purchased services 13,945         24,367         38,540         25,800         43,916         43,916         -              
Supplies 58,138         50,108         58,012         58,012         60,756         60,756         -              
Minor equipment 5,673           -                 12,000         9,500           1,008           1,008           -              
Other materials & services 98,147         62,568         127,299       122,226       141,196      141,196       -              
Total materials & services 655,316       493,652       592,610       572,222       699,080      699,080       -              

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 20,092         256,701       401,508       260,000       588,000      588,000       -              
Furniture and equipment -                 -                 29,496         29,496         -                 -                 -              
Total capital outlay 20,092         256,701       431,004       289,496       588,000      588,000       -              

Debt service
Principal 75,793         41,758         43,712         43,712         57,517         57,517         -              
Interest 14,689         5,864           3,911           3,911           1,864           1,864           -              
Total debt service 90,482         47,622         47,623         47,623         59,381         59,381         -              

Total expenditures 1,030,039     1,004,969     1,359,752     1,201,617     1,641,826     1,641,826    -              
Other uses

Transfers out 420             109,421       61,000         29,000         -                 -                 -              
Ending Fund Balance 305,162$      254,614$      -                 -                 -                 -                 -              
Equipment Replacement Reserve -                 39,000         39,000         29,002      
Contingency 245,925       280,652       260,025      260,025       251,650   

Total uses 1,335,621 1,369,004 1,666,677 1,511,269 1,940,852 1,940,852 280,652 
 

 
 
 

The streets crew maintains 1,665 of regulatory and 
warning signs every year. 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 168



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              STREET CAPITAL 
 

69 

FY11-12 Street Capital Projects 
 

Pine Street Construction Phase 2:  This project reconstructs Pine Street between Division Street 
and Sunset Boulevard.  This project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards 
for a collector street.  Also included are the installation of new utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, 
and water) to accommodate existing peak load and future growth.  City Public Works staff will be 
responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed.  However, 
being new construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of 
stormwater catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 
 

Programs Affected Description Cost Per Year
Street Operations Crack Seal/Slurry Seal (7 yr cycle) 1,211.43$           

Landscaping Maintenance 1,500.00$           
Storm Operations Mainline Cleaning (4 yr cycle) 95.33$               

Mainline TV (8 yr cycle) 65.14$               
Manholes (8 yr cycle) 75.00$               
Catch Basins (8 yr cycle) 17.50$               

Sanitary Operations Mainline Cleaning (4 yr cycle) 78.53$               
Mainline TV (8 yr cycle) 53.66$               
Manholes (8 yr cycle) 37.50$               

Water Operations Valve Maintenance (4 yr cycle) 70.00$               
Line Flushing (4 yr cycle) 37.50$               

Annual maintenance costs for Pine St. phase 2

 
 
Adams Avenue South Construction:  This project constructs Adams Avenue between Oregon Street 
and Tualatin-Sherwood Road. This road is designated as a collector street in the City’s TSP and intended 
to relieve traffic congestion through downtown Sherwood.  City Public Works staff will be responsible for 
the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. However, being new 
construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of stormwater 
catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 
 

Programs Affected Description Cost Per Year
Street Operations Crack Seal/Slurry Seal (7 yr cycle) 4,671.14$           

Landscaping Maintenance 5,000.00$           
Storm Operations Mainline Cleaning (4 yr cycle) 310.65$              

Mainline TV (8 yr cycle) 212.28$              
Manholes (8 yr cycle) 468.75$              
Catch Basins (8 yr cycle) 57.50$               

Sanitary Operations Mainline Cleaning (4 yr cycle) 177.60$              
Mainline TV (8 yr cycle) 121.36$              
Manholes (8 yr cycle) 281.25$              

Water Operations Valve Maintenance (4 yr cycle) 332.50$              
Line Flushing (4 yr cycle) 150.00$              

Annual maintenance costs for Adams Ave. South

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 169



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              STREET CAPITAL 
 

70 

Adams Avenue/Oregon Street Signal Construction:  This project installs a traffic control signal at the 
Adams Avenue/Oregon Street intersection.  This intersection is to be built in conjunction with the Adams 
Avenue South street project.  Washington County DOT maintains all the traffic control signals for the City 
of Sherwood.  It is anticipated City Public Works staff will not have any maintenance duties with this 
improvement. 
 
Ongoing maintenance will be Portland & Western Railroad’s responsibility. 
 
Adams Avenue North Construction:  This project constructs the extension of Adams Avenue between 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Highway 99W at the existing intersection to Home Depot.  This project is to 
provide access and growth opportunities to the properties that lay along its alignment.  This road is being 
designated as a collector street and will conform to the TSP street standards.   City Public Works staff will 
be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed.  However, 
being new construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of 
stormwater catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 
 
Ongoing maintenance costs will be determined when the design is completed. 
 
Street Capital Budget 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 3,723,852$   4,588,428$   4,429,436$   5,363,964$   3,451,547$   3,451,547$   3,451,547$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                 1,000,000     4,160,000     3,975,000     25,000         25,000         -                 
Infrastructure development 1,605,406     301,935       150,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       -                 
Fines, interest and other 211,781       50,666         17,760         42,760         -                 -                 -                 
Total revenue 1,817,187     1,352,601     4,327,760     4,167,760     175,000       175,000       -                 

Other sources
Transfers in -                 2,986           115,000       286,910       783,900       783,900       -                 
Total other sources -                 2,986           115,000       286,910       783,900       783,900       -                 

Total sources 5,541,038 5,944,015 8,872,196 9,818,634 4,410,447 4,410,447 3,451,547 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 75,916         57,587         115,802       116,149       123,144       123,144       -                 
Payroll taxes 6,341           4,788           12,184         11,167         11,726         11,726         -                 
Benefits 31,730         17,885         34,710         34,760         45,180         45,180         -                 
Total personal services 113,987       80,261         162,696       162,076       180,050       180,050       -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 677,200       359,075       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Facility and equipment 945             2,318           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Other purchased services 8,644           6,603           204             204             324             324             -                 
Supplies 9,651           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Other materials & services 84,700         54,542         137,544       129,349       139,486       139,486       -                 
Total materials & services 781,139       422,538       137,748       129,553       139,810       139,810       -                 

Capital outlay
Land 14,470         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Infrastructure 24,013         3,502           6,705,427     6,075,458     3,439,800     3,439,800     -                 
Total capital outlay 38,483         3,502           6,705,427     6,075,458     3,439,800     3,439,800     -                 

Debt service
Total debt service -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total expenditures 933,610       506,301       7,005,871     6,367,087     3,759,660     3,759,660     -                 
Other uses

Transfers out 19,000         73,750         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Ending Fund Balance 4,588,428$   5,363,964$   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Contingency 1,866,325     3,451,547     650,786       650,786       3,451,547     

Total uses 5,541,038 5,944,015 8,872,196 9,818,634 4,410,447 4,410,447 3,451,547 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 170



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   WATER FUND 
 

71 

Water Fund 

The Water fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the water utility. The Capital department is responsible for 
construction of water infrastructure. 
 
Water Fund Budget in Total 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 8,746,257$     8,714,110$     12,964,218$    7,771,382$     9,503,316$     9,503,316$     9,503,316$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 1,273,556       -                   500,000         -                   -                   -                   -                 
Charges for services 3,445,457       3,773,555       4,482,680       3,801,800       4,201,200       4,201,200       -                 
Infrastructure developme 387,435         120,176         66,000           148,500         66,000           66,000           -                 
Fines, interest and other 408,758         1,209,022       40,344           40,344           24,000           24,000           -                 
Total revenue 5,515,206       5,102,752       5,089,024       3,990,644       4,291,200       4,291,200       -                 

Other sources
Transfers in -                   538,013         160,000         64,000           25,000           25,000           -                 
Issuance of long-term debt 5,596,252       3,152,556       6,000,000       17,249,085     6,498,833       6,498,833       -                 
Total other sources 5,596,252       3,690,569       6,160,000       17,313,085     6,523,833       6,523,833       -                 

Total sources 19,857,715 17,507,432 24,213,242 29,075,111 20,318,349 20,318,349 9,503,316 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 207,492         496,153         452,211         452,249         427,764         427,764         -                 
Payroll taxes 20,156           48,583           55,023           50,510           49,517           49,517           -                 
Benefits 79,169           182,676         172,106         172,426         184,266         184,266         -                 
Total personal services 306,817         727,412         679,340         675,184         661,547         661,547         -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 9,712,914       7,858,622       687,000         667,100         854,508         854,508         -                 
Facility and equipment 74,823           103,397         158,664         128,892         91,312           91,312           -                 
Other purchased services 196,268         300,330         401,508         367,862         382,462         382,462         -                 
Supplies 39,092           104,123         149,672         122,304         134,488         134,488         -                 
Community activities -                   -                   300               300               -                   -                   -                 
Minor equipment 42,603           11,742           13,040           13,040           8,004             8,004             -                 
Other materials & servic 105,930         248,596         296,680         282,354         316,245         316,245         -                 
Total materials & services 10,171,629     8,626,810       1,706,864       1,581,852       1,787,019       1,787,019       -                 

Capital outlay
Land 137,477         17,634           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                 
Infrastructure 242,000         -                   8,738,991       6,180,626       7,007,750       7,007,750       -                 
Vehicles 85,277           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                 
Furniture and equipment -                   4,995             111,000         111,000         -                   -                   -                 
Total capital outlay 464,754         22,629           8,849,991       6,291,626       7,007,750       7,007,750       -                 

Debt service -                 
Principal 9,973             41,758           254,712         10,254,712     501,470         501,470         -                 
Interest 190,432         280,937         376,911         376,911         1,020,861       1,054,103       -                 
Issuance costs -                   1,500             -                   175,000         -                   -                   -                 
Total debt service 200,405         324,195         631,623         10,806,623     1,522,332       1,555,573       -                 

Total expenditures 11,143,605     9,701,046       11,867,818     19,355,285     10,978,647     11,011,889     -                 
Other uses

Transfers out -                   35,004           50,500           216,510         240,000         240,000         -                 
Ending Fund Balance 8,714,110       7,771,382       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                 
Contingency 12,294,924 9,503,316 9,099,701 9,066,459 9,503,316

Total uses 19,857,715 17,507,432 24,213,242 29,075,111 20,318,349 20,318,349 9,503,316 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 171



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   WATER FUND 
 

72 

Water Operations 

The Water Operation Department’s primary responsibility is to repair, maintain and expand the water 
system while providing a high quality, dependable water supply to its customers. 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 

i Completed sanitary survey of water system. 
i Completed Consumer Confidence Report. 
i Completed monthly meter reading. 
i Completed weekly distribution utility bills. 
i Completed 322 water samples. 
i Coordinated and managed 2625 backflow devices. 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

 
Strategies 
 

Maintain, repair, and expand the water system while at the same time providing a high-quality, 
dependable water supply to its customers. 
 

Activities 
i Prepare and distribute the Consumer Confidence Report which is an annual report on 

water quality that is mandated by state and federal regulations. 
i Water quality sampling is performed throughout the City to ensure compliance with 

federal Safe Drinking Water Act, Drinking Water Rules, and Regulators.  Results are 
reported monthly for microbiological samples and chlorine residuals. Other testing is 
completed in accordance with federal and state requirements.    

i Operate and repair over 68 miles of water mains, 1800 valves, 560 fire hydrants, 
and 5700 meters, 3 reservoirs,  4 wells, and 2 pump stations that deliver water to 
customers at all times.   

i Maintain a flushing program 
i Operate a valve survey and exercise program. 
i Coordinate and manage cross-connection program. 
i Target water conservation measures to reduce peak water demand. 
i Primary responsibility for all utility locates that relate to water, sanitary, storm and 

broadband. 
 

Performance Measures 
i Will complete required sampling and State guidelines. 
i Will complete maintenance on 280 fire hydrants. 
i Will read all water meters and bill on a monthly basis.
i Will distribute CCR to all customers by July 1st. 

 
 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 172



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   WATER FUND 
 

73 

Water Operations Budget 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 3,909,504$     2,360,448$     3,775,868$   4,001,022$   3,612,869$   3,612,869$   3,612,869$   
Revenue

Charges for services 50,242         3,773,555     2,482,680     1,801,800     4,201,200     4,201,200     -                 
Infrastructure developmen 14,456         6,918           6,000           8,500           6,000           6,000           -                 
Fines, interest and other 60,460         13,141         24,000         24,000         -                 -                 -                 
Total revenue 125,157       3,793,613     2,512,680     1,834,300     4,207,200     4,207,200     -                 

Other sources
Transfers in -                 264,263       -                 64,000         25,000         25,000         -                 
Total other sources -                 264,263       -                 64,000         25,000         25,000         -                 

Total sources 4,034,661 6,418,324 6,288,548 5,899,322 7,845,069 7,845,069 3,612,869 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 158,062       450,991       390,830       401,312       397,956       397,956       -                 
Payroll taxes 16,176         44,922         49,462         46,246         46,912         46,912         -                 
Benefits 58,529         168,043       150,720       154,953       171,732       171,732       -                 
Total personal services 232,767       663,956       591,012       602,511       616,600       616,600       -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 870,481       763,282       687,000       667,100       854,508       854,508       -                 
Facility and equipment 58,672         93,516         158,664       128,892       91,312         91,312         -                 
Other purchased services 193,075       284,628       400,602       367,202       382,270       382,270       -                 
Supplies 37,217         82,576         149,672       122,304       134,488       134,488       -                 
Community activities -                 -                 300             300             -                 -                 -                 
Minor equipment 11,383         10,583         13,040         13,040         8,004           8,004           -                 
Other materials & servic 81,500         219,606       256,410       251,963       294,759       294,759       -                 
Total materials & services 1,252,327     1,454,191     1,665,688     1,550,801     1,765,341     1,765,341     -                 

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                 -                 -                 (75,982)        25,000         25,000         -                 
Vehicles 85,277         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Furniture and equipment -                 4,995           111,000       111,000       -                 -                 -                 
Total capital outlay 85,277         4,995           111,000       35,018         25,000         25,000         -                 

Debt service
Principal 9,973           41,758         43,712         43,712         501,470       501,470       -                 
Interest 93,870         217,398       3,911           3,911           1,020,861     1,054,103     -                 
Total debt service 103,843       259,157       47,623         47,623         1,522,332     1,555,573     -                 

Total expenditures 1,674,214     2,382,298     2,415,323     2,235,953     3,929,272     3,962,514     -                 
Other uses

Transfers out -                 35,004         50,500         50,500         10,000         10,000         -                 
Ending Fund Balance 2,360,448$   4,001,022$   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Equipment Replacement Reserve -                 50,000         50,000         50,000         
Contingency 3,822,725     3,612,869     3,855,797     3,822,555     3,562,869     

Total uses 4,034,662 6,418,324 6,288,548 5,899,322 7,845,069 7,845,069 3,612,869 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 173



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   WATER FUND 
 

74 

FY11-12 Water Capital Projects 
 

Long Term Water Supply This project entails the planning, design and construction for the needed 
improvements to secure a long term water source for the City.  
 
Water Pipeline to Wilsonville In partnership with Wilsonville; construct a meter vault to connect 
Segment 5 to Segment 6 from Wilsonville to Sherwood. Negotiate an IGA to design, permit and 
construct Segment 3 of 48” transmission pipeline which will tie Segment 2 and Segment 4 together. 
Negotiate IGA with Wilsonville for interim water agreement. 
 

Programs Affected Description Cost Per Year
Water Operations Valve maintenance 1,000.00$       

Maintenance of ARV 500.00$            
Locates 300.00$            
Maintenance of Vault 1,000.00$         
Telemetry  maintenance 1,000.00$         
Cathodic protection 5,000.00$         

Annual maintenance costs for water pipeline to Wilsonville

 
 
Seismic Upgrade An upgrade is needed at the existing reservoir #1 at Snyder Park. The 
improvements are necessary to extend the service life of the reservoir that was built in the early 70’s. 
 If these improvements are completed the reservoir will have a life expectancy of between 12 to 15 
years or longer. 
 
There will be no additional maintenance costs due to the upgrade, the current maintenance program 
will continue. 
 
Siting and Property Needs Complete siting analysis and identify property acquisition needs for 
future 535 foot pressure zone reservoir. 
 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Completed IGAs for meter vault and temporary water source with the City of Wilsonville 
i In partnership with Wilsonville, began construction of meter vault 
i Completed Segments 6, 7 and 8 of the 48” transmission water main from Sherwood to 

Wilsonville 
i Completed 24” temporary line for temporary water use 
i In process of designing seismic upgrade for Sunset Reservoir #1 
i Partnered with City of Wilsonville to complete hydraulic analysis of the Willamette River 

Treatment Plant 
i Partnered with City of Wilsonville to complete Willamette River Water Treatment Plant rate 

study. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 174



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   WATER FUND 

75 

Water Capital Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 4,836,808$     6,345,168$     9,188,350$     3,770,360$     5,890,446$     5,890,446$     5,890,446$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 1,273,556       -                   500,000         -                   -                   -                   -                
Charges for services 3,395,215       -                   2,000,000       2,000,000       -                   -                   -                
Infrastructure development 372,980         113,258         60,000           140,000         60,000           60,000           -                
Fines, interest and other 348,298         1,195,881       16,344           16,344           24,000           24,000           -                
Total revenue 5,390,049       1,309,139       2,576,344       2,156,344       84,000           84,000           -                

Other sources
Transfers in -                   273,750         160,000         -                   -                   -                   -                
Issuance of long-term debt 5,596,252       3,152,556       6,000,000       17,249,085     6,498,833       6,498,833       -                
Total other sources 5,596,252       3,426,306       6,160,000       17,249,085     6,498,833       6,498,833       -                

Total sources 15,823,109 11,080,613 17,924,694 23,175,789 12,473,279 12,473,279 5,890,446 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 49,430           45,162           61,381           50,937           29,808           29,808           -                
Payroll taxes 3,980 3,661 5,561 4,264 2,605 2,605 -
Benefits 20,641           14,633           21,386           17,473           12,534           12,534           -                
Total personal services 74,050           63,455           88,328           72,674           44,947           44,947           -                

Materials and services
Professional & technical 8,850,927       7,095,341       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Facility and equipment 16,206           9,881             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Other purchased services 3,193             15,701           906               660               192              192               -                
Supplies 1,875             21,547           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Minor equipment 31,221           1,159             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Other materials & services 24,430           20,496           40,270           30,391           21,486           21,486           -                
Total materials & services 8,927,851       7,164,125       41,176           31,051           21,678           21,678           -                

Capital outlay
Land 137,477         17,634           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Infrastructure 242,000         -                   8,738,991       6,256,608       6,982,750       6,982,750       -                
Total capital outlay 379,477         17,634           8,738,991       6,256,608       6,982,750       6,982,750       -                

Debt service
Principal -                   -                   211,000         10,211,000     -                   -                   -                
Interest 96,562           63,539           373,000         373,000         -                   -                   -                
Issuance costs -                   1,500             -                   175,000         -                   -                   -                
Total debt service 96,562           65,039           584,000         10,759,000     -                   -                   -                

Total expenditures 9,477,940       7,310,253       9,452,495       17,119,333     7,049,375       7,049,375       -                
Other uses

Transfers out -                   -                   -                   166,010         230,000         230,000         -                
Ending Fund Balance 6,345,168$     3,770,360$     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                
Contingency 8,472,199       5,890,446       5,193,904       5,193,904       5,890,446     

Total uses 15,823,109 11,080,613 17,924,694 23,175,789 12,473,279 12,473,279 5,890,446 
 

 
It takes an average of 1.25 minutes to read a water meter. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 175



ENTERPRISE FUNDS              SANITARY FUND 
 

76 

Sanitary Fund 
 

The Sanitary fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the sanitary utility. The Capital department is responsible for 
construction of sanitary infrastructure. 
 
Sanitary Fund Budget in Total 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 4,418,258$  4,256,969$  4,338,622$  3,797,477$  3,614,505$  3,614,505$  3,614,505$  
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                 -                 1,143,738    648,360       761,408       761,408       -                 
Charges for services 329,065       456,341       512,376       453,720       512,736       512,736       -                 
Infrastructure development 150,098       8,331          3,240          3,240          3,000          3,000          -                 
Fines, interest and other 71,274        90,611        18,456        18,118        8,700          8,700          -                 
Total revenue 550,436       555,283       1,677,810    1,123,438    1,285,844    1,285,844    -                 

Other sources
Transfers in 86,314        -                 -                 -                 50,000        50,000        -                 
Total other sources 86,314        -                 -                 -                 50,000        50,000        -                 

Total sources 5,055,008  4,812,252  6,016,432  4,920,915  4,950,349  4,950,349  3,614,505  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 122,350       174,984       232,874       209,923       227,304       227,304       -                 
Payroll taxes 11,213        16,953        27,956        23,628        26,240        26,240        -                 
Benefits 37,962        48,959        75,312        65,063        79,080        79,080        -                 
Total personal services 171,526       240,895       336,143       298,615       332,624       332,624       -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 147,123       352,281       18,500        12,500        35,508        35,508        -                 
Facility and equipment 8,861          14,275        23,832        14,792        24,240        24,240        -                 
Other purchased services 124,780       134,354       47,298        37,752        72,480        72,480        -                 
Supplies 10,360        7,476          12,224        12,224        12,188        12,188        -                 
Minor equipment 7,873          2,444          8,788          6,808          1,508          1,508          -                 
Other materials & services 60,968        126,802       202,766       174,863       198,451       198,451       -                 
Total materials & services 359,965       637,632       313,408       258,939       344,375       344,375       -                 

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                 -                 677,174       488,714       1,403,329    1,403,329    -                 
Vehicles 37,450        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Furniture and equipment -                 7,600          50,000        30,000        -                 -                 -                 
Total capital outlay 37,450        7,600          727,174       518,714       1,403,329    1,403,329    -                 

Debt service -                 
Principal 31,913        39,670        41,527        41,527        54,642        54,642        -                 
Interest 6,185          5,571          3,715          3,715          1,771          1,771          -                 
Total debt service 38,098        45,241        45,242        45,242        56,413        56,413        -                 

Total expenditures 607,039       931,368       1,421,968    1,121,510    2,136,741    2,136,741    -                 
Other uses

Transfers out 191,000       83,407        79,000        184,900       323,900       323,900       -                 
Ending Fund Balance 4,256,969    3,797,477    -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Contingency 4,515,464    3,614,505    2,489,708    2,489,708    3,614,505    

Total uses 5,055,008  4,812,252  6,016,432  4,920,915  4,950,349  4,950,349  3,614,505  

 
 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 176



ENTERPRISE FUNDS              SANITARY FUND 
 

77 

Sanitary Operations   

The Sanitary Department manages and operates over 62 miles of pipe in the wastewater collection 
system in the city limits of Sherwood. 

 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Cleaned 164,634 feet of sanitary main lines. 
i Videoed 56,725 feet of sanitary main lines. 
i Completed brushing and posting program. 
i Completed 63 inspections at City businesses to ensure FOG compliance. 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

 
Strategies 
 

Manage and operate over 62 miles of pipe in the wastewater collection system within the city 
limits of Sherwood.

 
Activities 

i To ensure compliance with the City of Sherwood’s maintenance standards which are 
adopted by Clean Water Services.  This work section provides all warranty video 
inspection of all main line construction projects (private and capital). 

i Television inspection program is on a 7 year cycle and provides updated information 
on needed sanitary main line repairs and replacements. 

i The sanitary pipe lines are on a 3 year cleaning cycle to prevent blockages that 
could cause overflows. 

i Root cutting is on annual schedule to prevent blockages. 
i Fat Oil and Grease Program.  Provide inspections to ensure compliance with City 

ordinance to minimize maintenance costs. 
 

Performance Measures 
i Will clean 1/3 of city’s sanitary mainlines. 
i Will continue to provide brushing and posting program which include annual 

inspections and maintenance of offsite manholes (wetlands). 
i Will CCTV 1/7 of city’s sanitary mainline system. 
i Will respond to all private property sanitary overflows that we are made aware of. 
i Will complete inspections at city businesses for fat, oil, and grease (FOG) 

program to ensure compliance with city code. 
 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 177



ENTERPRISE FUNDS              SANITARY FUND 
 

78 

Sanitary Operations Budget 
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted
SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 258,704$   84,254$   92,124$       59,785$       32,653$   32,653$   32,653$ 
Revenue

Charges for services 329,065    456,271   512,376       453,720       512,736   512,736   -            
Infrastructure development 740          172         240             240             -             -             -            
Fines, interest and other 5,103       868         804             1,610          -             -             -            
Total revenue 334,907    457,311   513,420       455,570       512,736   512,736   -            

Other sources
Transfers in -              -             -                 -                 50,000    50,000    -            
Total other sources -              -             -                 -                 50,000    50,000    -            

Total sources 593,610  541,565 605,544      515,355     595,389 595,389 32,653  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 107,471    101,490   139,580       126,749       131,400   131,400   -            
Payroll taxes 9,968       10,805    18,096         15,619        16,782    16,782    -            
Benefits 32,807      31,561    47,074         40,661        52,200    52,200    -            
Total personal services 150,245    143,856   204,750       183,029       200,382   200,382   -            

Materials and services
Professional & technical 17,983      10,199    18,500         12,500        35,508    35,508    -            
Facility and equipment 8,861       11,519    23,832         14,792        24,240    24,240    -            
Other purchased services 123,767    122,261   47,034         37,566        72,192    72,192    -            
Supplies 10,360      7,476      12,224         12,224        12,188    12,188    -            
Minor equipment 7,873       2,444      8,788          6,808          1,508      1,508      -            
Other materials & services 49,720      50,762    91,574         76,541        95,790    95,790    -            
Total materials & services 218,563    204,662   201,952       160,431       241,426   241,426   -            

Capital outlay
Vehicles 37,450      -             -                 -                 -             -             -            
Furniture and equipment -              7,600      50,000         30,000        -             -             -            
Total capital outlay 37,450      7,600      50,000         30,000        -             -             -            

Debt service
Principal 31,913      39,670    41,527         41,527        54,642    54,642    -            
Interest 6,185       5,571      3,715          3,715          1,771      1,771      -            
Total debt service 38,098      45,241    45,242         45,242        56,413    56,413    -            

Total expenditures 444,356    401,359   501,944       418,702       498,221   498,221   -            
Other uses

Transfers out 65,000      80,421    64,000         64,000        -             -             -            
Ending Fund Balance 84,254$    59,785$   -                 -                 -             -             -            
Equipment Replacement Reserve -                 50,000    50,000    50,002  
Contingency 39,600         32,653        47,168    47,168    (17,349)  

Total uses 593,610  541,565 605,544      515,355     595,389 595,389 32,653  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 178



ENTERPRISE FUNDS              SANITARY FUND 
 

79 

FY11-12 Sanitary Capital Projects 
  

Brookman Area (Area 54/55) Sanitary Sewer Conveyance System Extension Phase 1:  This 
project extends a public sanitary sewer conveyance system mainline to the northern border of the 
Brookman Area (Area 54/55) annexation property.  This mainline extension will provide service for the 
future growth of the area.  Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of inspection of the conveyance 
system on a bi-yearly basis and cleaning once every 5 to 10 years. 
 

Programs Affected Description Cost Per Year
Sanitary Operations Mainline Cleaning (4 yr cycle) 121.95$         

Mainline TV (8 yr cycle) 83.33$           
Manholes (8 yr cycle) 131.25$         

Annual maintenance costs for Brookman sanitary sewer extension phase 1

 
Brookman Area (Area 54/55) Sanitary Sewer Conveyance System Extension Phase 2:  This 
project extends a public sanitary conveyance system mainline through the Brookman Area annexed 
property.  This mainline extension will provide service for the future growth of the area.  Public Works 
maintenance will consist mostly of inspection of the conveyance system on a bi-yearly basis and cleaning 
once every 5 to 10 years. 
 
Design and construction are pending City Council approval. Ongoing maintenance costs will be determined 
after design is completed. 
 
Rock Creek Trunk Line Capacity Upgrade: This project consists of replacing/upsizing approximately 
5,200 linear feet of existing 18-inch diameter sewer main trunk line with 24-inch diameter sewer main 
trunk line.  The project limits are from the City limits off Tualatin-Sherwood Road north and east, across 
Onion Flats, to the CWS pump lift station off Hwy 99W, which is located northeast of downtown 
Sherwood.  The project is listed in the City’s Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and in Clean Water Services 
(CWS) system plans for upgrading, and is necessary for future development of Area 48 and infill 
development in the southeast and northeast part of the City.  The project will be funded by reimbursement 
funds from CWS’s CIP program.   
 
Ongoing maintenance of this system is the responsibility of CWS. 
 
Rock Creek Trunk Capacity Upgrade Phase 1:  This project consists of replacing/upsizing 
approximately 1,349 linear feet of existing 18-inch diameter pipe with 24-inch diameter pipe between the 
two manholes noted above.  This upgrade is necessary to provide capacity for future growth and 
expansion of the northeast portion of Sherwood (Area 48). 
 
Ongoing maintenance of this system is the responsibility of CWS. 
 
Rock Creek Trunk Line Capacity Upgrade Phase 2: This project consists of replacing/upsizing 
approximately 1,436 linear feet of existing 15-inch diameter pipe with 18-inch diameter pipe between the 
two manholes noted above.  This upgrade is necessary to provide capacity for future growth and 
expansion of the northeast portion of Sherwood (Area 48). 
 
Ongoing maintenance of this system is the responsibility of CWS. 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 179



ENTERPRISE FUNDS              SANITARY FUND 

80 

Sanitary Capital Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 4,159,555$   4,172,715$   4,246,498$   3,737,692$   3,581,853$   3,581,853$   3,581,853$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                  -                  1,143,738     648,360        761,408        761,408        -                  
Charges for services -                  70                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Infrastructure development 149,359        8,159           3,000           3,000           3,000           3,000           -                  
Fines, interest and other 66,171          89,743          17,652          16,508          8,700           8,700           -                  
Total revenue 215,529        97,972          1,164,390     667,868        773,108        773,108        -                  

Other sources
Transfers in 86,314          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total other sources 86,314          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total sources 4,461,398   4,270,687   5,410,888   4,405,560   4,354,961   4,354,961   3,581,853   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 14,880          73,494          93,294          83,174          95,904          95,904          -                  
Payroll taxes 1,246           6,147           9,860           8,009           9,458           9,458           -                  
Benefits 5,155           17,398          28,238          24,402          26,880          26,880          -                  
Total personal services 21,281          97,039          131,393        115,585        132,242        132,242        -                  

Materials and services
Professional & technical 129,140        342,082        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Facility and equipment -                  2,756           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Other purchased services 1,013           12,093          264              186              288              288              -                  
Other materials & services 11,248          76,039          111,193        98,322          102,661        102,661        -                  
Total materials & services 141,402        432,970        111,457        98,508          102,949        102,949        -                  

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                  -                  677,174        488,714        1,403,329     1,403,329     -                  
Total capital outlay -                  -                  677,174        488,714        1,403,329     1,403,329     -                  

Debt service
Total debt service -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total expenditures 162,683        530,009        920,024        702,808        1,638,520     1,638,520     -                  
Other uses

Transfers out 126,000        2,986           15,000          120,900        323,900        323,900        -                  
Ending Fund Balance 4,172,715$   3,737,692$   -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Contingency 4,475,864     3,581,853     2,392,541     2,392,541     3,581,853     

Total uses 4,461,398   4,270,687   5,410,888   4,405,560   4,354,961   4,354,961   3,581,853   

 

 
1/3, equivalent to about 110,000 feet of Sherwood’s 

sanitary system is cleaned every year. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 180



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   STORM FUND 
 

81 

Storm Fund 

The Storm fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the stormwater utility. The Capital department is responsible 
for construction of stormwater infrastructure. 
 
Storm Fund Budget in Total 

 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 1,656,622$  550,084$     469,479$     628,418$     843,907$     843,907$     843,907$  
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                 -                 350,000       350,000       -              
Charges for services 559,283       1,330,431    1,425,348    1,355,899    1,360,000    1,360,000    -              
Infrastructure development 124,677       13,435        10,236        3,240          3,000          3,000          -              
Fines, interest and other 24,402        3,982          3,420          3,420          1,200          1,200          -              
Total revenue 708,362       1,347,848    1,439,004    1,362,559    1,714,200    1,714,200    -              

Other sources
Transfers in 430,686       -                 -                 -                 60,000        60,000        -              
Issuance of long-term debt 500,000       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -              
Total other sources 930,686       -                 -                 -                 60,000        60,000        -              

Total sources 3,295,669  1,897,932  1,908,483  1,990,977  2,618,107  2,618,107  843,907  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 177,815       157,913       236,369       232,521       235,092       235,092       -              
Payroll taxes 17,935        18,847        32,858        30,378        30,262        30,262        -              
Benefits 54,851        47,659        76,112        72,963        85,008        85,008        -              
Total personal services 250,600       224,419       345,339       335,863       350,362       350,362       -              

Materials and services
Professional & technical 2,171,379    143,685       162,498       162,298       165,396       165,396       -              
Facility and equipment 15,763        13,692        24,684        19,180        25,216        25,216        -              
Other purchased services 39,300        78,314        103,175       97,266        87,652        87,652        -              
Supplies 8,209          15,721        21,876        21,876        23,100        23,100        -              
Minor equipment 5,673          -                 11,032        11,032        8,852          8,852          -              
Other materials & services 119,228       89,149        164,611       149,991       184,091       184,091       -              
Total materials & services 2,359,552    340,560       487,875       461,643       494,307       494,307       -              

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 1,101          -                 100,000       100,000       600,203       600,203       -              
Vehicles 37,450        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -              
Furniture and equipment -                 -                 32,500        32,500        11,000        11,000        -              
Total capital out lay 38,551        -                 132,500       132,500       611,203       611,203       -              

Debt service -              
Principal 62,876        135,728       141,014       141,014       158,269       158,269       -              
Interest 12,106        21,335        16,050        16,050        10,552        10,552        -              
Issuance costs 1,600          5,684          -                 -                 -                 -                 -              
Total debt service 76,582        162,747       157,064       157,064       168,821       168,821       -              

Total expenditures 2,725,286    727,726       1,122,777    1,087,070    1,624,694    1,624,694    -              
Other uses

Transfers out 20,300        541,788       224,000       60,000        230,000       230,000       -              
Ending Fund Balance 550,084       628,418       -                 -                 -                 -                 -              
Contingency 561,706       843,907       763,413       763,413       843,907    

Total uses 3,295,669  1,897,932  1,908,483  1,990,977  2,618,107  2,618,107  843,907  

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 181



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   STORM FUND 
 

82 

Storm Operations 

The Storm Water Department manages and operates over 59 miles of pipe in the storm water 
collection and treatment system within the City.  
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 

i Cleaned 81,740 feet of storm sewer main lines. 
i Cleaned 1,675 catch basins.  
i Cleaned 109 water quality manholes. 
i Videoed 56,725 feet of storm sewer main lines. 
i Treated 1675 catch basins and collected 9 samples for prevention of West Nile Virus. 
i Completed leaf curbside pickup for all public city streets and held 3 leaf drop dates at public works 

facility.  Collected 338 yards of leaves and collected 320 lbs of canned food.  
i Planted 6,323 trees in compliance with Healthy Streams program. 
i Completed monthly street sweeping. 

 
2011-12 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “

 
Strategies 

Manage the storm water collection and treatment systems within the City of Sherwood. 
 

Activities 
i To ensure compliance with the City of Sherwood’s maintenance standards which are adopted 

by Clean Water Services.  This work section provides all warranty video inspection of all main 
line construction projects (private and capital). 

i Television inspection program is on a 7 year cycle and provides updated information on 
needed storm main line repairs and replacements. 

i Clean water quality manholes twice yearly and catch basins yearly.   
i Maintain maintenance program of water quality facilities and storm water filters. 
i West Nile Virus Program consists of sampling, treatment, and monitoring. 
i The storm pipe lines are on a 4 year cleaning cycle to prevent blockages that could cause 

flooding. 
i Leaf Program prevents street flooding and helps minimize maintenance costs. 
i Street Sweeping consists of working with independent contractors to ensure contract 

agreements are followed and that work progresses smoothly. 
i Healthy Streams plan consists of tree planting in accordance with Clean Water Services 

Healthy Streams programs. 
 

Performance Measures 
i Will clean 1/4 of city storm mainlines. 
i Will clean all sumped catch basins. 
i Will clean water quality manholes twice yearly. 
i Will CCTV 1/8 of city’s storm mainline. 
i Will provide treatment of all catch basins and will sample bi-weekly from June through 

September for West Nile Virus Program. 
i Will provide leaf curbside pickup for all public city streets during November and will hold 

three (3) leaf drop dates in November and December. 
i Will plant 5,269 trees as required per Healthy Stream Program. 
i Will complete monthly sweeping of public curbed streets. 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 182



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   STORM FUND 
 

83 

Storm Operations Budget 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance (145,278)$ 237,288$      315,956$     380,369$     427,999$    427,999$    427,999$ 
Revenue

Charges for services 559,283   1,330,431   1,350,348    1,155,899    960,000      960,000      -             
Infrastructure development 7,892       172            240             240             -                -                -             
Fines, interest and other 1,587       2,474         2,220           2,220          -                -                -             
Total revenue 568,761   1,333,077   1,352,808    1,158,359    960,000      960,000      -             

Other sources
Transfers in 370,000   -                -                  -                 60,000       60,000       -             
Total other sources 370,000   -                -                  -                 60,000       60,000       -             

Total sources 793,483  1,570,365 1,668,764   1,538,728  1,447,999 1,447,999 427,999 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 139,036   144,238      217,856       218,758       195,732      195,732      -             
Payroll taxes 14,681     17,704       30,860         29,018        26,457       26,457       -             
Benefits 43,340     44,719       70,847         69,233        72,360       72,360       -             
Total personal services 197,057   206,661      319,563       317,010       294,549      294,549      -             

Materials and services
Professional & technical 102,015   97,675       162,498       162,298       165,396      165,396      -             
Facility and equipment 8,365       12,746       24,684         19,180        25,216       25,216       -             
Other purchased services 39,085     77,181       103,070       97,200        87,568       87,568       -             
Supplies 8,209       15,721       21,876         21,876        23,100       23,100       -             
Minor equipment 5,673       -                11,032         11,032        8,852         8,852         -             
Other materials & services 73,259     75,476       142,928       132,570       140,806      140,806      -             
Total materials & services 236,605   278,800      466,088       444,156       450,938      450,938      -             

Capital out lay
Infrastructure 1,101       -                100,000       100,000       236,500      236,500      -             
Vehicles 37,450     -                -                  -                 -                -                -             
Furniture and equipment -              -                32,500         32,500        11,000       11,000       -             
Total capital outlay 38,551     -                132,500       132,500       247,500      247,500      -             

Debt service
Principal 62,876     135,728      141,014       141,014       158,269      158,269      -             
Interest 12,106     21,335       16,050         16,050        10,552       10,552       -             
Issuance costs -              5,684         -                  -                 -                -                -             
Total debt service 74,982     162,747      157,064       157,064       168,821      168,821      -             

Total expenditures 547,195   648,207      1,075,215    1,050,729    1,161,808   1,161,808   -             
Other uses

Transfers out 9,000       541,788      124,000       60,000        -                -                -             
Ending Fund Balance 237,288$ 380,369$    -                  -                 -                -                -             
Equipment Replacement Reserve -                 70,000       70,000       70,000     
Contingency 469,549       427,999       216,191      216,191      357,999   

Total uses 793,483  1,570,365 1,668,764   1,538,728  1,447,999 1,447,999 427,999 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 183



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   STORM FUND 

84 

FY11-12 Storm Capital Projects 

Brookman Area (Area 54/55) Upper Ladd Hill Regional Stormwater Treatment Facility 
Feasibility Study and Design:  The project is to define an area where a regional stormwater quality 
treatment facility may be located and to provide a design for its construction. These design drawings will 
be provided to developers for their use in development of the Brookman Area (Area 54/55).  This level of 
work will not have any impact on Public Works maintenance staff. 

Fiscal year 2011-12 includes the design of the treatment facility only. Ongoing maintenance costs will be 
determined after the design is completed. 

Columbia Street Regional Stormwater Quality Facility:  This project is identified in the City’s 
Stormwater Master Plan.  This project constructs a regional stormwater treatment facility which will 
provide stormwater treatment for the downtown core area not served by the stormwater treatment facility 
constructed as part of the Downtown Streetscapes Phase 1 project.  This project will be required to be 
constructed within five years of the completion of Phase 1 of the Cannery project.  Public Works 
maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality.  
This work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Fiscal year 2011-12 includes the purchase of property only. Design and construction will be in future years 
as will the analysis of the impact on ongoing maintenance costs. 

  

In the last year 6,323 trees were planted as part 
of the Healthy Streams Program. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 184



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                   STORM FUND 

85 

Storm Capital Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 1,801,900$   312,796$   153,523$      248,048$     415,907$      415,907$      415,907$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                  -               -                  -                 350,000        350,000        -               
Charges for services -                  -               75,000         200,000       400,000        400,000        -               
Infrastructure development 116,785        13,263       9,996           3,000          3,000           3,000           -               
Fines, interest and other 22,815          1,508        1,200           1,200          1,200           1,200           -               
Total revenue 139,600        14,772       86,196         204,200       754,200        754,200        -               

Other sources
Transfers in 60,686          -               -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Issuance of long-term debt 500,000        -               -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Total other sources 560,686        -               -                  -                 -                  -                  -               

Total sources 2,502,186   327,567   239,719     452,248     1,170,107   1,170,107   415,907   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 38,779          13,675       18,513         13,763         39,360          39,360          -               
Payroll taxes 3,254           1,143        1,998           1,360          3,805           3,805           -               
Benefits 11,511          2,941        5,265           3,730          12,648          12,648          -               
Total personal services 53,543          17,759       25,776         18,853         55,813          55,813          -               

Materials and services
Professional & technical 2,069,365     46,010       -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Facility and equipment 7,399           945           -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Other purchased services 215              1,133        105              66               84                84                -               
Other materials & services 45,969          13,673       21,683         17,421         43,285          43,285          -               
Total materials & services 2,122,947     61,761       21,787         17,487         43,369          43,369          -               

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                  -               -                  -                 363,703        363,703        -               
Total capital outlay -                  -               -                  -                 363,703        363,703        -               

Debt service
Issuance costs 1,600           -               -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Total debt service 1,600           -               -                  -                 -                  -                  -               

Total expenditures 2,178,090     79,519       47,563         36,341         462,885        462,885        -               
Other uses

Transfers out 11,300          -               100,000       -                 230,000        230,000        -               
Ending Fund Balance 312,796$      248,048$   -                  -                 -                  -                  -               
Contingency 92,156         415,907       477,222        477,222        415,907     

Total uses 2,502,186   327,567   239,719     452,248     1,170,107   1,170,107   415,907   

 
1,789 catch basins in Sherwood connect to the storm water 

collection and treatment system. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 185



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                                       TELECOMMUNICATIONS FUND 
 

86 

Telecommunications 
 
Telecommunications supports the communication needs of the city, local businesses, school district, 
and residents. Services within this utility are primarily sold and managed through third party service 
providers. Currently there are over 40 sites within this network and over 100 miles of fiber optic cable. 
Telecommunications also support economic development within Sherwood and the surrounding area. 
 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
  

i Maintained steady revenue stream 
i Established a relationship with a major Internet Service Provider and we are in the process 

of reselling services to them. 
i Signed a memo of understanding with another fiber provider to bring redundancy to the SBB 

network at little to no cost to the utility. 
 

 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values and Activities 
 
Goal: Economic Development:  

 
Strategies: 
 

Continue to promote Sherwood Broadband to the Sherwood business community 
 

Activities: 
i Continue to involve third party Internet Service Providers 
i Integrate Sherwood Broadband into applicable Economic Development activities 

 
Performance Measures 

i The number of new customers added each year 

 

 
 
 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

FY 06/07 Actual FY 07/08 Actual FY 08/09 Actual FY 09/10 Actual FY 10/11
Projected

FY 11/12
Projected

Sites Served by the Sherwood Broadband 
Utility

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 186



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                                       TELECOMMUNICATIONS FUND 

87 

Telecommunications Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance (754,604)$   25,342$     24,368$       56,253$       134,125$   134,125$   134,125$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                12,000      -                  -                 -               -               -               
Charges for services 151,999      186,798     243,192       200,000       278,000     278,000     -               
Fines, interest and other 72              229           240              240             12,000       12,000       -               
Total revenue 152,071      199,028     243,432       200,240       290,000     290,000     -               

Other sources
Transfers in 950,000      -               25,500         25,500         10,000       10,000       -               
Total other sources 950,000      -               25,500         25,500         10,000       10,000       -               

Total sources 347,468    224,370   293,300     281,993     434,125   434,125   134,125   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 29,459        12,504      34,916         11,185         17,724       17,724       -               
Payroll taxes 2,904          1,101        3,312           950             1,561        1,561        -               
Benefits 8,819          3,604        11,819         3,665          7,164        7,164        -               
Total personal services 41,181        17,209      50,047         15,800         26,449       26,449       -               

Materials and services
Professional & technical 76,097        31,874      24,992         23,992         10,040       10,040       -               
Facility and equipment 50,174        42,003      20,324         26,824         37,956       37,956       -               
Other purchased services 29,958        43,163      15,480         31,644         31,440       31,440       -               
Supplies 13,325        63             15,000         1,000          15,000       15,000       -               
Minor equipment 8,814          7,235        10,000         2,000          10,000       10,000       -               
Other materials & services 18,997        4,561        22,907         6,607          12,644       12,644       -               
Total materials & services 197,364      128,899     108,703       92,067         117,080     117,080     -               

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 55,610        22,010      -                  -                 -               -               -               
Furniture and equipment 27,971        -               40,000         40,000         40,000       40,000       -               
Total capital outlay 83,580        22,010      40,000         40,000         40,000       40,000       -               

Debt service
Total debt service -                -               -                  -                 -               -               -               

Total expenditures 322,126      168,117     198,750       147,867       183,529     183,529     -               
Other uses

Transfers out -                -               -                  -                 200,000     200,000     -               
Ending Fund Balance 25,342        56,253      -                  -                 -               
Contingency 94,550         134,125       50,597       50,597       134,125     

Total uses 347,468    224,370   293,300     281,993     434,125   434,125   134,125   

 
 
 
 

In the last 365 days Sherwood Broadband has delivered 6.64 GB’s 
of Internet bandwidth to the City of Sherwood. 

6.64 Gigabits works out to be 6,639.35 Megabits for the year. 
That’s 829,918,750 bytes, or 6,639,350,000 bits of Internet 

bandwidth. 
 

This means that each employee uses an average of 84,042,405 
bits of Internet bandwidth last year.

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 187



FINANCIALS                                         STORM CAPITAL 

88 

  
FY11-12 General Construction Capital Projects 
 
The General Construction Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of capital assets that are 
not financed by Enterprise Funds.  It includes city buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational facilities 
and trails. 
 
There is no General Construction projects budgeted for fiscal year 2011-12. 
 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 711,230$      959,507$      145,712$      85,089$       347,783$   347,783$   347,783$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 5,000           291,317        133,522        290,517       -               -               -               
Charges for services -                  -                  24,600          -                 -               -               -               
Infrastructure development 1,012,409     124,903        439,992        100,000       100,000     100,000     -               
Fines, interest and other 29,254          22,949          6,840           25,290         24,750       24,750       -               
Total revenue 1,046,663     439,169        604,954        415,807       124,750     124,750     -               

Other sources
Transfers in 154,207        49,252          250,000        250,000       -               -               -               
Total other sources 154,207        49,252          250,000        250,000       -               -               -               

Total sources 1,912,100   1,447,928   1,000,666   750,896     472,533   472,533   347,783   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 58,813          34,902          55,602          55,566         -               -               -               
Payroll taxes 4,930           2,888           5,882           5,578          -               -               -               
Benefits 20,913          12,163          16,553          16,893         -               -               -               
Total personal services 84,656          49,953          78,037          78,036         -               -               -               

Materials and services
Professional & technical 229,249        -                  -                  -                 -               -               -               
Other purchased services 1,894           200              204              204             -               -               -               
Community activities 48                -                  -                  -                 -               -               -               
Minor equipment 750              -                  -                  -                 -               -               -               
Other materials & services 61,541          36,399          65,352          61,507         -               -               -               
Total materials & services 293,482        36,598          65,556          61,711         -               -               -               

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                  521,989        319,050        214,761       -               -               -               
Total capital outlay -                  521,989        319,050        214,761       -               -               -               

Debt service
Principal 505,960        522,250        34,830          34,830         36,120       36,120       -               
Interest 49,680          32,049          13,774          13,774         12,021       12,021       -               
Total debt service 555,640        554,299        48,604          48,604         48,141       48,141       -               

Total expenditures 933,779        1,162,839     511,247        403,112       48,141       48,141       -               
Other uses

Transfers out 18,814          200,000        -                  -                 -               -               -               
Ending Fund Balance 959,507        85,089          -                  -                 -               
Contingency 489,419        347,783       424,392     424,392     347,783     

Total uses 1,912,100   1,447,928   1,000,666   750,896     472,533   472,533   347,783   

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 188



APPENDICES                                       PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

89 
 

Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Year 

 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
Actual Actual Projected Budget

Administration 13.2            14.0                 15.6           16.4            
Community Development 11.5            10.2            9.5              8.8              
Public Safety 24.9            24.6            24.6           26.0            
Community Services 12.7            13.3            13.4           13.1            
Public Works Operations 9.5              9.2              11.4           12.0            

General Fund Total 71.9            71.3            74.4           76.4            

Water Operations 2.5              9.1              7.8              7.8              
Water Capital 0.9              0.7              0.7              0.4              

Water Fund Total 3.4              9.8              8.4              8.2              

Sanitary Operations 1.8              1.9              2.7              2.6              
Sanitary Capital 0.3              1.3              1.3              1.5              

Sanitary Fund Total 2.1              3.3              4.0              4.1              

Storm Operations 2.7              3.1              4.4              4.0              
Storm Capital 0.7              0.2              0.2              0.6              

Storm Fund Total 3.3              3.3              4.6              4.7              

Street Operations 3.2              2.9              4.2              4.1              

Street Capital 1.4              0.9              1.8              2.0              

General Construction 1.1              0.6              0.9              -              

Telecom 0.4              0.2              0.2              0.3              

URA Operations 1.2              1.1              1.0              0.8              

URA Capital 0.1              0.4              0.5              0.5              
Total 88.1            93.8            99.9           100.9          

Administration Eliminate the Senior Accountant position (1)               
Building Eliminate the Plumbing Inspector position (1)               
Public Safety Eliminate the Emergency Management position (1)               
Public Safety Add a School Resouce Officer 1                

Total changes to personnel for FY2011-12 (2)               

Changes to personnel for FY 2011-12

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 189



APPENDICES                                       PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

90 
 

 
Management/Supervisory/Confidential 
 
 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 
Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Admin Asst III - Confidential A1 18.23 23.34 3,160 4,045 

Program/Project Supervisor I 
Payroll Tech A2 20.05 25.67 3,476 4,450 

Program/Project Supervisor II B 22.06 28.23 3,823 4,894 

PW Operations Supervisor 
Supervising Librarian 
Emergency Management Coord. 
Recreation Coordinator 
Program Analyst 
Program Project Manager I 

C 24.25 31.05 4,204 5,381 

Program Project Manager II 
Accounting Supervisor 
Water Operations Supervisor 
Engineering Associate II 
System Administrator 

D 26.45 33.85 4,584 5,868 

Civil Engineer 
Police Sgt (non-exempt) 
Planning Manager 

E 28.83 36.90 4,997 6,397 

Building Official 
Library Manager F 31.13 39.85 5,396 6,907 

Human Resource Manager 
Police Captain 
Economic Development Manager 

G 33.62 43.03 5,827 7,459 

City Engineer 
Community Services Director H 35.97 46.05 6,235 7,981 

IT Director 
Community Develop Director 
Finance Director 
Public Works Director 

I 38.49 49.27 6,672 8,541 

Police Chief J 41.19 52.72 7,139 9,139 

City Manager 
City Recorder 
Municipal Judge 

Contract 
Employees    

 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 190



APPENDICES                                      PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

91 
 

AFSCME Represented 
 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 
Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Library Page 1 
Recreational Assistant 1 10.53 13.48 1,871 2,336 

Library Page 2 2 12.32 15.77 2,135 2,734 

Admin Asst I 
Library Asst I 
Recreation Specialist 

3 14.17 18.14 2,457 3,145 

Admin Asst II 
Library Asst II 
Maintenance Worker I 

4 16.01 20.50 2,775 3,553 

Admin Asst III 
Maintenance Worker II 
Engineering Tech I 

5 17.77 22.75 3,081 3,943 

Finance Tech 
Code Compliance/Evidence Tech 
Department/Program Coordinator 
Maintenance Worker III 
Permit Specialist 
Public Works Tech 
Mechanic 

6 19.55 25.03 3,389 4,338 

Assistant Planner 
Librarian 
Maintenance Worker Lead 
Accountant 
Court Administrator 

7 21.31 27.27 3,693 4,727 

Associate Planner 
Engineering Associate I 
Inspector I 

8 23.22 29.73 4,026 5,153 

Inspector II 
 9 25.08 32.11 4,348 5,566 

 
Senior Planner 
 
 

10 26.85 34.36 4,653 5,957 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 191



APPENDICES                                      PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 

92 

SPOA Represented 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 
Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Police Officer 1 23.80 30.47 4,125 5,281 

 
 

In 2010 Sherwood Police Officers made 32 drug arrests. 
The ages of those arrested ranged from 14-54. 

 

 
 

The City of Sherwood Police Department is one of the 
top 5 fundraisers in the State of Oregon for Special 

Olympics. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 192



APPENDICES       
  LONG TERM DEBT 

93 

Description of Long-Term Debt

All debt with repayment terms in excess of one year is shown on the following schedule.  Debt, which 
the City plans to issue in fiscal year 2011-12, is shown, and debt service on planned loans is budgeted.    

The debt is in two sections.  The first section is City debt independent of the URA.  This includes 
general obligation bonds and loans paid from City resources.  The second section is City loans for 
Urban Renewal Agency projects.  There are intergovernmental agreements for the URA to reimburse 
the City for debt service on these loans.  For all debt to outside parties, “debt service expenditures to 
maturity” represents principal and interest payments, both of which appear as expenditures in the 
budget.  

 
 

The city picked up 72 trash cans of garbage at 
parks and Sports fields 1,676 times this year. 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 193



APPENDICES       
   LONG TERM DEBT 
 

94 
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

2004 A&B 
Refunding

2011 Police 
Facility 

Refunding 

2002 Public 
Works & 

Fieldhouse
Original Amount  $    6,045,000  $   2,305,000  $     1,461,740  $  508,260  $     1,900,000 
Balance at 6/30/11       3,315,000       2,305,000           712,320      247,680           287,587 

Payment Source  Rent of Building  Parks SDC's 
  Unrestricted & 

Rates 

Paying Fund  General 
 General 

Construction 

 General, Water, 
Sanitary, Storm, 

and Streets 

Year Ending June 30
2012 619,238        268,659        138,451          48,141      238,110          
2013 622,825        269,800        140,442          48,833      59,476           
2014 621,419        270,550        138,347          48,104      -                   
2015 623,194        271,200        139,580          48,533      -                   
2016 628,594        270,625        136,714          47,537      -                   
2017 622,500        268,800        137,033          47,647      -                   
2018 -                  271,750        -                   -              -                   
2019 -                  269,475        -                   -              -                   
2020 -                  270,700        -                   -              -                   
2021 -                  270,300        -                   -              -                   
2022 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2023 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2024 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2025 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2026 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2027 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2028 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2029 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2030 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2031 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2032 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2033 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2034 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2035 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   
2036 -                  -                  -                   -              -                   

3,737,770$    2,701,859$    830,567$        288,795$   297,586$        

 Property taxes 

 Debt Service 

2001 YMCA

General Obligation Bonds City Loans

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 194



APPENDICES       
   LONG TERM DEBT 
 

95 
 

 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

2008 SDW 
Water Reservoir

2009 Stella 
Olsen 

Culvert

2009 SDW 
Water 

Pipeline
2011 Bonds for 

Water

Total City Debt 
Exclusive of 

URA
Original Amount  $         6,000,000  $     500,000  $ 6,000,000  $      14,165,000  $    30,535,000 
Balance at 6/30/11            5,788,921         285,743     6,000,000          14,165,000        27,487,251 

Payment Source Water Rates Storm Rates Water Rates  Water Rates     

Paying Fund Water Storm Water  Water 

Year Ending June 30
2012 424,079              109,441        434,870      637,242            2,032,346        
2013 424,079              109,441        434,870      979,319            2,198,473        
2014 424,079              82,081         434,870      981,619            2,111,114        
2015 424,079              -                 434,870      978,719            2,027,796        
2016 424,079              -                 434,870      980,719            2,025,935        
2017 424,079              -                 434,870      977,519            2,023,165        
2018 424,079              -                 434,870      980,069            1,841,036        
2019 424,079              -                 434,870      977,169            1,838,137        
2020 424,079              -                 434,870      979,569            1,840,538        
2021 424,079              -                 434,870      981,169            1,842,139        
2022 424,079              -                 434,870      981,969            1,842,940        
2023 424,079              -                 434,870      981,969            1,842,941        
2024 424,079              -                 434,870      980,719            1,841,692        
2025 424,079              -                 434,870      978,719            1,839,693        
2026 424,079              -                 434,870      980,919            1,841,894        
2027 424,079              -                 434,870      981,375            1,842,351        
2028 424,079              -                 434,870      980,025            1,841,002        
2029 424,079              -                 434,870      976,806            1,837,784        
2030 424,079              -                 434,870      977,494            1,838,473        
2031 -                       -                 425,845      980,994            1,408,870        
2032 -                       -                 -               977,000            979,032          
2033 -                       -                 -               978,750            980,783          
2034 -                       -                 -               978,500            980,534          
2035 -                       -                 -               981,250            983,285          
2036 -                       -                 -               981,750            983,786          

8,057,501$         300,963$      8,688,375$  24,151,348$       42,665,735$     

City Loans

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 195



APPENDICES       
   LONG TERM DEBT 
 

96 
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2003 Civic 
Building

2003 
OECDD

2004 Land 
Purchase

2005 Old 
School & 

Sports 
Field

2006 
Downtown 

Streets
Original Amount  $ 2,435,000  $ 5,845,708  $  350,000  $   830,000  $ 1,800,000 
Balance at 6/30/11       580,000     4,254,561      105,000       568,000     1,376,005 

Payment Source

Paying Fund

Year Ending June 30
2012 305,590     438,486      39,681      80,336       175,396      
2013 305,473     435,853      37,809      78,769       175,416      
2014 -               437,879      35,983      80,145       175,398      
2015 -               434,138      -              80,314       175,396      
2016 -               434,738      -              79,334       175,386      
2017 -               434,938      -              80,239       175,396      
2018 -               434,483      -              80,657       175,395      
2019 -               438,353      -              80,487       175,386      
2020 -               436,313      -              79,830       175,397      
2021 -               438,553      -              -               175,398      
2022 -               434,828      -              -               43,849       
2023 -               435,496      -              -               -               
2024 -               435,234      -              -               -               
2025 -               -               -              -               -               
2026 -               -               -              -               -               
2027 -               -               -              -               -               
2028 -               -               -              -               -               
2029 -               -               -              -               -               
2030 -               -               -              -               -               
2031 -               -               -              -               -               
2032 -               -               -              -               -               
2033 -               -               -              -               -               
2034 -               -               -              -               -               
2035 -               -               -              -               -               
2036 -               -               -              -               -               

611,063$    5,669,292$  113,473$   720,111$    1,797,813$  

URA property taxes

Urban Renewal Agency

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 196



APPENDICES       
   LONG TERM DEBT 
 

97 
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2006 
Downtown 

Streets

2010 
Streets & 
Cannery

2010 
Cannery

Total Debt on 
behalf of URA

Total Debt to 
Outside Parties

Original Amount  $ 6,400,000  $   7,065,000  $ 8,500,000  $     33,225,708  $        72,110,708 
Balance at 6/30/11     5,538,077      6,820,000     1,000,000 20,241,643           53,348,894 

Year Ending June 
30

2012 483,820      554,820 -              2,078,129             4,996,360 
2013 485,419      553,345 425,000 2,497,084             5,586,169 
2014 481,619      551,360 425,000 2,187,384             5,188,453 
2015 482,619      553,865 425,000 2,151,332             5,071,507 
2016 483,219      555,605 425,000 2,153,282             5,076,420 
2017 483,419      551,580 425,000 2,150,572             5,063,020 
2018 483,220      552,045 425,000 2,150,800             4,261,568 
2019 482,619      551,745 425,000 2,153,590             4,259,183 
2020 481,619      555,680 425,000 2,153,839             4,263,057 
2021 484,863      553,595 425,000 2,077,409             4,187,827 
2022 482,263      555,768 425,000 1,941,708             3,782,626 
2023 484,088      553,563 425,000 1,898,147             3,739,065 
2024 485,276      550,660 425,000 1,896,170             3,735,838 
2025 480,656      552,060 425,000 1,457,716             3,295,384 
2026 485,343      552,530 425,000 1,462,873             3,302,741 
2027 484,156      552,070 425,000 1,461,226             3,301,550 
2028 -               555,680 425,000 980,680             2,819,654 
2029 -               553,128 425,000 978,128             2,813,883 
2030 -               554,645 425,000 979,645             2,816,088 
2031 -               -                 425,000 425,000             1,831,839 
2032 -               -                 425,000 425,000             1,402,000 
2033 -               -                 -               -                                    978,750 
2034 -               -                 -               -                                    978,500 
2035 -               -                 -               -                                    981,250 
2036 -               -                 -               -                                    981,750 

7,734,218$  10,513,744$  8,500,000$  35,659,714$      84,714,479$        

URA property taxes

Urban Renewal Agency

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 197



APPENDICES     DEBT MARGIN/TRANSFERS 
 

98 
 

Debt Margin 

 

Total assessed value on January 1 2010: 1,478,503,863$ 

Debt limitation: 3% of total assessed value 44,355,116       
Debt outstanding at July 30, 2011:

General obligation bonds outstanding 5,690,000$    
Less amount avaialble for repayment of general obligation bonds (2,142)          

Net debt outstanding that is subject to limitation 5,687,858         
Amount of general obligation bonds that could be issued 38,667,258        
 

Transfers 

 

Transfer from:

Fund
General 
Fund

Water 
Fund

Sanitary 
Fund

Storm 
Fund

Street 
Operations 

Fund

Street 
Capital 
Fund

1 General 200,000     
2 Telecom 200,000   
3 Asset Depreciation 53,998    25,000    50,000   60,000    29,000       
4 Water 230,000   
4 Sanitary 323,900   
4 Storm 230,000   
5 Telecom 10,000    

Total 253,998$ 35,000$  50,000$  60,000$  229,000$    783,900$ 

Purpose:
1 Transfer funds from General fund to Street Operations for pavement management.
2 Payement to the General fund on interfund loan.
3 Closing the Asset Depreciation fund, returning money to the original funding sources.
4 Water, Sanitary, and Storm portions of the Adams and Pine street capital projects.
5 Payment to Telecom for the Broadband services used by the Water fund.

Transfer to:

 

 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 198



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 
 

99 
 

City of Sherwood Budget Process  
 
The strategic planning process begins anew each October as the City Manager and Management Team 
meet to identify assumptions for the long term and update department objectives for the next five 
years.   
 
The objective throughout the budgeting process is to strive to achieve the City’s mission, values, and 
goals.   
 
The mission statement is:  “

"   
 
Work on the annual budget begins in December, when forecasts for revenues and expenditures for the 
General Fund and Enterprise Funds are updated. The Capital Improvement Plan is updated for the next 
five years. 
 
In January the City Council has planning meetings to decide Council goals, priorities, and policies. 
 
After the Council planning meetings, any necessary modifications are made to the departmental 
objectives articulated earlier.   
 
The Oregon State Department of Revenue has broken down the budget process into nine steps.  They 
are as follows: 
 

1. Appoint Budget Officer - Every local government is required to have a Budget Officer, either 
appointed by the governing body or designated in its charter. 

 
2. Prepare a Proposed Budget – The Budget Officer is responsible for the preparing of the 

proposed budget presentation to the Budget Committee. 
 

3. Budget Officer publishes notices – Upon completion of the budget a “Notice of Budget 
Committee Meeting” is advertised either in the local newspaper, by mailing or hand delivery.  
ORS requires that if the notice is published in a newspaper it must be published at least twice, 
five to 30 days before the scheduled budget committee meeting, if the notice is mailed or 
hand delivered, it must be done not later than 10 days prior to the meeting date. 

 
4. Budget Committee Meets – The Budget Officer presents the budget message and the 

proposed budget document to the Budget Committee for further review. 
 

5. Committee Approves the Budget – When the Budget Committee is satisfied that the proposed 
budget will meet the needs of the citizens of Sherwood they will forward this to the City 
Council for adoption. 

 
6. Notice of Hearing and Financial Summary – After the budget is approved, a budget hearing 

must be held.  The Budget Officer must publish a summary of the budget approved by the 
Budget Committee and notice of budget hearing five to 30 days before the scheduled hearing. 

 
7. Budget Hearing held – The budget hearing must be held by the governing body on the date 

specified on the public notice and must allow for public testimony. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 199



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 
 

100 
 

8. Adopted Budget, Make Appropriations, Levy Taxes – The governing body may make changes 
in the approved budget before or after it is adopted, but no later than the beginning of the 
fiscal year to which the budget relates.  However, there are limitations to these changes. 

 
a. Taxes may not be increased beyond the amount approved by the budget committee. 
b. Estimated expenditures in a fund may not be increased by more than $5,000 or 10 

percent, whichever is greater. 
 

9. Budget filed and Levy Certified to Assessor – The final step in the budget cycle is to certify 
any necessary property tax levy. 

 
Budget Calendar 
 
Event Lead 

Person/Group 
Date 

Draft budget ready for City Manager review Budget Officer March 15 

Proposed budget to the Budget Committee Budget Officer April 18 

1st Budget Committee meeting with public comment Budget Committee April 27 

2nd Budget Committee meeting Budget Committee May 4 

3rd Budget Committee meeting and budget approval Budget Committee May 11 

Approved budget delivered to the City Council Budget Officer June 1 

Public hearing and adoption of the approved budget City Council June 7 

Adopted budget available Budget Officer July 1 

Review current year actuals and projections with the 
Budget Committee. 

Budget Officer and 
Finance Director 

December 

 
 
Budget Changes after Adoption 
 
By Oregon law, all City funds must be appropriated.  Appropriations, the legal authority to spend, are 
by division in the General, Water, Sanitary, Storm, and Street Funds and by type (e.g. materials and 
services) for all other funds.   
 
Appropriations may be changed during the fiscal year, within the limitations imposed by budget law.  
City staff monitors actual events and recommends changes as needed.  The City Council makes 
changes by resolution.  Changes are categorized as resolution transfers or supplemental budgets.   
 
A resolution transfer decreases an existing appropriation and increases another by the same amount.  
A typical example is to reduce contingency and increase materials and services.  The second type of 
change, a supplemental budget, typically creates a new appropriation, funded by increased revenues.  
Supplemental budgets are used for occurrences or conditions which were not known at the time the 
budget was prepared which require a change in financial planning.  Supplemental budgets require a 
public hearing; resolution transfers do not.  Directors and managers may amend their budgets for 
individual accounts without Council approval so long as appropriations at the legal level of control are 
not changed.   
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 200



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 

101 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Consistent with Oregon budget law, the City budgets current financial resources on a modified accrual 
basis in all funds.  The budget shows sources and uses of resources; that is, increases and decreases in 
the amount available to spend.  Ending fund balance represents spendable resources available for the 
subsequent budget year.  This differs from the accounting used by businesses.  Businesses measure 
net income, on an accrual basis.  

As a practical matter, the essential differences between governmental and business accounting are the 
treatment of long-term debt and capital assets:  

i When the City borrows money, it records the debt proceeds as a source of resources.  Principal 
payments are recorded as a use.  In a business, the debt would not appear in the budget; it 
would be recorded as a liability, and principal payments would reduce the liability.   

i When the City buys a vehicle, building, or other capital asset, the cost is a use of resources.  
Depreciation is not recorded.  In a business, the purchase would not appear in the budget; it 
would be recorded as an asset.  Depreciation expense would be budgeted and recorded over 
the useful life of the asset. 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for governments require that the enterprise funds be 
accounted for in the same way as businesses.  Consequently, actual results for the enterprise funds are 
shown on both the budgetary (current financial resources and modified accrual) and GAAP basis 
(economic resources and accrual) in the City’s annual financial report.  

2010-11 Budget and 2010-11 Projected  

As required by Oregon budget law, the 2010-11 budget columns shows the adopted budget after 
changes made by the City Council during the year.  The 2010-11 projected columns show the latest 
forecast of activity through June 30, 2011.   

Fund Balance and Contingency 

Fund balance represents available spendable resources, at the beginning or end of the fiscal year.  
Oregon budget law provides that the difference between sources and uses for the year be budgeted as 
un-appropriated ending fund balance or contingency.  The City budgets all excesses as contingency.  If 
it is not appropriated during the year, contingency will be the amount of ending fund balance at June 
30.   

 
The front steel arch and post unit for the Stella Olsen 

stage cover weighs 15 tons and was installed by a 
crane in one piece, by lifting it over the trees and the 

stream from the adjacent parking lot. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 201



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

102 
 

Financial Policies 
 
Purpose 
In order to carry out the mission of the City of Sherwood and support the City's values, this set of 
financial policies has been created by the City of Sherwood. 
 
The purpose of these financial policies is to provide a cohesive long term approach to financial 
management of the City of Sherwood. These policies establish a means for guiding today's financial 
decisions in order to achieve the mission of the City of Sherwood in a manner that reflects the City's 
values. 
 
Goal 
The goal of these policies is to provide the financial stability needed to navigate through economic 
changes, adjust to changes in the service requirements of the community and respond to other 
changes as they affect the City's residents. 
 
Responsibilities 
 

1. Stewardship: The City of Sherwood is a steward of public funds. These funds are entrusted to 
the City through the payment of taxes, fees, and fund transfers from other governments. The 
City of Sherwood is responsible for using all funds efficiently and effectively and for the 
purposes for which they were intended.  
 

2. Asset Protection: The assets of the City of Sherwood exist in a variety of forms. All these 
assets must be protected through an effective accounting and internal control System. The 
System must track assets and document the costs of acquisition, maintenance, and 
replacement. 

 
3. Legal Conformance: The City of Sherwood is subject to federal, state, and local statutes and 

rules regarding purchasing, entering into debt, budgeting, accounting, and auditing: regulations 
that govern virtually all financial transactions. The City also voluntarily enters into contracts 
which include significant financial and operational covenants. The City of Sherwood is 
responsible for conforming to laws, rules, and covenants to which it is subject. 
 

4. Standards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) set polices and guidelines for public sector accounting and 
financial reporting. The City of Sherwood is responsible for adhering to the requirements of 
these organizations and for seeking guidance from policies, standards and best practices set 
forth by these organizations. 
 

5. Authority: The Sherwood City Council is the sole authority for deleting, modifying, or adding to 
these policies. Every two years the Council shall engage the Budget Committee to review and 
update these policies' 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 202



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

103 
 

Financial Policies 
 
Policy I. Funds 
 

1. The City of Sherwood will maintain an orderly and logical fund structure that provides 
stakeholders with ready access to financial information 

2. The City of Sherwood will conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the 
Government Finance Officers Association’s best practices for establishing and maintaining funds. 

3. The City of Sherwood will establish and maintain those funds required by law and sound 
financial administration. Acknowledging that unnecessary funds result in inflexibility, complexity, 
and inefficient financial administration, only the minimum number of funds consistent with legal 
and operating requirements will be established.  

4. The criteria for establishing a new fund are variable, but include triggers such as; 

a. Inauguration of a new dedicated revenue stream and a concurrent service. 
b. The need for increased clarity of financial information. 
c. The establishment of a new enterprise. 
d. Covenants embodied in financing agreements. 
e. Changes in state law or financial management/accounting standards 

 
5. Only the Sherwood City Council has the authority to create or delete funds. The Council shall 

create or delete funds by resolution.  

 
Policy II Budgeting 
 

1. The City of Sherwood budget process shall consist of activities that encompass the 
development, implementation, and evaluation of a plan for the provision of services and capital 
assets. 

2. The purpose of the budget process is to help decision makers make informed choices about the 
provision of services and capital assets and to promote stakeholder participation in the process.  

3. The City of Sherwood budget process shall: 

a. Incorporate a long term perspective (minimum three fiscal years) 
b. Establish linkages to broad organizational goals 
c. Focus budget decisions on results and outcomes 
d. Involve and promote effective communication with stakeholders 

 
4. All budgetary procedures will conform to existing state and local regulations. Oregon budget law 

requires each local government to prepare a balanced budget and Oregon Administrative Rules 
state:  

a. The budget must be constructed in such a manner that the total resources in a fund 
equal the total of expenditures and requirements for that fund, and  

b. The total of all resources of the municipality must equal the total of all expenditures and 
all requirements for the municipality.  

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 203



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

104 
 

Financial Policies 
 
5. A cost allocation plan will be developed and incorporated into the City of Sherwood budget. The 

cost allocation plan will be the basis for distribution of general government and internal service 
costs to other funds, divisions, and capital projects.  

6. The Sherwood City Council shall adopt the budget at the fund, departmental or program level 
(as appropriate to each fund) as a total dollar amount for all appropriations except contingency, 
unappropriated ending fund balance and reserves, which shall be stated separately.  

7. Interfund Transfers shall be kept to a minimum. Interfund loans shall be documented in a 
resolution that cites the terms of the loan. 

8. As part of the annual budget process the City of Sherwood will maintain a three year revenue 
and expenditure forecast. This forecast will be created using an objective, analytical process 
incorporating applicable projections from the State of Oregon’s latest Economic Forecast and 
conservative assumptions where State developed data is not available. Revenues will be 
estimated realistically and prudently using best practices as defined by the Government Finance 
Officers Association. Revenues shall be forecasted conservatively. 

9. Oregon budget law provides a means to adjust the budget for emergency expenditures or 
unforeseen circumstances. All resolutions adjusting the budget will be prepared by the Finance 
department for City Council approval to ensure compliance with budget laws.  

10. Prior to submittal to City Council, the Budget Officer will convene the Budget Committee to 
review supplemental budget resolutions. If time does not allow for this action, Budget 
Committee members shall be informed of the City Council’s action on the resolution promptly.  

11. A mid-year review process will be conducted by the City Manager and Finance Director in order 
to make any necessary adjustments to the adopted budget.  

12. In the City’s effort to strive for excellence, the City of Sherwood will make every effort to obtain 
the Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation from the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA).  

13. Reports comparing actual to budgeted expenditures will be prepared quarterly by the Finance 
Department and distributed to the City Council, City Manager and Department Directors.   

 
Policy III Revenue  

 
1. City of Sherwood revenues are either unrestricted or dedicated. Unrestricted revenues can be 

used for any purpose. Dedicated revenues are restricted in the ways they can be used by 
federal or state regulations, contractual obligations, or by City Council action. The City of 
Sherwood will adhere to the restrictions applied to dedicated revenues. 

2. The City of Sherwood will maintain a diversified revenue stream that is managed strategically to 
mitigate the impact of short term fluctuations in any revenue source. 

3. The City of Sherwood will identify sustainable revenue levels and, to the extent possible, 
current operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues.  

4. One-time revenues will be used for one-time expenditures or as contributions to reserves and 
will not be used to pay for established services.  

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 204



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

105 
 

Financial Policies 
 
5. The City of Sherwood will not respond to long-term revenue shortfalls with deficit financing and 

borrowing to support established services. Expenses will be reduced and/or revenues will be 
increased to conform to the long-term revenue forecasts  

6. During the budget process, the Sherwood City Council will identify those programs which are to 
be supported in whole by cost recovery and ensure that revenue collections reflect the cost of 
providing associated services by adjusting fees accordingly. 

7. The City of Sherwood will charge fees for services where such an approach is permissible, and 
where a limited and specific group of beneficiaries who can pay such charges is identifiable. 

8. New or expanded unrestricted revenue streams should first be applied to support existing 
programs. When existing programs are adequately funded, such revenue may be used as 
contributions to reserves or to fund new or expanded programs. 

 
Policy IV Expenditures 
 
Controls 
 

1. By resolutions, the City Council will establish a purchasing policy that conforms to state 
statutory requirements for purchasing and contracting and invests the City Manager with 
purchasing and contracting authority. 

2. By Budget and Supplemental Budget Resolutions, the City Council shall establish and limit 
expenditure appropriations by statutory categories. The City Manager shall be responsible for 
limiting expenditures to those appropriation levels.  

Specific Expenditures 
 

1. Personal Services. Pursuant to the City Charter, the City Manager or designee is responsible 
for the management of employee staffing and compensation. The City Manager or designee 
shall negotiate salaries and benefits for represented employee groups in conformance with the 
Oregon Public Employees Collective Bargaining Act and the Employee Relations Board decisions 
and arbitration decisions that emanate from the Act.  

2. Capital Improvement Impacts. Whenever Capital Improvement expenditures will result in 
increases to future operating expenses or asset replacement contributions, estimates of those 
impacts shall be incorporated into the long term financial plan. 

3. Capital Outlay. By resolution the City Council shall define the characteristics of a capital asset 
by specifying the minimum purchase price and minimum term of service. The City will provide 
for adequate maintenance of Capital Assets.  The City will make annual contributions to the 
Asset Depreciation Fund to ensure that monies will be available as needed to replace Capital 
Assets. 

4. Capital Improvement Plan. The City Manager or designee will prepare a five-year Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) annually and submit it to the City Council for approval via resolution.  

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 205



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

106 
 

Financial Policies 
 
Policy V. Revenue Constraints and Fund Balance  
 

Nature of Constraints 

The City of Sherwood will maintain the following categories of revenue constraints in conformance with 
GASB 54. Fund Balances shall be accounted for on the basis of these categories.  

1. Non-spendable.  Assets that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained 
intact.  

2. Restricted. Cash that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by third parties or by 
statutes. Only the constraining party can lift constraints on Restricted funds. 

3. Committed.  Cash that can be used only as directed by formal action of City Council. Council 
action may be in the form of a motion or resolution. Only the City Council can lift constraints on 
committed funds. Such a change must be made using the same action that established the 
constraint. 

4. Assigned. Cash the City intends to use for specific purposes. The City Council delegates the 
authority to create this constraint to the City Manager. In addition, for all funds except the 
general fund, all cash not in one of the Non-spendable, Restricted, or Committed categories, or 
specifically assigned under this category will, by default be assigned to this category. 

5. Unassigned. General Fund cash that is not otherwise categorized fund balance is the residual 
classification for the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in the other 
classifications. 

Other Considerations 
 

1. Stabilization. The purpose of stabilization arrangements is to provide a revenue source to 
maintain service delivery during periods of diminished revenues. The City may choose to create 
stabilization arrangements either by creating new funds or dedicating revenues within existing 
funds. Stabilization arranges will be created by the City Council and the authorizing legislation 
shall include the policies on funding and accessing the arrangement. 

 
2. Order of Use. If multiple categories of fund balance are applicable to an expenditure, the City 

shall access funds in the following order: Restricted, Committed, Assigned, Unassigned.  
 

3. Purpose of Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue funds are general government funds 
created to track the use of dedicated revenues. The City legislation creating a special revenue 
fund will specify which specific revenues and other resources are authorized to be reported in 
the fund.  

 
4. Fund Balance.  Unrestricted fund balance is the sum of Committed, Assigned and 

Unassigned fund balance in any individual fund. In the General Fund, the City will 
maintain an Unrestricted fund balance of at least ten percent of fund revenue and 
will strive to increase that amount by 1.5% annually to a goal of 20%.   

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 206



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

107 

Debt  

The City will borrow only to finance capital assets.  The City will not borrow for operating purposes. 

No bonds will mature more than 20 years from the date of issuance.  No debt will be issued with a life 
exceeding the estimated useful life of the capital assets being financed.  The City will limit bonded debt 
to 3% or less of total assessed value, as required by ORS 287.004.  Repayment sources are identified 
for every debt prior to issuance.   

Cash and Investments 

Cash balances are insured and collateralized.  Cash in excess of immediate needs is invested in the 
Oregon State Treasury’s Local Government Investment Pool.     

Capital Assets 

The capital asset inventory is updated annually.  Capital asset purchases – items other than those 
constructed as part of the CIP -- are incorporated in the long-term financial forecasts. 

Accounting Structure 

The account structure, cost accounting processes, and internal controls are documented.   

 
 

In 2010, Sherwood Police Officers responded to 315 traffic 
crashes in the Sherwood Community. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 207



APPENDICES      GLOSSARY 
 

108 
 

Glossary 
 
Activity - A task, general or specific, undertaken to accomplish objectives, operate programs, or 
complete projects. 
 
Adopted Budget - The final budget appropriations approved by the City Council, which becomes the 
budget of the City. 
 
AFSCME - American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.  One of the union 
organizations representing the bargaining employees of the City. 
 
Accrual basis - A method of timing in the recognition of transactions and events.  Please see Modified 
accrual basis for the alternative method.  Accrual basis records revenue when earned and expenses as 
soon as a liability is incurred. 
 
Approved Budget – The budget recommended by the Budget Committee for adoption by the City 
Council. 
 
Appropriation - Authorization to spend a specific amount of money.  The City Council gives 
appropriation authority by adopting the budget. 
 
Assessed value - The value set on real and personal property as a basis for imposing taxes.  
Assessed values are determined by Washington County.   
 
Budget – A plan of financial operation embodying an estimate of proposed expenditures for a given 
purpose and/or period.  The budget is the financial plan of the City’s allocations of the resources to 
provide services, and to accomplish the City’s objectives. 
 
Budget Calendar – The schedule of key dates, or events which a government follows in the 
preparation and adoption of the budget. 
 
Budget Committee - A committee required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305) which must 
recommend a budget and approve the maximum tax levy. 
 
Budget Message – A written explanation of the budget and the City’s financial priorities presented to 
the Budget Committee by the City Manager which is required by Oregon Local Budget Law, ORS 294. 
 
Budget Officer - The Finance Director or other person appointed by the City Council to prepare the 
proposed budget.  This designation is required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305) 
  
CAFR - The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the audited report of the City’s finances for the 
fiscal year. 
 
Capital Lease - Lease of a capital asset.  The lease may or may not result in the City’s ownership of 
the item at the end of the lease term. 
 
Capital Assets - Items which have a useful life of two or more years and a cost of $5,000 or more. 
These include land, infrastructure, buildings, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, and certain 
furniture and equipment. 
 
Capital Budget - The budget for capital projects, as opposed to operations.   

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 208



APPENDICES      GLOSSARY 
 

109 
 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - A schedule of planned capital projects and their costs, for three 
or more years. 
 
Capital Outlay - Expenditures for capital assets.  Includes all purchased capital assets.  Expenditures 
for constructed capital projects appear in capital outlay, materials and services, and reimbursements, 
depending on the nature of the expenditure. 
 
Capital Projects – Projects which purchase or construct capital assets.  Typically a capital project 
encompasses a purchase of land and/or the construction of a building or facility.    
 
COLA - Cost of living.  A COLA increases all salaries at all classes and steps by the same percentage. 
 
Contingency - An amount set aside for unforeseen spending that may become necessary.  If the 
contingency is not used, it will be the amount of fund balance at the end of the fiscal year.      
 
CWS - Clean Water Services, the regional sewer treatment entity.  CWS is a County Service District, 
defined by ORS 451. The City of Sherwood owns and operates sewer and storm water pumping and 
transmission facilities; CWS receives and treats the wastewater.   
 
Debt Service - Principal and interest payments on long-term debt.  

Division - An organizational unit with a distinct budget. 
 
Depreciation - Expensing the cost of a capital asset over its useful life. 
 
Department – Units within a division consisting of one or more. 
 
Enterprise Funds - A fund that accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises.  They are usually self-supporting.  The City’s enterprise funds 
are the Water, Sanitary, Storm, Street, and Telecommunications funds.   
 
Fiscal Year - The twelve month period to which the operating budget applies.  The City’s fiscal year is 
July 1 through June 30. 
 
Franchise Fee – Fees charged to utilities for the use of public right-of-way. 
 
FTE - Full-Time Equivalent position.  A part-time position converted to the decimal equivalent of a full-
time position based on 2,080 hours per year. 
 
Fund - A fiscal and accounting entity, segregating resources for the purpose of carrying on specific 
activities in accordance with legal restrictions. 
 
Fund Balance - The amount of available, spendable, financial resources in any given fund at a 
specified date. 
 
GASB - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the body that defines generally accepted 
accounting principles for governments. 
 
General Fund – The City’s primary operating fund.  There are no restrictions as to the purpose in 
which the revenues in this fund can be used. 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 209



APPENDICES      GLOSSARY 
 

110 
 

General Obligation Bond (G. O. Bond) – A government pledge of full faith and credit to the 
repayment of the bonds issued by the government.  They are usually issued to pay for general capital 
improvements. 
 
GFOA – Government Finance Officers Association. 
 
GIS - Geographic information system, a computerized mapping program. 

Goal – A statement of direction, purpose or intent based on the needs of the community, generally to 
be completed in a specified amount of time. 
 
Grant – A donation or contribution by one government unit or organization to another.  This is usually 
made to aid a specified purpose. 
 
Infrastructure - Infrastructure are assets that are immovable and of value only to the City.  It 
includes roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and water 
and sewer systems.   
 
Interfund Transfer - A loan made by one fund to another and authorized by the City Council. 
 
Levy - The amount of property tax certified by the City Council.   
 
Local Improvement District (LID) - A specific geographic area in which debt service for bonds 
issued to construct public infrastructure are repaid by assessments on the specific properties benefited 
by the improvements.   
 
Materials and Services – Expendable items purchased for delivery of services.  This includes 
supplies, repairs, maintenance and replacement parts that are not of capital nature. 
 
Mission – Defines the primary purpose of the City.  
 
Modified Accrual - A method of timing in the recognition of transactions and events.  Please see 
Accrual basis for the alternative method.  Modified accrual basis records revenue when earned, if they 
are collectible within the period or soon enough afterwards to be used to pay liabilities of the period.  
Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred except that debt service payments and other 
specific accrued liabilities are recognized only when payment is due. 

Objective - What we want to accomplish.  City-wide objectives are longer term than one year, cross 
departments, and/or are comprehensive in scope.   
 
Operating Budget - Sources and uses necessary for day-to-day operations.    
 
Ordinance – A formal legislative enactment by the governing body of a municipality.  If it is not in 
conflict with any higher form of law, such as a state statute or constitutional provision, it as the full 
force and effect of law within the boundaries of the municipality to which it applies.  
 
ORS - Oregon Revised Statutes, laws of the State of Oregon. 
PEG - Public, Educational and Governmental Access Channel designations for cable television.  Certain 
franchise fee revenue from cable providers is restricted to the costs of providing such access. 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 210



APPENDICES      GLOSSARY 
 

111 
 

Performance Measure – Data collected to determine how effective or efficient a program is in 
achieving its objectives. 
 
PERS - Public Employees Retirement System.  A State of Oregon defined benefit pension plan to which 
both employees and employer contribute. 
 
Personal Services - Expenditures for payroll, payroll taxes, and employee benefits. 

Phase - A segment of a project, typically defined by set of related activities or a given period of time. 
 
Program - A definable function.  Programs may be ongoing or time limited, within or across 
departments, and relate to single or multiple objectives.  Also refers to a cluster of related 
departments, such as the Community Development program. 

Project - Projects are distinct, with a definable result, process, and beginning and end.  Projects are 
capital or operating.   
 
Property Tax Levy – Based upon the assessed value of property and is used as the source of monies 
to pay general obligation debts and to support the general fund. 
 
PSU - Portland State University.  The University prepares populations estimates each July 1 for all 
Oregon Municipalities.  
 
Reimbursements - Repayments from the funds and departments responsible for particular 
expenditures to the funds and departments that initially paid for them.  Reimbursements increase 
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and department, and decrease expenditures in the reimbursed 
fund and department. 
 
Reserve Fund - A fund, defined in Oregon budget law, which accumulates monies from year to year 
for a specific purpose.  The City’s Asset Depreciation Fund is a reserve fund. 
 
Resolution – An action by the governing body which requires less formality and has a lower legal 
status than an ordinance. 
 
Restricted Revenue - Revenue that may be expended only in accordance with limitations imposed by 
State statute, City Ordinances or Resolutions, or other legal restriction. 
 
Revenue – The gross receipts and receivables that the City receives such as: tax payments, licenses, 
fines and forfeitures, grants and interest income.   
 
Revenue Bonds – Bonds issued pledging future revenues.  Usually water, sewer, or storm drainage 
charges, to make debt service payments. 
 
System Development Charges (SDC) - Fees charged upon issuance of building permits to offset 
the cost of infrastructure improvements that are or will be required to provide capacity to serve the 
development.  SDC’s are charged for parks, water, sanitary, storm, and streets.   
Sources - Financial resources that are or will be available for expenditure during the fiscal year. 
 
SPOA - Sherwood Police Officers’ Association union. 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 211



APPENDICES      GLOSSARY 
 

112 
 

Supplemental Budget – Appropriations established to meet the needs not anticipated at the time the 
budget was adopted.   
 
TIF - Traffic Impact Fee, a regional SDC.  TIF’s are governed by Washington County, but collected and 
used on development within Sherwood by the City. 
 
Transfers - Amounts moved from one fund to finance activities in another fund, with no requirement 
of repayment.   
 
TRNWR - Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge.  The Refuge lies in and outside the northwest edge 
of Sherwood.   
 
TSP - Transportation System Plan.  A long-range plan for transportation needs and facilities. 
 
TVWD - Tualatin Valley Water District, a regional water supplier.  TVWD contracted to operate 
Sherwood’s water utility in October 2000.  The contract is for 5 years, with renewal options. 
 
UGB - Urban Growth Boundary.  A statewide land use designation that limits the geographic spread of 
certain types of development. 
 
Unrestricted Revenue - Revenue that may be used for any legitimate City purpose.  Please refer to 
“restricted revenue”. 
 
URA - The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency.  The Agency is a municipal corporation distinct 
from the City.  The Sherwood City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA, and its' budget 
may be obtained from the City of Sherwood. 
 
URD - The urban renewal district, the geographic area encompassed by the City of Sherwood Urban 
Renewal Agency.   
 
User Charges - A fee charged for services to a person who directly benefits from the service.   
 
Uses - The ways in which financial resources will be used during the fiscal year.  
 
WCCLS - Washington County Cooperative Library Services.  This regional entity receives property 
taxes from each city in the consortium.  The money is used to fund county-wide services such as the 
circulation software and interlibrary loan.  A portion is returned to each city based on a formula that 
includes circulation, open hours, and other service-related measures.  
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 212



City of Sherwood, Oregon Urban Renewal District 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

 
Approved Budget 

 
2011-2012 

i 

 

 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
  Board Chair       Keith Mays 
  Board President      Dave Grant 
  Board Member       Bill Butterfield 
  Board Member       Robyn Folsom 
  Board Member       Linda Henderson  
  Board Member       Matt Langer 
  Board Member       Dave Luman 

Citizens 
 

  Chair        Kimberly Rocha-Pearson  
  Vice Chair       Ivonne Pflaum  
  Citizen Member      Irene Baker 
  Citizen Member      Timothy Carkin 
  Citizen Member      Perry Francis 
  Citizen Member      Steve Munsterman 
  Citizen Member      Lynette Waller 
 
 
  District Administrator        Jim Patterson 
  Finance Director/Budget Officer    Craig Gibons   
   

 
 

www.ci.sherwood.or.us 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 213

http://www.ci.sherwood.or.us


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ii 

 
 
 Budget Message. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 
 Operations Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   3 
 Capital Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    4 
 Long Term Debt. . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . . .  6  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 214



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT     BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

1 
 

Budget Message for FY 2011-12 
 
The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA) is a legally separate entity from the City.  The 
Sherwood City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA and is financially accountable for its 
operations.  In accordance with Oregon budget law, the URA prepares its own budget, and the Board 
of Directors approves its annual appropriations. 
 
Urban renewal agencies are designed to borrow money and make expenditure for economic and 
community development projects included in the Urban Renewal Plan.  When the Sherwood Urban 
Renewal Plan was adopted in 2000, property values were frozen.  The taxes collected on that frozen 
value continues to flow to the taxing authorities (City, County, Schools, TVF&R, etc.). The taxes 
collected on increased property values that occur with NEW development generate incremental tax 
revenue.  This tax increment is then used to repay the URA debt and implement the URA plan.   
 
Urban Renewal Tax Collections are not an additional tax, and do not take revenue away from other 
taxing districts.  Urban Renewal Tax Collections are used to initiate development that would not be 
financially feasible without infrastructure improvements made possible by urban renewal financing. 

 
2010-11 Accomplishments 
 

i Façade Grants totaling $37,863 for Let’s Make Music and Bella Via. 
i Oregon Infrastructure Financing Authority Cannery Loan was approved. 
i Cannery PUD was approved and construction has commenced. 
i The non-profit, Businesses of Old Town Sherwood (BOOTS) was formed and a Resource 

Assistance for Rural Environments (RARE) intern was in position for 10 months, successfully 
promoting Old Town through events and marketing. 

i Completed two Small Business Workshop series in the fall and spring. 
 
 
2011-2012 Goals, Strategies, Values and Activities 
 
Goal:  

 
  
Strategies: 
 

Support existing businesses and recruit additional businesses that provide local family wage 
jobs.  
 
 Activities 

i Coordinate Cannery Redevelopment 
i Promote Sherwood through Business Oregon, Regional Partners, and OEDA 

involvement 
i Promote Oregon Prospector listing of commercial and industrial sites 
i Assist with BOOTS efforts in the implementation of the Old Town Marketing Plan  
i Strategize with PCC and the Chamber to provide additional business training 

 
 Performance Measures 

i Complete Cannery Project streets, infrastructure, and Plaza construction 
i Track number of recruitment proposals 
i Track business retention visits 
i Track number of properties listed 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 215



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT     BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

2 
 

i Increase in number of businesses in Old Town 
i Hold additional Small Business Workshops in the Fall and Spring 

 
Develop the infrastructure and services necessary to support economic development in 
Sherwood. 

 
 Activities 

i Implement an infrastructure Financing Plan for the Urban Renewal District 
i Develop URA Plan expansion options to include new employment lands 

 
 Performance Measures 

i Financing plan complete 
i URA plan options complete and ready for consideration 
i Increase in assessed value of properties in the district 

 
 

 
 
 

$38
$47

$59
$83

$122
$135

$148

$163 $167

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

FY 02-03 FY 03-04 FY 04-05 FY 05-06 FY 06-07 FY 07-08 FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY10-11

Urban Renewal District Incremental Assessed Value

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 216



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT                OPERATONS BUDGET 

3 

Urban Renewal Operations Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 1,181,140$     2,792,650$   2,877,087$     1,810,913$     2,865,240$   2,865,240$   2,865,240$   
Revenue

Taxes 2,667,057       3,019,360     2,794,616       2,887,500       3,292,012     3,292,012     -                 
Charges for services -                   42,081         -                   -                   -                 -                 -                 
Fines, interest and other 365,000         45,825         28,000           36,000           36,000         36,000         -                 
Total revenue 3,032,057       3,107,267     2,822,616       2,923,500       3,328,012     3,328,012     -                 

Other sources
Issuance of long-term debt 6,065,000       1,000,000     9,000,000       5,500,000       -                 -                 -                 
Total other sources 6,065,000       1,000,000     9,000,000       5,500,000       -                 -                 -                 

Total sources 10,278,197 6,899,916 14,699,703 10,234,413 6,193,252 6,193,252 2,865,240 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 96,036           116,886       103,234         124,155         68,496         68,496         -                 
Payroll taxes 8,325             9,866           9,666             10,877           6,002           6,002           -                 
Benefits 31,261           35,828         31,823           38,622           26,484         26,484         -                 
Total personal services 135,621         162,580       144,722         173,654         100,982       100,982       -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 161,203         403,938       305,000         115,000         52,000         52,000         -                 
Facility and equipment 6,114             6,807           -                   6,383             6,500           6,500           -                 
Other purchased services 16,327           18,708         18,970           12,552           16,596         16,596         -                 
Supplies 5,152             2,576           3,600             800               -                 -                 -                 
Community activities 145,000         27,464         121,200         51,200           1,200           1,200           -                 
Other materials & services 104,148         83,347         79,728           84,620           78,273         78,273         -                 
Total materials & services 437,944         542,840       528,498         270,555         154,569       154,569       -                 

Capital outlay
Land 3,329,000       577,299       350,000         -                   -                 -                 -                 
Infrastructure 1,480,180       2,172,072     9,000,000       5,161,014       42,000         42,000         -                 
Buildings 150,000         -                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                 
Total capital outlay 4,959,180       2,749,370     9,350,000       5,161,014       42,000         42,000         -                 

Debt service
Principal 1,135,166       911,016       940,917         940,917         2,093,342     2,093,342     -                 
Interest 817,636         723,198       823,033         823,033         863,915       863,915       -                 
Total debt service 1,952,802       1,634,213     1,763,950       1,763,950       2,957,257     2,957,257     -                 

Total expenditures 7,485,547       5,089,003     11,787,170     7,369,174       3,254,808     3,254,808     -                 
Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 2,792,650       1,810,913     -                   -                   -                 -                 -                 
Contingency 2,912,533       2,865,240       2,938,443     2,938,443     2,865,240     

Total uses 10,278,197 6,899,916 14,699,703 10,234,413 6,193,252 6,193,252 2,865,240 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In their November/2010 issue,  magazine ranked the 
Portland/Vancouver metro area in the top 10 metropolitan area for 

business and careers. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 217



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT      CAPITAL BUDGET 

4 

Urban Renewal Capital Projects 

Sherwood Forest Senior Community:  The Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency purchased property 
adjacent to the Senior Center in 2009 that will facilitate the extension of Cedar Creek trail and allow for 
the construction of senior affordable housing.  The URA, in partnership with a non-profit will donate the 
necessary property and pre-development to access a HUD-202 grant for the construction of a 30 unit 
affordable housing complex for senior citizens.  The budgeted expenses are for pre-development costs, 
and will help in providing the necessary match for the HUD-202 grant proposal.

The project, once completed, will be maintained by the non-profit. 

 

Plaza Development:  One element of the Cannery Square project is construction of the 13,000 
square foot plaza approved by the Planning Commission and City Council.  The budgeted expenses are 
projected to cover the remainder of expenses for this project which should be completed by 
December/2011.  Funding has already been accessed through an $8.5 million loan from the State of 
Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority.   

Maintenance of the plaza will be performed by the Public Works department. 

 

Community Center Building Development:  Another element of the Cannery Square project is the 
redevelopment of the Product Manufacturing building which was once the Portland Cannery Company 
warehouse.  This is the only building remaining of a once major industry in Sherwood.  It will be redeveloped 
into retail and community center space already approved by the City Council.  Funding has already been 
accessed through an $8.5 million loan from the State of Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority.  The project 
is expected to be completed by late summer of 2012.   

Maintenance of the building and grounds will be performed by the Public Works department. 

 

 

The Tax Foundation ranked Oregon as the 9th best 
State in their Tax Climate Index. 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 218



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT      CAPITAL BUDGET 

5 

Urban Renewal Capital Budget 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance -$               -$               -$            -$           -$               -$               -$        
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                 -                 -              -             42,000         42,000         -          
Total revenue -                 -                 -              -             42,000         42,000         -          

Other sources
Issuance of long-term debt -                 -                 -              -             3,967,941     3,967,941     -          
Total other sources -                 -                 -              -             3,967,941     3,967,941     -          

Total sources -               -               -           -         4,009,941 4,009,941 -      
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages -                 -                 -              -             44,544         44,544         -          
Payroll taxes -                 -                -             -             3,973           3,973           -          
Benefits -                 -                 -              -             16,668         16,668         -          
Total personal services -                 -                 -              -             65,185         65,185         -          

Materials and services
Other purchased services -                 -                 -              -             456             456             -          
Other materials & services -                 -                 -              -             50,517         50,517         -          
Total materials & services -                 -                 -              -             50,973         50,973         -          

Capital outlay
Land -                 -                 -              -             350,000       350,000       -          
Infrastructure -                 -                 -              -             3,543,783     3,543,783     -          
Total capital outlay -                 -                 -              -             3,893,783     3,893,783     -          

Debt service
Total debt service -                 -                 -              -             -                 -                 -          

Total expenditures -                 -                 -              -             4,009,941     4,009,941     -          
Other uses

Ending Fund Balance -                 -                 -              -             -          
Contingency -              -             -                 -                 -          

Total uses -                    -                    -                -              4,009,941 4,009,941 -           

 

In FY 2010 statewide collection of tax increment for investment 
by Urban Renewal Districts was over $212 million. 

 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 219



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT      LONG TERM DEBT 
 

6 
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2003 Civic 
Building

2003 
OECDD

2004 Land 
Purchase

2005 Old 
School & 

Sports 
Field

2006 
Downtown 

Streets
Original Amount  $ 2,435,000  $ 5,845,708  $  350,000  $   830,000  $ 1,800,000 
Balance at 6/30/11       580,000     4,254,561      105,000       568,000     1,376,005 

Payment Source
Paying Fund
Year Ending June 30

2012 305,590     438,486      39,681      80,336       175,396     
2013 305,473     435,853      37,809      78,769       175,416     
2014 -               437,879      35,983      80,145       175,398     
2015 -               434,138      -              80,314       175,396     
2016 -               434,738      -              79,334       175,386     
2017 -               434,938      -              80,239       175,396     
2018 -               434,483      -              80,657       175,395     
2019 -               438,353      -              80,487       175,386     
2020 -               436,313      -              79,830       175,397     
2021 -               438,553      -              -               175,398     
2022 -               434,828      -              -               43,849      
2023 -               435,496      -              -               -              
2024 -               435,234      -              -               -              
2025 -               -               -              -               -              
2026 -               -               -              -               -              
2027 -               -               -              -               -              
2028 -               -               -              -               -              
2029 -               -               -              -               -              
2030 -               -               -              -               -              
2031 -               -               -              -               -              
2032 -               -               -              -               -              
2033 -               -               -              -               -              
2034 -               -               -              -               -              
2035 -               -               -              -               -              
2036 -               -               -              -               -              

611,063$    5,669,292$  113,473$   720,111$    1,797,813$  

Urban Renewal Agency
URA property taxes

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 220



URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT      LONG TERM DEBT 
 

7 
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2006 
Downtown 

Streets
2010 Streets 

& Cannery 2010 Cannery
Total Debt on 
behalf of URA

Original Amount  $    6,400,000  $     7,065,000  $     8,500,000 33,225,708 
Balance at 6/30/11        5,538,077        6,820,000         1,000,000 20,241,643 

Year Ending June 30
2012 483,820         554,820 -                    2,078,129 
2013 485,419         553,345 425,000 2,497,084 
2014 481,619         551,360 425,000 2,187,384 
2015 482,619         553,865 425,000 2,151,332 
2016 483,219         555,605 425,000 2,153,282 
2017 483,419         551,580 425,000 2,150,572 
2018 483,220         552,045 425,000 2,150,800 
2019 482,619         551,745 425,000 2,153,590 
2020 481,619         555,680 425,000 2,153,839 
2021 484,863         553,595 425,000 2,077,409 
2022 482,263         555,768 425,000 1,941,708 
2023 484,088         553,563 425,000 1,898,147 
2024 485,276         550,660 425,000 1,896,170 
2025 480,656         552,060 425,000 1,457,716 
2026 485,343         552,530 425,000 1,462,873 
2027 484,156         552,070 425,000 1,461,226 
2028 -                   555,680 425,000 980,680 
2029 -                   553,128 425,000 978,128 
2030 -                   554,645 425,000 979,645 
2031 -                   -                   425,000 425,000 
2032 -                   -                   425,000 425,000 
2033 -                   -                   -                    0 
2034 -                   -                   -                    0 
2035 -                   -                   -                    0 
2036 -                   -                   -                    -                       

7,734,218$     10,513,744$    8,500,000$      35,659,714$        

URA property taxes
Urban Renewal Agency

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 221



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Resolution 2011-053, Exhibit A 
June 7, 2011 222



Resolution 2011-054, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 3 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2011 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 

 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Pride Disposal Request for Changes in Service 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
Pride Disposal has submitted its annual report for the year and is seeking Council 
approval to alter service arrangements.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Council adoption of Resolution 2011-054, a resolution adding new services to the Pride 
Disposal Franchise Agreement and modifying the rate structure. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Pride Disposal is the exclusive disposal service provider in the City of Sherwood. The 
company operates under a franchise agreement with the City. That agreement requires 
the franchisee to provide the City with an annual report and to submit proposed service 
and rate changes to the Council for approval.  
 
Staff found the annual report to be complete and in order. The firm did not request a rate 
increase, but did propose the changes shown below. The firm’s management will be 
present on Tuesday night to explain the requests. 
 
1. Providing an alternative service for commercial customers.   

 
Currently commercial customers are offered weekly service. Pride has two rates: 
one for “wet” (heavy) garbage and one for “dry” (light) garbage.  The rates are 
coordinated with tipping costs at the dump, which are weight-based. Pride would 
like to offer an alternative to customers with large amounts of wet garbage 
(restaurants): if they segregate their garbage, Pride will offer them Every Other 
Week (EOW) service for their dry garbage. The proposal is for an additional rate 
structure for EOW service for firms that segregate their wet garbage.   
 
 
This will be a voluntary option for customers, but Pride anticipates that Metro will 
be mandating separation of organic waste soon. So this voluntary program is a 
precursor to that.  The cost of the service is as follows. 
 

223



Resolution 2011-054, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 2 of 3 
 

EVERY OTHER WEEK (EOW) SERVICE 
Dry (non-putrescible) waste only 
Container size   
Two yard $90.25 
   each additional $59.19 
Three yard $115.90 
   each additional $81.97 
Four yard $138.72 
   each additional $104.81 
Six yard $184.21 
   each additional $150.29 
Eight yard $229.73 
   each additional $196.30 

 
 

2. Removing the $4 recycling incentive. 
 
As an incentive for customers to recycle, the City and Pride agreed several years 
ago to implement a $4 recycling discount incentive. That rate was coupled with a 
$4 rate increase.  There was no net impact on recyclers’ bill. With a recycling rate 
of 85%, the company would like the Council to authorize elimination of the 
recycling incentive.  Accounting for the discount is done by hand and the 
Company considers it an unnecessary cost of doing business at this point. The 
revision of service costs is as follows. 

 
RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
  Existing Proposed  
Service Rate Rate 
On-call  32 gallon cart $16.18 $12.18 
20 gallon cart $24.55 $20.55 
32 gallon cart $26.59 $22.59 
60 gallon cart $34.04 $30.04 
90 gallon cart $41.55 $37.55 
MISC charges  (no rate changes requested) 
extra can $5.47 $5.47 
extra box or bag $2.75 $2.75 
go-back $13.18 $13.18 
extra yd bag $1.07 $1.07 
SNP $25.00 $25.00 
NSF $25.00 $25.00 
Recycle only $4.47 $4.47 
Yard Debris only $6.10 $6.10 
extra YD cart $6.10 $6.10 
Walk-in fee $4.00 $4.00 

 
 

3. Replacing the bins for class with wheeled carts.  
 
Pride would like to stop using bins for glass recycling and convert to a wheeled 
cart/automated dump system. The firm’s recycling fleet is nearing replacement, 
and they would like to upgrade to an automated system, eliminating the need for 

224



Resolution 2011-054, Staff Report 
June 7, 2011 
Page 3 of 3 
 

drivers to dismount, lift, and empty the bins. This could be an optional program, 
but making in mandatory would be the most efficient way to handle the transition. 
 
The Franchise Agreement does not regulate to this detail the way the Franchisee 
is to provide service, so Pride would like to implement this change unless the 
Council has an objection.  

 
 
FINANCIALS:   
 
There is no financial impact on the City related to this issue. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution including revised fee schedule 

225



DRAFT  

Resolution 2011-054 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

      
 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-054 
 
A RESOLUTION ADDING NEW SERVICES TO THE PRIDE DISPOSAL FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT AND MODIFYING THE RATE STRUCTURE 
 

WHEREAS, adjustment of solid waste collection rates is regulated by the City of 
Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080, Rates; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Franchisee that provides this service has requested authority to 
provide additional services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Franchise also seeks authority to eliminate the $4.00 Recycling 

Incentive while simultaneously reducing Residential Curbside rates by $4.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council has received the recommendation of the City Manager 
on the request as required by Code Section 8.20.080 E.2.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council has, after proper notice, conducted a public hearing on 
the proposed rate adjustment as required by Code Section 8.20.80 E.3 and finds the 
rates should be established as set forth hereinafter in this Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The solid waste collection rates are set for the categories of service 
specified in Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
 
 Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption with 
commercial and residential rate changes beginning August 1, 2011. 
 
 Duly passed by the City Council this 7th day of June 2011. 
 
 
    
        _____________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

226



1 X 2 X 3 X 4 X 5 X
Container size
One yard $106.04 $201.01 $293.21 - -
each additional Container size

One and 1/2 yard $146.61 $286.50 $416.94 $539.10 $660.25 Two yard $90.25
each additional $138.65 $264.00 $390.11 $503.04 $614.99 each additional $59.19

Two yard $194.01 $374.89 $544.86 $704.16 $861.27 Three yard $115.90
each additional $182.05 $345.10 $495.60 $638.31 $779.35 each additional $81.97

Three yard $264.62 $509.05 $736.88 $949.27 $1,171.98 Four yard $138.72
each additional $251.21 $486.62 $710.01 $931.35 $1,149.55 each additional $104.81

Four yard $334.99 $644.01 $950.75 $1,236.66 $1,511.05 Six yard $184.21
each additional $323.00 $632.07 $932.84 $1,224.58 $1,494.71 each additional $150.29

Five yard $401.12 $785.22 $1,160.01 $1,523.48 $1,862.23 Eight yard $229.73
each additional $393.38 $762.81 $1,126.38 $1,481.89 $1,824.96 each additional $196.30

Six yard $459.51 $899.13 $1,329.99 $1,745.63 $2,155.80
each additional $450.39 $881.26 $1,303.06 $1,701.40 $2,099.15

Eight yard $581.00 $1,135.70 $1,675.10 $2,202.92 $2,713.72
each additional $568.67 $1,111.80 $1,639.64 $2,155.37 $2,654.02

 Curbside
On-call  32 gallon cart $12.18

1 X 2 X 3 X 4 X 5 X 20 gallon cart $20.55
Container size 32 gallon cart $22.59
One yard $96.01 $179.51 $259.76 $340.04 $420.51 60 gallon cart $30.04
each additional $62.96 $121.46 $179.83 $238.20 $296.70 90 gallon cart $37.55

One and 1/2 yard $123.30 $227.54 $331.72 $435.90 $540.16
each additional $87.21 $169.50 $251.78 $334.04 $416.35 Extra can $5.47

Extra box or bag $2.75
Two yard $147.57 $275.64 $403.71 $531.77 $659.83 Go-back $13.18
each additional $111.50 $217.60 $323.76 $429.92 $536.02 Extra yd bag $1.07

SNP $25.00
Three yard $195.97 $371.83 $547.58 $723.35 $899.21 NSF $25.00
each additional $159.89 $313.78 $467.64 $621.51 $775.40 Recycle only $4.47

Yard Debris only $6.10
Four yard $244.39 $468.05 $691.51 $914.97 $1,138.62 Extra YD cart $6.10
each additional $208.83 $410.00 $611.56 $813.13 $1,014.81 Walk-in fee $4.00

Five yard $292.85 $564.10 $835.37 $1,106.63 $1,377.89
each additional $256.77 $506.07 $755.41 $1,004.77 $1,254.08

Six yard $341.02 $660.08 $979.04 $1,297.99 $1,617.05
each additional $304.94 $602.03 $899.07 $1,196.14 $1,493.24

Eight yard $438.73 $853.18 $1,267.65 $1,682.08 $2,096.54
each additional $402.66 $795.14 $1,187.69 $1,580.24 $1,972.72

Compacted
One yard $216.11 $404.06 $584.72 $765.41 $946.53
Two yard $332.17 $620.46 $908.71 $1,196.97 $1,485.22
Three yard $441.12 $836.96 $1,232.57 $1,628.23 $2,024.07
Four yard $550.11 $1,053.54 $1,556.54 $2,059.52 $2,562.95

* Also use existing light rates for organics rates if customer separates organics from mixed/wet garbage

Dry (non-putrescible) waste only

EXHIBIT A
Pride Disposal - Revised Rate Schedule Effective August 1, 2011

HEAVY (Wet) RATES
NUMBER OF WEEKLY PICKUPS

EVERY OTHER WEEK (EOW) SERVICE

RESIDENTIAL RATES

LIGHT (Dry) RATES* Service
NUMBER OF WEEKLY PICKUPS

Miscellaneous Charges

Resolutin 2011-054, Exhbit A 
June 7, 2011 
Page 1 of 1

227


	01  City Council Packet Cover 06.07
	02  City Council Agenda for 06.07
	03 05.17.11 City Council Draft Mtg. Minutes
	04  Resolution 2011-046 Adopting Continuing Disclosure Financial Policy-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	05  Resolution 2011-046 Adopting Continuing Disclosure Financial Policy-DRAFT 06.07
	06  Resolution 2011-046 Adopting Continuing Disclosure Financial Policy-EXH A 06.07
	07  Resolution 2011-047 Authorizing CM to sign IGA with WCCLS-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	08  Resolution 2011-047 Authorizing CM  to sign IGA with WCCLS-DRAFT 06.07
	09  Resolution 2011-047 Authorizing CM to sign IGA with WCCLS-EXHIBIT A 06.07.11
	10  Resolution 2011-047 Authorizing CM to sign IGA with WCCLS-EXHIBIT B 06.07.11
	11  Resolution 2011-048 Authorizing CM to sign Wa. County CDBG Project Agreement-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	12  Resolution 2011-048 Authorizing CM to sign WA County CDBG Project Agreement-DRAFT 06.07
	13  Resolution 2011-048 Authorizing CM to sign Wa. County CDBG Project Agreement-EXH A 06.07.11
	14  Resolution 2011-049 Certification of Provision of Services-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	15  Resolution 2011-049 Certification of Provision of Services-DRAFT 06.07
	16  Resolution 2011-050 Authority to Award Constr. Cont. for Brookman Area Sanitary-Sewer-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	17  Resolution 2011-050 Authority to Award Const. Cont. for Brookman Area Sanitary-Sewer-DRAFT 06.07
	18  Resolution 2011-051 Election to Receive State Revenues-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	19  Resolution 2011-051 Election to Receive State Revenues-DRAFT 06.07
	20  Resolution 2011-052 Adopting Annual Fee Schedule effective July 2011-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	21  Resolution 2011-052 Adopting Annual Fee Schedule effective July 2011-DRAFT 06.07
	22  Resolution 2011-052 Adopting Annual Fee Schedule effective July 2011-EXHIBIT A 06.07
	23  Resolution 2011-053 Adopting the FY12 City Budget-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	24  Resolution 2011-053 Adopting the FY12 City Budget-DRAFT 06.07
	25  Resolution 2011-053 Adopting the FY12 City Budget-EXHIBIT A 06.07.11
	BUDGET COVER 2011-2012-Approved.pdf
	Section 1 of budget document FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 2 Executive Summary FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 3 Financials FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 4 General Government FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 5 Enterprise Funds FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 6 Appendices FY11-12-Approved.pdf
	Section 7 Urban Renewal District FY11-12-Approved.pdf

	26  Resolution 2011-054 Approving Solid Waste Collection Rate Adjustments-STAFF REPORT 06.07
	27  Resolution 2011-054 Approving Solid Waste Collection Rate Adjustments-DRAFT 06.07
	28  Resolution 2011-054 Approving Solid Waste Collection Rate Adjustments-EXH A 06.07.11
	ADPFDF5.tmp
	Comprehensive Plan Update
	Purpose of work session
	What is a Comprehensive Plan?
	Applicable Statewide Planning Goals addressed in the Comprehensive Plan
	Comprehensive Plan Status
	Comprehensive Plan Status
	Other Plan Elements Out Dated
	Other Plan Elements Out Dated
	Slide Number 9
	Process for updates
	Two ways to update the Plan
	Recommendations

	ADPCCD9.tmp
	Development Code �Clean Up Project
	Purpose of Work Session
	Purpose of Code Clean-Up Project
	Background
	Topics Currently Under Review
	Parks and Open Spaces�
	Commercial and Industrial uses
	Trees on Private Property
	Other Topics Currently in Review
	Questions?
	Conceptual Project Schedule
	Upcoming Topics
	Temporary and Wall Signs
	Future Topics not yet being developed
	Code Clean Up Recommended Priority  4-27-10
	Questions?
	Conceptual Project Schedule




